
AGENDA (Amended)* 

Mason Transit Authority Board 
Regular Meeting 

December 19, 2017, 4:00 p.m. 
Mason Transit Authority 

Transit-Community Center 
601 West Franklin Street 

Shelton 

OPENING PROTOCOL – (est. 5 mins) 

CALL TO ORDER 
ROLL CALL AND DETERMINATION OF QUORUM 
ACCEPTANCE OF AGENDA – ACTION 

PUBLIC COMMENT – (est. 5 mins) 

RECOGNITION– Letter from Congressman Denny Heck (est. 5 mins) 

CONSENT AGENDA – ACTION (est. 5 mins)  

1. Pg. 005: Approval of Minutes: Approval of the minutes of the November 21, 2017
MTA regular Board meeting 

2. Pg. 009: Financial Reports: November 2017
3. Pg. 017: Check Approval: November 15 – December 14, 2017

REGULAR AGENDA – (est. 40 mins) 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS: 
1. Pg. 025: 2018 Budget – Resolution No. 2017-37 - ACTIONABLE – (est. 5 mins) 

NEW BUSINESS: 
1. Pg. 047: Surplus Equipment– Resolution No. 2017-38 - ACTIONABLE 

(est. 5 mins)  
2. Pg. 055: Amendment to Bylaws – Resolution No. 2017-39 – ACTIONABLE 

(est. 5 mins.) 
3. Pg. 079: Drug and Alcohol Policy – Resolution No. 2017-40 – ACTIONABLE 

(est. 5 mins.) 
4. Pg. 129: Employee Recognition Policy – Resolution No. 2017-41 – ACTIONABLE 

(est. 5 mins.)  
5. Pg. 139: Customer Comment/Complaint Policy – Resolution No. 2017-42 -

ACTIONABLE (est. 5 mins) 
6. Pg. 147: Paid Sick Leave Policy – Resolution No. 2017-43 - ACTIONABLE 

(est. 5 mins) 
7. Pg. 165: Rescinding Attendance Policy – Resolution No. 2017-44 - ACTIONABLE 

(est. 5 mins) 

*This Amended Draft now contains the correct version of the Paid Sick Leave Policy reflecting 
Legal Counsel recommendations.  

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 1



INFORMATIONAL UPDATES – (est. 5 mins) 

1. Pg. 169: Park and Ride Informational Update
2. Pg. 171: Management Reports
3. Board Composition Review Update

GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT: (est. 5 mins)  

COMMENTS BY BOARD (est. 5 mins) 

PUBLIC COMMENT (est. 5 mins) 

ADJOURNMENT 

UPCOMING MEETINGS: 

Mason Transit Authority 
Regular Meeting 

January 16, 2018 at 4:00 p.m. 
Transit-Community Center 

Conference Room 
601 West Franklin Street 

Shelton 

Public Hearings on Service Changes 
January 3, 2018 at 5:00 PM 

North Mason Timberland Library 
Large Meeting Room 
23081 State Route 3 

Belfair 

January 4, 2018 at 5:00 PM 
Transit-Community Center 

Conference Room 
601 West Franklin Street 

Shelton 

All participants are welcome. The meeting locations are ADA accessible. If you anticipate needing any 
type of accommodation or have questions about the physical access provided, please call 360-426-9434 
in advance. We will make every effort to meet accommodation requests. 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 2



December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 3



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 4



1 

Mason Transit Authority 
Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting 
November 21, 2017 
Transit-Community Center 
601 West Franklin Street 
Shelton 

OPENING PROTOCOL 

CALL TO ORDER: 4:00 p.m. 

Authority Voting Board Members Present: Terri Drexler, Chair; John Campbell, 
Vice Chair; Tracy Moore; Randy Neatherlin, Deb Petersen, Don Pogreba, Kevin Shutty and 
Sandy Tarzwell. - Quorum met.  

Authority Voting Board Members Not Present:  Wes Martin was not present. 

Authority Non-voting Board Member: Bobby Joe Murray, Business Representative, 
IAM and AW, District Lodge 160 was present. 

Others Present:  Tracy Becht, Clerk of the Board; Danette Brannin, General Manager; 
Kathy Geist, T-CC Manager; Marshall Krier, Maintenance and Facilities Manager; 
LeeAnn McNulty, Administrative Services Manager and Mike Ringgenberg, Operations 
Manager. Also present was John Piety (MCTAB). 

ACCEPTANCE OF AGENDA: Moved that the agenda for the November 21, 2017 
Mason Transit Authority (MTA) regular board meeting be accepted and approved. 
Shutty/Neatherlin. Motion carried. 

PUBLIC COMMENT:  None. 

CONSENT AGENDA 

Moved to approve Consent Agenda items 1 – 5, as follows: 

1. Moved to approve the draft minutes of the MTA Board regular meeting of October 17,
2017.

2. Moved that the Mason Transit Authority Board approve the financial reports for the
period of October, 2017 as presented.

3. Moved that the Mason Transit Authority Board approve the payments of October 13,
2017 through November 15, 2017, financial obligations on checks #30522 through
#30637, as presented for a total of $738,956.42.

4. Moved that the Mason Transit Authority Board approve the First Amendment to
Agreement GCB2614 and approve Resolution No. 2017-32 that authorizes the General
Manager to sign that Agreement.

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 5



2 

 

               

5. Moved that the Mason Transit Authority Board approve the Second Amendment to 
Agreement GCB2615 and approve Resolution No. 2017-33 that authorizes the General 
Manager to sign that Agreement. 

 
Neatherlin/Shutty. Motion carried. 
 
REGULAR AGENDA 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
1. Presentation by Nelson/Nygaard Relating to Service Review Consultation – The 

team from Nelson/Nygaard introduced themselves and shared their experience in service 
review consultations, as well as some of the other transit agencies around the country that 
have benefited from their expertise. Some of the topics they touched on were community 
engagement and designing service to meet community needs. They anticipate that it is a 
year-long process. 

 
2. Approval of Service Review Consultant Contract – Danette Brannin, General Manager, 

discussed the process of soliciting bids, interviewing those that submitted bids and the panel 
that interviewed as well as the scorecards. Based on the tabulation of the scorecards, it was 
recommended that Nelson/Nygaard be awarded winning bidder. Moved that the Mason 
Transit Authority Board approve Resolution No. 2017-34 authorizing the General Manager to 
sign the service review contract. Neatherlin/Campbell. Motion carried. 

 
(Board member Randy Neatherlin asked to be excused from the remainder of the meeting, which 
was recognized and approved by the Board Chair at 4:35 pm.) 
 
3. Third Draft of 2018 Budget. LeeAnn McNulty, Administrative Services Manager, informed 

the Board that the two public hearings and workshops had been held. She also indicated that 
funds for the Service Review Consultant was included in the 2018 Budget. She further 
indicated that they are taking a conservative view of the revenues. If more revenues come in 
than anticipated, then those additional revenues will be placed in reserves. The budget still 
shows revenues above expenses. 

 
4.  Five Cutaway Procurement Update. Marshall Krier, Maintenance and Facilities Manager, 

provided the Board with an update by sharing that the purchase had been approved by 
WSDOT and that it was moving along well in the procurement process. The Champion 
cutaways will be built in Indiana. 

 
NEW BUSINESS 
 

1. Approval of 2018 Authority Board Meetings – Tracy Becht, Clerk of the Authority 
Board, shared with the Board that it was time to look at the 2018 schedule of the regular 
Board meetings, as well as consider locations. Moved that Mason Transit Authority Board 
approve Resolution No. 2017-35 establishing the 2018 schedule of regular MTA Board 
meetings. Campbell/Petersen. Motion carried. 

 
2. Approving Statutory Default Fees for Response to Public Records Requests – 

Tracy Becht, Public Records Officer, explained to the Board that due to recent changes to 
the Public Records Act, it was required for agencies to either charge actual costs to respond 
to public record requests or declare that it was unduly burdensome to calculate those 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 6



3 

 

               

charges. Since MTA receives less than 30 public records requests annually, it would be 
unduly burdensome to calculate the costs and recommended to the Board that MTA charge 
the statutory default fees.  Moved that the Mason Transit Authority Board approve 
Resolution No. 2017-36 declaring that computing all actual costs to respond to public records 
requests would be unduly burdensome and to charge statutory default fees.  
Campbell/Shutty. Motion carried. 

 
3. Remix Software as a Service – Ms. Brannin described the benefits of the new software 

and how using it will save many hours of work in route scheduling and planning, especially 
with the recommendations from the service analysis consultant. Mike Ringgenberg, 
Operations Manager, provided a short demonstration on how it works. 

 
[Board member Deb Petersen excused herself from the meeting at 4:50 pm as she needed to 
attend another meeting.] 
 
INFORMATIONAL UPDATES – 

 
Ms. Brannin updated the Board in connection with the construction of the building at the Park 
and Ride in Belfair, anticipated to begin in the spring of 2018.  
 
The Board Chair then described to the Board the recommendation of the Board Composition 
Review Committee and that Mason County has approved the recommendation. The City of 
Shelton is anticipated to approve the recommendation on December 4, 2017. The approved 
recommendations will become effective January 1, 2018. She indicated that any Board members 
wishing to continue serving on the MTA Board submit an application using the fillable form 
located on the Mason County website. The submitted applications will be considered by the 
County Commissioners and those that are selected will be notified following approval by the 
County. 
 
GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT – Ms. Brannin had no additional comments to the report.  
 
COMMENTS BY BOARD MEMBERS – 
 
Board member Tracy Moore shared that the Council form of government for the City of 
Shelton was approved in the recent election as well as grants recently awarded to the City. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT – None. 
 
Moved that the meeting be adjourned.  

ADJOURNED 5:30 p.m. 
 
UPCOMING MEETINGS 

Mason Transit Authority 
Regular Board Meeting 

Tuesday, December 19, 2017 at 4:00 p.m. 
Transit-Community Center 

Conference Room 
601 West Franklin Street  

Shelton 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 7



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 8



December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 9



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 10



December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 11



December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 12



December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 13



December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 14



December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 15



December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 16



December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 17



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 18



December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 19



December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 20



December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 21



December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 22



December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 23



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 24



Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item: Unfinished Business – Item 1 – ACTIONABLE 
Subject:   Proposed 2018 Budget 
Prepared by:  LeeAnn McNulty, Administrative Services Manager 
Approved by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Date:   December 19, 2017 

Summary for Discussion Purposes: 

The 2018 Proposed Annual Budget has been prepared in conjunction with team managers, the 
Administrative Services Manager and the General Manager. In addition, two Budget Workshops 
were conducted with board members and staff. Public Hearings were held on October 12 and 
November 16, 2016 to solicit public comments. Both meetings had attendance from MCTAB. 

The attached 2017 Proposed Annual Budget narrative provides assumptions and background to 
the budget. 

• Significant changes to the budget from the draft version presented at November’s board
meeting include:

o Inserted one each Dispatch/Scheduler and Driver positions to support
recommendations that may come from the service review

o Reduced Unemployment Allowance to reflect one less anticipated claim for
benefits

o Included additional $20,000 to repair leaking windows at Johns Prairie facility
o Reduced Insurance Premium to reflect WSTIP billing for 2018
o Reduced Labor & Industries premium to remove estimated premium increase.

2018 premiums are relatively unchanged from 2017
o Reconciled Dues and Subscriptions to expected expense
o Inserted an additional $10,000 in-kind funds to support the increasingly utilized

Volunteer Driver program

Fiscal Impact:  Net Income from Operations $55,740. 

Staff Recommendation: 

Approve. 

Motion for Consideration: 

Move that the Mason Transit Authority Board approve Resolution No. 2017-37, adopting the 
2018 Budget with Gross Operating Revenues of $7,813,741, and Total Operating Expenses of 
$7,758,001 with Net Income from Operations of $55,740. 

M
ason T

ransit A
uthority B

oard 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 25



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 26



2018 Annual Budget 

Draft 

December 19, 2017 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 27



MTA 2018 Draft Budget  1 | P a g e  
 

 

INTRODUCTION 

Consistent with other years, the goals of the 2018 Budget are to ensure that Mason Transit 

Authority (MTA) continues to meet the needs of the community and operate within its available 

financial resources. MTA views that the economic outlook for 2018 will remain stable, and 

projects that sales tax revenue will see a slight increase over 2017. Total operating expenses 

for 2018 are expected to increase by 6.58%, the result of wages associated to labor 

agreements, anticipated costs of technology investment, and a service review analysis.  

 
 

GOALS: 
The goals of the 2018 Budget are: 

 Maintain a 4-month Operating reserve fund 
 Focus on long-term sustainability within current funding limits 
 Grow reserves for future capital projects and vehicle replacement 
 Ensure fiscal responsibility 
 Review current service levels and community needs 

 
 

2018 BUDGET ASSUMPTIONS 
 
The following assumptions are incorporated into the preliminary budget. 
 
Operating Revenue 

 Ridership is trending consistent with 2017 anticipated amounts with the exception of 

vanpool. Due to the decrease in ridership therein, fare revenue is expected to decrease 

slightly.  

 2018 sales tax revenue is projected to exceed the 2017 budgeted amount by 1%.  The 

budget is based on a conservative forecast although the current revenue trend is higher. 

 Operating grant funding is up for the 2017-2019 biennium, propelled by a substantial 

increase in Sales Tax Equalization funds for the period July 2017 through June 2018. 

 Rental income at the T-CC is expected to increase with full tenant occupancy anticipated in 

2018.  Event usage is expected to increase as well now that the facility is well established. 

 2017 investment income is trending 300% above the budgeted amount for 2017. To remain 

conservative, the 2018 revenue amount is expected to decrease from 2017’s significant 

increase, but still come in higher than the 2017 budgeted amount. 

 

Operating Expenses 

 A net decrease of 4.5 full-time equivalents (FTE’s):   

o -.9 FTE change within the Administrative department. Due to the shift in operations 

management, there has been downsizing within the department, as well as the 

consolidation of Finance, HR, and Admin falling within a single Administrative 

Services umbrella.  

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 28



MTA 2018 Draft Budget  2 | P a g e  
 

o -1 FTE within the Maintenance/Facilities department due to the elimination of the 

Maintenance Support Technician. 

o -2.3 FTE in the Operations department. Many shifts are occurring within this 

department, including the elimination of the Operations Compliance Coordinator, 

Operations Coordinator and 1.9 Driver positions; two positions were created: 

Outreach/Transit Planner and Technical Support Analyst.  

o The TCC FTEs remain unchanged from the prior year’s budgeted FTEs. 

 Medical premiums decrease by 2.5%. 

 Labor and Insurance premiums stabilized for 2018 relatively the same as 2017 rates. 

 No cost increase for Public Employee Retirement System (PERS) expected in 2018. 

 Wages have been set for each of the Collective Bargaining Units (CBU’s), and budgeted 

according to each of the CBU’s wage matrices. General Wage increases have been 

established for non-represented employees. 

 Fuel prices remain consistent with prior year's, even with the transition to bio-diesel. 

 Labor attorney costs are anticipated at approximately $30,000; there will be ongoing costs 

for contract renegotiations and labor issues. 

 
  

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 29



MTA 2018 Draft Budget  3 | P a g e  
 

 
Mason Transit Authority 

2018 Proposed Budget - Operating 
 

The Operating Budget does not include Capital expenditures (see Capital Budget below). 
 

Revenue 2015 Actual 2016 Actual

 2017 Year-end 

Projection 2017 Budget 2018 Budget Notes

2017 vs 2018 % 

Change-Budget

Passenger Fares 92,665$          101,286$     98,228$            98,300$          101,600$        3.36%

PSNS Worker/Driver & Vanpool Fares 352,146          289,897        268,336            295,000          265,000          -10.17%

Special Contract Fares - Local Govt. 12,120            101,631        -                       -                     -                     -

Operating Revenue (Fares) 456,931          492,813        366,564            393,300          366,600          1 -6.79%

Sales Tax 3,833,979      4,070,658    3,955,391        3,858,621      3,897,207      2 1.00%

Operating Grant 1,950,078      2,787,014    2,768,111        2,669,650      3,046,116      3 14.10%

Rental Income 69,382            135,096        187,691            158,860          183,418          4 15.46%

Investment Income 5,094               16,218           41,436               13,800             20,000             5 44.93%

Other Non-operating Revenue 189,696          217,055        264,198            215,080          300,400          6 39.67%

Non-operating Revenue 6,048,228      7,226,041    7,216,827        6,916,011      7,447,141      7.68%

Total  Revenue 6,505,159      7,718,854    7,583,391        7,309,311      7,813,741      6.90%

Expenses
Wages and Benefits 5,077,781      5,385,066    5,117,152        5,561,759      5,677,315      7 2.08%

Contracted Services 172,530          254,963        237,891            293,129          423,608          8 44.51%

Purchased Transportation 65,767            1,794             -                       -                     -                     -

Fuel 321,965          279,867        318,176            350,000          336,000          9 -4.00%

Vehicle/Facility Repair & Maintenance 252,705          321,344        270,512            322,165          308,200          10 -4.33%

Insurance Premium 188,697          194,978        229,516            237,338          238,506          11 0.49%

Intergovernmental - Audit Fees 20,797            27,468           27,985               27,000             29,000             12 7.41%

Facility Rent and Park & Ride 9,725               20,145           28,612               27,480             30,800             13 12.08%

Utilities 125,110          125,080        120,618            141,846          131,140          14 -7.55%

Supplies 217,491          136,327        89,702               129,130          118,235          15 -8.44%

Training & Meetings 47,424            34,950           26,448               41,900             55,185             16 31.71%

Pooled Reserves -                    -                  -                       -                     240,000          17 -

Other Operating Expenses 147,659          120,369        117,648            147,621          170,012          18 15.17%

Total  Operating Expenses 6,647,650      6,902,350    6,584,261        7,279,368      7,758,001      6.58%

Net Income (Loss) from Operations (142,491)$      816,504$     999,130$          29,943$          55,740$          

 
 
COMPARISON OF 2018 VS 2017 BUDGET  
  

1. Passenger Fares and ridership has remained consistent year-over-year, noting a minor 
dip in the current year. The Worker/Driver program had no significant ridership changes 
and remains consistent with the prior year. Vanpool participation has decreased in 2017; 
trending a YTD projected decrease of approximately 22.3% from 2017’s budgeted 
amount. 

2. Rental Income has plateaued at the Transit Community Center (T-CC) with full 
occupancy achieved. The T-CC has reached its capacity for long-term tenants while 
continuing to increase its event rentals. Event revenue for 2017 has surpassed the 2017 
budget and is expected to come in significantly higher than originally budgeted for.   

3. Investment income continues to grow due to increased interest rates. 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 30



MTA 2018 Draft Budget  4 | P a g e  
 

4. The increase within Other Non-Operating Revenue is due to the RMG award having 
increased for the 17-19 biennium. The per annum increase is approximately $63,000.  

5. The slight increase in wages and benefits can be attributed to the following: 
I. Effective July 1, 2017 the Employer PERS contribution rates increased from 

11.18% to 12.70%.  
II. The driver and dispatch teams established their respective CBUs and came to an 

agreement with MTA on their wage structure, which has an overall increase to 
their wages. 

III. AWC has quoted a decrease from 2017’s medical plan premium of 2.5%. All 
other health care premiums remain the same for 2018.  

6. The significant increase in Contracted Services relates to the procurement and 
commencement of the bus technology implementation and ongoing support.  

7. Fuel prices are anticipated to remain stable going into 2018. The 2017 fuel expense is 
projected to be under the 2017 budget by 9.1%. A 4% reduction in fuel expense is 
budgeted for 2018.  Also, beginning in 2018 a fuel reserve account will be established to 
cover unforeseen spikes in fuel costs. 

8. Vehicle maintenance parts are projected to be 34% less than budgeted for 2017 due to 
replacement of older vans and coaches. A reduction of 16.7% in Vehicle Maintenance 
Parts is budgeted for 2018. 

9. WSTIP’s liability and property insurance premiums have stabilized for 2018 with a .20% 
increase over 2017.  

10. 2018 Intergovernmental audit fees are quoted from the State Auditor’s exit conference 
for the 2016 fiscal year audit.  

11. Facility Rent and Park & Ride expense will remain consistent with 2017, as the Belfair 
Park & Ride location is still under lease. 

12. Utilities have been adjusted to reflect full occupancy at the T-CC, notably garbage has 
been increased based on usage.  Notification has been received from the City of Shelton 
of a 6% increase for 2018 water/sewer rates. 

13. Supplies are expected to decrease in 2018 due to reduced printing expectations with the 
adoptions of various software that will help MTA head towards a more paperless 
operation. 

14. Travel and training expenses are expected to increase going into 2018. This will be a 
year where bi-annual conferences are attended, thus resulting in a significant increase 
compared to 2017’s budget.  Additional training dollars are included for key staff to 
maintain certifications that provide long term value to the agency. 

15. Other Operating Expenses is budgeted to have a significant increase to anticipate 
additional unemployment insurance expense for those who have been laid off due to the 
organizational restructure.  

16. Pooled reserves is an account set aside to filter any excess funds, for future project use 
or operating use if necessary. 

  

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 31



MTA 2018 Draft Budget  5 | P a g e  
 

OPERATING REVENUES 
 

Total operating revenue budgeted is projected to increase from $7,309,311 for 2017 to 

$7,813,741 for 2018; this is an increase from prior year’s budget levels by $504,430, or 6.90%.  

Major revenue sources include sales taxes, collected in Mason County, and grant funding.  

 

 
 

Grant Revenues 

Operating grants comprise 39% of the operating revenues.  MTA received grant funding for the 

2017-2019 biennium to assist with operating service.  MTA recognized an increase in sales tax 

equalization funds of which $400,000 was designated to the capital investment in technology 

advances with the balance applied toward the cost of operations. 

Transit-Community Center Revenues 

The T-CC provides revenue through leases and event use. With the T-CC fully occupied rental 

income for 2018 is stable.   Event use increased substantially in 2017, it is expected that event 

use will remain consistent to 2017 levels with efforts to increase 2018 usage through continued 

outreach. 

 

Sales Taxes 

Sales tax revenue is the largest operating revenue source - projected to be 50% of revenue for 

2018.  Sales tax revenue has shown positive growth since May 2013. From 2013 to 2016 sales 

tax revenue has increased by approximately 21% and 2017 sales tax revenue is projected to be 

approximately 6.5% higher than budgeted. 

 

5%

50%

39%

2%
4%

2018 Projected Revenues

Operating Revenue (Fares)

Sales Tax

Operating Grant

Rental Income

Other Non-operating
Revenue

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 32



MTA 2018 Draft Budget  6 | P a g e  
 

For 2018, the level of sales tax collection is projected to remain on par with 2017’s year to date 

projection that is estimated at $4.1 million, however, to remain conservative going into the new 

year, 2018’s budgeted amount is set at a 1% increase over the 2017 budgeted amount. 

 

The following table shows actual sales tax revenue for 2014 through September 2017, along with 

the 2017 projections for October through December (based on 2017 budget). 

 

Historical and Projected Sales Tax Revenue 

 
 

2014 2015 2016
 2017 

Budget 

 2017 

Actual 

 2018 

Budget 

JAN 237,528    279,122    246,415    238,424    279,777    265,739    

FEB 227,815    281,559    262,925    254,399    276,310    271,145    

MAR 278,053    307,482    328,665    318,008    356,214    314,761    

APR 260,396    286,903    312,635    302,497    320,241    293,506    

MAY 274,641    347,236    332,428    321,649    357,049    325,094    

JUN 323,498    354,920    391,485    378,791    435,445    357,644    

JUL 329,201    350,290    360,375    348,689    386,531    354,154    

AUG 323,336    336,522    389,222    376,601    397,061    356,288    

SEP 349,872    348,805    426,039    376,577    388,845    379,731    

OCT 296,170    309,042    324,125    318,776    318,776    323,078    

NOV 249,648    261,713    314,996    268,703    268,703    286,643    

DEC 330,297    367,053    381,623    355,508    355,508    369,425    

Total 3,480,456  3,830,645  4,070,933  3,858,622  4,140,459  3,897,207   
 
 
 
 
 
  

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 33



MTA 2018 Draft Budget  7 | P a g e  
 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
 

Total operating expense budgeted is projected to increase from $7,279,368 for 2017 to 
$7,758,001 for 2018; this is an increase from prior year’s budget levels by $478,633 or 6.58%.  
The largest operating expense, by far, is employee wages and benefits, accounting for nearly 
74% of total operating expense.  
 

 
 

Salaries, Wages, and Benefits 

The salaries, wages, and benefits increase in the 2018 proposed budget is due to a variety of 

factors: 

 

• The increased PERS rate of 12.7% from 11.18% will be in full effect for 2018. No 

further adjustments have been announced for 2018. 

• Both the driver and dispatch teams established collective bargaining units and signed 
their respective agreements with MTA to set their wage structures for the upcoming 
years. The impact of the driver’s contract increased their overall wages and benefits 
by 10%. Due to the size of the dispatch team, their wages and benefits impacted 
the 2018 budget minimally. 

• 2018 Labor & Industries insurance premiums have stabilized, rates quoted are 

relatively the same as 2017. 

 

The following chart shows the staff position and Full-Time Equivalent (FTE) changes with 

explanations describing each change. 

74%

6%

4%

4%

3%
7%

2%

2018 Projected Operating Expenses

Wages and Benefits

Contracted Services

Fuel

Maintenance/Supplies

Utilities

Other

Pooled Reserves

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 34



MTA 2018 Draft Budget  8 | P a g e  
 

Department

2017 

Budget - 

Positions

Change

2018 

Budget - 

Positions

2017 

Budget - 

FTEs

Change

2018 

Budget - 

FTEs

Administration

General Manager 1.0 0.0 1.0 1.0 0.0 1.0

Administrative Services Manager 1) 0.0 1.0 1.0 0.0 1.0 1.0

Administrative Assistant(3) 0.5 -0.5 0.0 0.5 -0.5 0.0

HR Manager(1) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.4 -0.4 0.0

Development Manager(2) 1.0 -1.0 0.0 1.0 -1.0 0.0

Finance Manager(1) 1.0 -1.0 0.0 1.0 -1.0 0.0

Executive Assistant 1.0 0.0 1.0 1.0 0.0 1.0

Accounting Assistant 2.0 0.0 2.0 2.0 0.0 2.0

Staff Accountant(4) 0.0 1.0 1.0 0.0 1.0 1.0

Total Administration 6.5 -0.5 6.0 6.9 -0.9 6.0

Maintenance/Facilities

Maintenance Manager 1.0 0.0 1.0 1.0 0.0 1.0

Maintenance Support Technician 1.0 -1.0 0.0 1.0 -1.0 0.0

Mechanic(5) 1.0 0.0 1.0 1.0 0.0 1.0

Service Mechanics(5) 3.0 0.0 3.0 3.0 0.0 3.0

Fueler/Detailer 1.0 0.0 1.0 1.0 0.0 1.0

Facilities Technician 1.0 0.0 1.0 1.0 0.0 1.0

Custodian/Detailer 1.0 0.0 1.0 1.0 0.0 1.0

Total Maintenance/Facilities 9.0 -1.0 8.0 9.0 -1.0 8.0

Operations

Operations Manager 1.0 0.0 1.0 1.0 0.0 1.0

Operations Supervisor(6) 3.0 1.0 4.0 3.0 0.7 3.7

Operations Compliance Coordinator(7) 1.0 -1.0 0.0 1.0 -1.0 0.0

Operations Coordinator(7) 1.0 -1.0 0.0 1.0 -1.0 0.0

Community Service Coordinator(7) 1.0 -1.0 0.0 1.0 -1.0 0.0

Dispatcher/Scheduler/CSR(8) 8.0 0.0 8.0 8.0 0.0 8.0

Drivers(9) 46.0 -3.0 43.0 43.8 -1.9 41.8

Worker/Drivers 9.0 -1.0 8.0 8.0 0.0 8.0

Outreach/Transit Planner(7) 0.0 1.0 1.0 0.0 1.0 1.0

Technical Support Analyst(7) 0.0 1.0 1.0 0.0 1.0 1.0

Total Operations 70.0 -4.0 66.0 66.8 -2.3 64.5

Transit-Community Center

T-CC Manager(10) 1.0 -1.0 0.0 1.0 -1.0 0.0

T-CC Assistant/Custodian(10) 1.0 0.0 1.0 1.0 0.0 1.0

T-CC Building Superintendent(10) 0.0 1.0 1.0 0.0 1.0 1.0

Total Transit-Community Center 2.0 0.0 2.0 2.0 0.0 2.0

TOTAL 87.5 -5.5 82.0 84.7 -4.2 80.5

 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 35



MTA 2018 Draft Budget  9 | P a g e  
 

1. The HR Manager retired within 2017 and, with the consolidation of the Finance and Human 
Resources departments into Administrative Services, the positions of Finance Manager 
and HR Manager were both dissolved and duties were combined into the Administrative 
Services Manager position.  

2. After the construction and establishment of the Transit Center, the Development Manager 
position workload has diminished. Due to this, the responsibilities of this position have 
deferred to the Administrative Services department and the position dissolved as of 
December 4, 2017. 

3. The role the Office Assistant workload has been distributed out to the Administrative 
Services team, since the duties associated with the position were not enough to warrant 
a separate position. 

4. To assist with the transition to a combined Administrative Services department, the Staff 
Accountant position has been established to help with the various influx of duties being 
reallocated from other departments, with a focus on the financial side of the spectrum. 

5. As of April 2017, the Lead Mechanic position was revised to Mechanic with additional 
responsibilities compared to Service Mechanics. 

6. An additional Operations Supervisor will be brought onboard part-way through the year 
to aid with the succession plan for a retiring Operations Supervisors. 

7. In support of the upcoming service review engagement and the implementation of 
technology into our operation, two roles were dissolved in favor of creating a support 
system for each initiative. The support system consists of adding an Outreach/Transit 
Planner and a Technical Support Analyst. Both new positions will directly support 
Operations as well as the entire agency. The 2017 budgeted Community Service 
Coordinator position was never brought to fruition. 

8. The Customer Service Representative position held at the Transit Center has been 
dissolved due to an overlap in duties and responsibilities with the other dispatch roles.  An 
additional dispatch position is being held in the budget to expand Saturday hours at the 
T-CC. 

9. One FTE Driver position is being reduced plus an adjustment to reflect the two on-call 
drivers that equates to .83 of an FTE. 

10. The Transit Center will no longer have a separate manager, but will have a building 
superintendent.  The superintendent will be responsible for maintaining the premises and 
working with tenants to address any building concerns, along with event contracting and 
coordination. The T-CC Assistant/Custodian position will remain. 

 
  

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 36



MTA 2018 Draft Budget  10 | P a g e  
 

Wages and benefits by team are as follows:  
 

Salary Holiday Personal Leave PERS FICA L&I Benefits Total

Admin 163,043     6,603       2,025                  21,802    13,133    1,171       43,680        251,456     

Board 4,320           -            -                       -            330           -            -                4,650           

Comm Center 349,067     14,230    2,846                  46,988    28,010    3,480       125,807     570,430     

Drivers 1,701,598 67,195    14,318               221,991 136,408 167,701 670,298     2,979,510 

Administrative Services 199,440     8,066       2,203                  26,633    16,043    5,311       73,806        331,502     

Maintenance/Facilities 383,561     15,491    3,708                  51,151    30,811    32,052    135,286     652,060     

Operations 350,327     14,228    3,566                  46,751    28,161    19,228    98,206        560,468     

T-CC 76,339        3,078       616                      10,164    6,123       4,457       32,466        133,243     

Vanpool 4,002           -            -                       -            306           45             -                4,353           

Volunteer Driver 12,361        505           101                      1,667       992           134           4,531           20,291        

Worker/Driver 84,559        3,132       4,186                  8,822       7,029       9,193       -                116,921     

Total 3,328,619 132,528 33,569               435,969 267,346 242,773 1,184,081 5,624,885 

↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓

2018 Budgeted Amounts 3,328,619 132,528 33,569               435,969 267,346 242,773 1,184,081 5,624,885 

2017 Budgeted Amounts 3,239,321 128,713 25,694               378,761 259,620 249,192 1,244,097 5,525,399 

Change ($) 89,298        3,815       7,875                  57,208    7,726       (6,419)     (60,016)       99,486        

Increase % 2.76% 2.96% 30.65% 15.10% 2.98% -2.58% -4.82% 1.80%  
 

 

 
 

The 2018 Compensation Plan for Salaries and Wages includes the following assumptions: 

 Wages are set for each of the Collective Bargaining Units (CBU’s), and budgeted 

according to each of the CBU’s wage matrices. As of January 1, 2018, there will be a 

wage increase for all represented employees varying between 1-2%. In addition, 

4%
9%

53%

6%

12%

11%

3% 2%

2018 % of Wages and Benefits by Department

Admin

Comm Center

Drivers

Administrative Services

Maintenance/Facilities

Operations

T-CC

Worker/Driver

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 37



MTA 2018 Draft Budget  11 | P a g e  
 

depending on longevity and which department they are associated with, they will receive 

an additional “step” raise, per their union agreement. 

 Non-represented employees in management positions will receive a general wage 

increase (GWI) of 1.75%, along with two additional personal days; all other non-

represented employees will receive a GWI of 1.90% based upon the prior twelve-month 

average of the West – Size Class B/C All Urban Consumers Consumer Price Index (CPI) 

as of August 2017.  

 Worker/Drivers will now receive 25 hours of personal leave a year.   

 Worker Drivers and On-Call Drivers will receive paid sick leave according to the new 

Washington State Paid Sick Leave law. 

 
CAPITAL BUDGET  
 

Project Budget Grants MTA 

Funding

Project 

Costs to 

Date

Purpose

IT Items 15,000          -               15,000          -                   -               Server upgrades @ $15,000

T-CC Parking Lot 302,500        250,000        52,500          -                   -               Parking lot behind T-CC

Park & Ride Development - 2015-

2019 RMG Funds
6,371,134      5,617,000      950,000        -                   1,159,153      

Purchase property ($687,059) in North Mason 

for P&R; upgrade other P&R

Smart Bus Technology 400,000        400,000        -               -                   -               
CAD/AVL, Tablet, Scheduling Software, 

Automatic Stop

HVAC Units 50,000          -               50,000          -                   -               Replace units Buildings 1 & 2

Rear Destination Signs Low Floor 

Buses
8,000            -               8,000            -                   -               Ridership amenity - See route from rear of bus

4 New Wheel End Hoist 45,000          -               45,000          -                   -               Maintenance shop

Passenger Amenities & Signage at 

Stops
80,000          69,200          10,800          -                   42,419          

Balance of 2015 TAP Grant. Initial spend T-CC 

start up.

Alder St./N. Olympic Hwy Project 100,000        -               100,000        -                   -               
Bus stop enhancements in coordination of City 

project.  Contingent on City grant success.

Accounting Software 35,000          -               35,000          -                   -               Pending updated pricing.  RFP to follow.

T-CC Roof Repair -               -               5,000            -                   -               To repair T-CC's roof due to leaks

TOTAL CAPITAL PROJECTS 7,406,634$ 6,336,200$ 1,271,300$ 1,201,572$ 

Vehicle Budget Grants MTA 

Funding

Purpose

2 Worker Driver Coaches 550,000        -               550,000        -                   -               
Replacement inventory.  New $485K, used $250-

300K.

5 Cutaways 504,930        378,679        126,251        -                   -               Replacement inventory.  

Staff Vehicles 30,000          -               30,000          -                   -               to replace staff car and maintenance pickup

TOTAL VEHICLE REPLACEMENT 1,084,930$ 378,679$    706,251$    

PROPOSED 2018 CAPITAL 

PROJECTS 8,491,564$ 6,714,879$ 1,977,551$ 1,201,572$ 

Capital Project Reserves - $215,560  (Sales tax revenue above budgeted amount set aside in Capital Project Reserves monthly.)

VEHICLE REPLACEMENT

Cash encumbered for MTA Funding portion - $1,239,551.  

Mason Transit Authority
2018 Capital Budget

2018 CAPITAL PROJECT BUDGET

 
 
 
 
 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 38



MTA 2018 Draft Budget  12 | P a g e  
 

 
TRANSIT – COMMUNITY CENTER 
 

The on-going operating costs for the T-CC are allocated between Transit-related functions and 
Community Center-related functions based upon the square footage associated with each, 
except for salaries and benefits.  The T-CC’s operating costs projected for 2018 are as follows:  
 

2018 Community 

Center Budget

2018 Transit 

Budget

2018 Total 

Budget

2017 Community 

Center Budget

2017 Transit 

Budget

2017 Total 

Budget % Change

T-CC Event Rental 30,000$                -$             30,000$        11,000$                -$             11,000$          173%

T-CC Tenant Rental 135,821                -                135,821        137,463                -                137,463          -1%

Total Projected Revenues 165,821                -                165,821        148,463                -                148,463          

Salaries and Benefits 133,483                -                133,483        116,696                39,316        156,011          -14%

Repair/Maintenance by Other 1,420                     580               2,000             710                         290               1,000               100%

Professional and Technical Services 3,900                     -                3,900             2,964                     1,006           3,970               -2%

Contract Services 2,100                     -                2,100             1,448                     592               2,040               3%

Printing 500                         -                500                 320                         131               450                   11%

Security Services -                          -                -                  71                            29                  100                   -100%

Facility Repair/Maintenance 2,059                     841               2,900             1,988                     812               2,800               4%

Office Supplies 150                         75                  225                 178                         73                  250                   -10%

Cleaning/Sanitation Supplies 1,420                     580               2,000             2,000                     2,000           4,000               -50%

Water and Sewer 3,900                     1,550           5,450             6,390                     2,610           9,000               -39%

Garbage 2,000                     900               2,900             2,130                     870               3,000               -3%

Gas 2,100                     800               2,900             1,593                     651               2,244               29%

Electric 24,000                   9,500           33,500           23,288                   9,512           32,800            2%

Telephone Service 1,190                     500               1,690             1,136                     464               1,600               6%

Insurance Premium 15,409                   -                15,409           23,734                   -                23,734            -35%

Dues, Memberships, Subscriptions 643                         -                643                 391                         160               550                   17%

Travel & Meeting Expense MTA 355                         -                355                 355                         145               500                   -29%

Conference Registration 355                         -                355                 355                         145               500                   -29%

Training / Seminars 150                         -                150                 142                         58                  200                   -25%

Advertising/Promotion Media 2,500                     -                2,500             1,065                     435               1,500               67%

Other Misc Expenses 900                         200               1,100             1,434                     586               2,020               -46%

Office Equipment Lease 1,260                     700               1,960             1,011                     1,011           2,021               -3%

Total Projected Expenses 199,794                16,226        216,020        189,397                60,893        250,290          

(33,973)$               (16,226)$    (50,199)$  (40,934)$               (60,893)$    (101,827)$  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 39



MTA 2018 Draft Budget  13 | P a g e  
 

 
 
 

TEAM GOALS FOR 2018 
 
Administrative Services Team Mission Statement 

Provide financial support to all MTA teams, ensure internal controls and compliance, and keep 

agency financially stable and sustainable. 

Administrative Services Goals for 2018 

 Prepare a Financial Policy Manual. 

 Update Procurement Policy. 

 Update Employee Handbook to be in line with union contracts. 

 Prepare a long-term projection of MTA’s financial sustainability and align with strategic 

plan. 

 Continue streamlining processes to promote efficiency and keep costs down. 

 Begin process of reviewing accounting software for potential change. 

Revenue Sources and Cost Drivers 

 No revenue sources 

 Wages/benefits 

 Audit costs 

Budget Changes from 2017 to 2018 

 Finance and Human Resource departments have been combined to create the 

Administrative Services Department 

Information Technology (IT) Team Mission Statement 

Provide excellent customer service through prompt and efficient response to technology needs.  

Keep MTA safe from cyber vulnerabilities. 

IT Team Goals for 2018 

 Implement bus technology into MTA system 

 Review current network structure and ensure stabilization 

 Incorporate records management system for naming convention and network structure. 

 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 40



MTA 2018 Draft Budget  14 | P a g e  
 

Revenue Sources and Cost Drivers 

 Scheduled computer replacement. 

 Incorporate bus technology into MTA system. 

Budget Changes from 2017 to 2018 

 Increase cost for annual technology implementation. 

Maintenance Team Mission Statement 

The Maintenance Team’s mission is to effectively and efficiently provide safe, clean, reliable and 

comfortable vehicles, facilities and amenities for use by its customers and to ensure that such 

resources are available to deliver on the agency vision of Driving our Community Forward. 

Maintenance Team Goals for 2018 

 Continue to explore maintenance processes & parts purchasing to increase cost savings 

without sacrificing quality. 

 Partnering with other transit systems and the training coalition to looking for low-cost or 

no-cost training opportunities.  

 Sharing resources with the City of Shelton and Mason County Maintenance Departments 

to reduce costs and better utilize our equipment. 

 Continue with bus stop and shelter installation and amenities. 

 Perform in depth vehicle maintenance program analysis for cost savings to include fuel 

mileage, oil consumption and prolonged tire life. 

 Complete procurement for 5 cutaways place them in service. 

 Work with Administrative Services division too develop inventory processes that meet all 

agency needs and to streamline the procurement, receiving and return activities.  

 

Revenue & Cost Drivers 

 We project receiving $5,000 for sales of contracted maintenance services in 2018 

 Significant cost issues for both vehicle and facility maintenance remain the same. They 

include labor, fuel, parts and tires. Facility expenses include electricity and gas. 

 

Significant Changes from 2017 to 2018 

 None. 

 Following are challenges facing Maintenance: 

 

 With the coach bus fleet currently averaging 285,000 miles and cutaways 186,000 

miles, we are experiencing major component failures that significantly increase parts 

costs.  Examples of these components include: starters, alternators, air-compressors, 

injectors and diesel emission systems. It is anticipated that at least 50 percent (8) of 

the coach bus fleet will require some or all of these components requiring 

replacement within the next year. Repair and maintenance costs continue to rise. 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 41



MTA 2018 Draft Budget  15 | P a g e  
 

With an emphasis on improved fleet appearance and more accurate body damage 

reporting, we have experienced an increase in body shop repairs. When possible we 

repair in-house; however, we are not equipped to repair or paint body panels. 

 Facility repair and maintenance is stabilizing. With continued predictive maintenance 

the Johns Prairie Facility is beginning to become less labor and material intensive. 

Items of continued concern are plumbing issues, especially waste. Electrical systems 

are another; we are not equipped or certified to repair high voltage circuitry.  

Operations Team Mission Statement 

 The mission of the Operations team is to provide a range of safe, courteous and on-

time transit services to best meet the needs of the riding public in Mason County.  

 

Goals for 2018 

 

 Conduct review of MTA services with the assistance of a consultant. 

 Research/purchase technology for our fleet to improve fleet operations and customer 

accessibility.  

 Provide refresher training to all regular drivers and dispatcher/schedulers. 

 Hire and train new drivers as needed (3 classes). 

 Reduce overall preventable accidents rate to 1.25 per 100,000 miles, annualized. 

 Provide nearly 70,000 hours of directly operated service in 2018, including fixed route, 

dial-a-ride, and regional express. 

Major Revenue and Cost Drivers 

 Fare box recovery: Out-of-county fixed route fares, vanpool and worker/driver 

programs 

 Labor, uniforms 

 

Significant Budget Changes from 2017 to 2018:  

Impact on wages and benefits as a result of the: 

 Creating a new Organizational structure to facilitate implementation of our scheduled 

improvements.  This will be accomplished by adding a Technical Support Analyst and 

Outreach/Transit Planner, and eliminating the following positions: Operations 

Coordinator, Operations Compliance Coordinator and the Customer Service 

Representative. 

 

Transit-Community Center (T-CC) Team Mission Statement 

The T-CC team works to continually go beyond expectations to serve our customers through 

ridership support and information, as well as finding innovative ways to professionally meet the 

needs of our community center users and tenants.  

T-CC Team Goals for 2018 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 42



MTA 2018 Draft Budget  16 | P a g e  
 

•         Maximize at T-CC event space usage 
•         Maintain 100% occupancy of lease spaces at the T-CC         
•         Continue to reinforce transit code of conduct culture at the T-CC 
 
Major Expenses 

 No capital expenses for the T-CC facility planned/expected for 2018 
 
Major Revenue 

 Tenant leases 
 Event fees 
 Users fees 

Budget Changes from 2017 to 2018 

• Elimination of T-CC Manager, replaced by Building Superintendent 

• Income from space use agreements will remain consistent in 2018 

• Income from event rentals is expected to increase in 2018 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 43



MTA 2018 Draft Budget  17 | P a g e  
 

2018 Work Items
Completed 

as of 
1st Quarter

2nd 

Quarter

3rd 

Quarter

4th 

Quarter

Review and update Employee 

Handbook based on union contracts
∆

Create Financial Management Manual 

and update Procurement Policy
∆

Install Bus Technology and new 

scheduling software
∆ ∆ ∆

Develop a work plan for parking lot 

upgrades
∆

Accounting Software ∆

Incorporate Remix into service planning ∆

Finalize implementation of 

Performance Measures
∆ ∆ ∆ ∆

Develop a route deviation policy ∆

Consolidated Grant Application 

preparation for 2019-2021
∆ ∆

Install rear destination signs on low 

floor buses
∆

Purchase refurbushed buses for 

Worker/Driver program
∆

Re-train all drivers on a regular basis in 

order to provide consistent service and 

safety
∆ ∆ ∆ ∆

Park & Ride project (through 2023) ∆ ∆ ∆ ∆

T-CC parking lot construction ∆ ∆ ∆ ∆
 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 44



Resolution No. 2017-37 Page 1 of 2 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-37 

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING A BUDGET FOR THE MASON COUNTY 
PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION BENEFIT AREA FOR THE CALENDAR YEAR 

BEGINNING JANUARY 1, 2018. 

 
 WHEREAS, the Mason County Public Transportation Benefit Area dba Mason Transit 
Authority (MTA) has prepared a budget for the 2018 calendar year; and 

 WHEREAS, the Governing Authority of Mason County Public Transportation Benefit 
Area did hold pursuant to law, two duly advertised public hearings on the preliminary budget; 
and 

 WHEREAS, management has recommended the 2018 Budget, a copy of which is 
attached hereto and incorporated by this reference. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MASON TRANSIT PUBLIC 
TRANSPORTATION AREA AUTHORITY BOARD that the attached budget for Mason Transit 
for the year 2018 is hereby adopted. 

 
Adopted this 19th day of December, 2017. 

 
 
______________________________  _____________________________   
Terri Jeffreys, Chair      John Campbell, Vice-Chair 
 
______________________________  _________________________ ___  
Wes Martin, Authority Member   Tracy Moore, Authority Member 
 
______________________________  ____________________________   
Randy Neatherlin, Authority Member   Deborah Petersen, Authority Member 
 
______________________________  ____________________________   
Don Pogreba, Authority Member   Sandy Tarzwell, Authority Member 
     
______________________________ 
Kevin Shutty, Authority Member 
 
APPROVED AS TO CONTENT:            
     Danette Brannin, General Manager 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:           
    Robert W. Johnson, Legal Counsel 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 45



Resolution No. 2017-37 Page 2 of 2 
 

 
 
ATTEST:        DATE:        
           Tracy Becht, Clerk of the Board 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 46



Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item: New Business – Item 1 – Actionable 
Subject:   Surplus Equipment 
Prepared by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Approved by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Date:   December 19, 2017 

Summary for Discussion Purposes: 

Attached is a list of items no longer in use or useful. It is recommended that we surplus 
the assets listed. 

Fiscal Impact: 

Revenue to be determined. 

Staff Recommendation: 

Approve. 

Motion for Consideration: 

Move that the Mason Transit Authority Board approve Resolution No. 2017-38 regarding 
the disposal of the assets as set forth in Exhibit A to that resolution.  

M
ason T

ransit A
uthority B

oard 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 47



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 48



LIST OF ITEMS FOR SURPLUS  

Page 1 of 2

Description Property Tag Serial Number
HP Copier/Printer/Fax 6110 XI 1611 MY455J32F9
HP LasewrJet M1522NF 1531 CND892R083
Sharp FO DC600 Printer 1251 4710028X
Brother MFC-J5520DW 1600 U64006M4F255366
HP LaserJet 1022N 1195 VNB3M24841
HP LaserJet 1022N 1296 VNB3D17672
HP LaserJet M1522NF 540 CND88DD018
HP StorageWorksUltrium 460 N/A HUL5B07206
SonicwaLL TZ105 Access Point N/A COEAE41EDBFO
Cisco Catalyst 3560 503 FOC1112U2FQ
HP Procurve Switch N/A CN0402SO7B
Misc Keyboards and Mice N/A N/A
Misc Cords N/A N/A
Sony CyberShot Camera 1484 N/A
Minota Freedom Camera N/A N/A
Cannon Powershot A560 N/A N/A
22 Very Old Cel Phones N/A N/A
Cell Phone Amp N/A N/A
APC Battery Backups 1450 N/A
APC Battery Backups 1444 N/A
APC Battery Backups N/A N/A
APC Battery Backups N/A N/A
APC Battery Backups 1256 N/A
APC Battery Backups 1234 N/A
APC Battery Backups 1090 N/A
APC Battery Backups 1387 N/A
APC Battery Backups N/A WS9831019449
APC Battery Backups N/A N/A
APC Battery Backups 1495 3B0735X42757
APC Battery Backups 1481 3B0735X42756
Dell Vostro Desktop 1635 6F6MFX1
Dell Vostro Desktop 1466 8RAZCX1
Dell Vostro Desktop 1310 BQ96VR1
Dell Vostro Desktop 1340 BRPCXR1
HP Compaq Desktop 1210 2UB44004WH
Dell Optiplex 330 Desktop 1750 HXVGDF1
Dell Optiplex 380 Desktop 1263 4FDMNN1
Compaq Desktop 1589 2VA2480PXJ
Linksys Switch N/A C2125109639
Belkin Switch N/A C400102772
Babble Switch N/A N/A
SOHO Switch N/A DB0205044133
Sonicwall Switch N/A 0017C529DFF8
Belkin Switch 1025 2993313670
Psion Barcode Scanner N/A N/A
Dell Optiplex 380 Desktop N/A H3V8GA01

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 49



LIST OF ITEMS FOR SURPLUS  

Page 2 of 2

Description Property Tag Serial Number
Dell Optiplex 380 Desktop 2377 DFS6CPI
SonicPoint WIFI Access Point N/A 0017C5BFC597
SonicPoint WIFI Access Point N/A 0017C5A4B443
Misc UPS Batteries N/A N/A
Sanyo VHS Player N/A 30335919
Hannus G 15" Monitor 1069 3B0735X42756
HP 15" Monitor 1161 CNB42209FT
Accer 15" Monitor N/A 61603007840
Compaq 15" Monitor 1055 TW240PA135
HP 2335 23" Monitor 1280/1451 CNP51820WX
Compaq 15" Monitor 1061 TW241PB645
Hannus G 15" Monitor 1756 651GT3JY13177
HP Color LaserJet 5500DN 1044 JPCY001064
Hannus G 15" Monitor 1694 706GJ3JY02669
Compaq 15" Monitor 1086 TW241PB665
Compaq 15" Monitor TW241PB507
Compaq 15" Monitor 1289 HU246PA124
Dell 15" Monitor 1476 CNOYGP397287246GCEDPL
Hannus G 15" Monitor 1383 651GT3JY09324
HP Procurve Switch 2524 SG340NV219
3 Com Switch 02007YBV107D1F00
HP Procurve Switch 2610-24 CN031ZR0GK
Sonic Wall 2400 0017C5C16760
HP Procurve 2524 1031 SG24061464
HP Server USE801N4M5
Dell Poweredge 1950 GC2FLK1
Dell Poweredge R410 CN0K03GJ42940
ShoreTel IP Phone 265 1216 00104916CAA8FSHR106
Three (3) Crescore Stainless Steel 
food rack warmers

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 50



Resolution No. 2017-38 Page 1 of 2 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-38 

A RESOLUTION OF THE MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY BOARD 
AUTHORIZING THE DISPOSAL OF SURPLUS EQUIPMENT. 

 WHEREAS, Mason Transit Authority has adopted policies to ensure the fair, impartial, 
responsible and practical disposition of surplus property of MTA and such policies ensure that 
the public shall receive the greatest possible value for such items; and 

 WHEREAS, certain equipment as set forth in Exhibit A attached hereto have been 
deemed no longer useful; and 

 WHEREAS, there is value to these items and by the disposal of such assets, MTA will 
be able to use the funds for other current needs of MTA; 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY 
BOARD that the items identified on Exhibit A attached hereto be deemed surplus and that the 
items be sold pursuant to MTA’s disposition of surplus property policy. 

 
Adopted this 19th day of December, 2017. 

 
 
______________________________  _____________________________ 
Terri Drexler, Chair      John Campbell, Vice-Chair  
 
______________________________  ____________________________ 
Wes Martin, Authority Member   Tracy Moore, Authority Member 
 
______________________________  ____________________________ 
Randy Neatherlin, Authority Member  Deborah Petersen, Authority Member 
 
______________________________  ____________________________ 
Don Pogreba, Authority Member   Sandy Tarzwell, Authority Member 
     
______________________________ 
Kevin Shutty, Authority Member 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO CONTENT:    _______    ______ 
          Danette Brannin, General Manager 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 51



Resolution No. 2017-38 Page 2 of 2 
 

 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:        ______ 
    Robert W. Johnson, Legal Counsel 
 
 
ATTEST:        DATE:    ______ 
           Tracy Becht, Clerk of the Board 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 52



EXHIBIT A TO RESOLUTION NO. 2017-38
LIST OF ITEMS FOR SURPLUS 

Page 1 of 2

Description Property Tag Serial Number
HP Copier/Printer/Fax 6110 XI 1611 MY455J32F9
HP LasewrJet M1522NF 1531 CND892R083
Sharp FO DC600 Printer 1251 4710028X
Brother MFC-J5520DW 1600 U64006M4F255366
HP LaserJet 1022N 1195 VNB3M24841
HP LaserJet 1022N 1296 VNB3D17672
HP LaserJet M1522NF 540 CND88DD018
HP StorageWorksUltrium 460 N/A HUL5B07206
SonicwaLL TZ105 Access Point N/A COEAE41EDBFO
Cisco Catalyst 3560 503 FOC1112U2FQ
HP Procurve Switch N/A CN0402SO7B
Misc Keyboards and Mice N/A N/A
Misc Cords N/A N/A
Sony CyberShot Camera 1484 N/A
Minota Freedom Camera N/A N/A
Cannon Powershot A560 N/A N/A
22 Very Old Cel Phones N/A N/A
Cell Phone Amp N/A N/A
APC Battery Backups 1450 N/A
APC Battery Backups 1444 N/A
APC Battery Backups N/A N/A
APC Battery Backups N/A N/A
APC Battery Backups 1256 N/A
APC Battery Backups 1234 N/A
APC Battery Backups 1090 N/A
APC Battery Backups 1387 N/A
APC Battery Backups N/A WS9831019449
APC Battery Backups N/A N/A
APC Battery Backups 1495 3B0735X42757
APC Battery Backups 1481 3B0735X42756
Dell Vostro Desktop 1635 6F6MFX1
Dell Vostro Desktop 1466 8RAZCX1
Dell Vostro Desktop 1310 BQ96VR1
Dell Vostro Desktop 1340 BRPCXR1
HP Compaq Desktop 1210 2UB44004WH
Dell Optiplex 330 Desktop 1750 HXVGDF1
Dell Optiplex 380 Desktop 1263 4FDMNN1
Compaq Desktop 1589 2VA2480PXJ
Linksys Switch N/A C2125109639
Belkin Switch N/A C400102772
Babble Switch N/A N/A
SOHO Switch N/A DB0205044133
Sonicwall Switch N/A 0017C529DFF8
Belkin Switch 1025 2993313670
Psion Barcode Scanner N/A N/A

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 53



EXHIBIT A TO RESOLUTION NO. 2017-38
LIST OF ITEMS FOR SURPLUS 

Page 2 of 2

Description Property Tag Serial Number
Dell Optiplex 380 Desktop N/A H3V8GA01
Dell Optiplex 380 Desktop 2377 DFS6CPI
SonicPoint WIFI Access Point N/A 0017C5BFC597
SonicPoint WIFI Access Point N/A 0017C5A4B443
Misc UPS Batteries N/A N/A
Sanyo VHS Player N/A 30335919
Hannus G 15" Monitor 1069 3B0735X42756
HP 15" Monitor 1161 CNB42209FT
Accer 15" Monitor N/A 61603007840
Compaq 15" Monitor 1055 TW240PA135
HP 2335 23" Monitor 1280/1451 CNP51820WX
Compaq 15" Monitor 1061 TW241PB645
Hannus G 15" Monitor 1756 651GT3JY13177
HP Color LaserJet 5500DN 1044 JPCY001064
Hannus G 15" Monitor 1694 706GJ3JY02669
Compaq 15" Monitor 1086 TW241PB665
Compaq 15" Monitor TW241PB507
Compaq 15" Monitor 1289 HU246PA124
Dell 15" Monitor 1476 CNOYGP397287246GCEDPL
Hannus G 15" Monitor 1383 651GT3JY09324
HP Procurve Switch 2524 SG340NV219
3 Com Switch 02007YBV107D1F00
HP Procurve Switch 2610-24 CN031ZR0GK
Sonic Wall 2400 0017C5C16760
HP Procurve 2524 1031 SG24061464
HP Server USE801N4M5
Dell Poweredge 1950 GC2FLK1
Dell Poweredge R410 CN0K03GJ42940
ShoreTel IP Phone 265 1216 00104916CAA8FSHR106
Three (3) Crescore Stainless Steel 
food rack warmers

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 54



Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item:   New Business – Item 2 – Actionable 
Subject:    Amendment to ByLaws 
Prepared by:  Tracy Becht, Clerk of the Authority Board 
Approved by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Date:    December 19, 2017 
 
 
Summary for Discussion Purposes: 
 
Following the recent changes recommended by the Board Composition Review 
Committee and resulting resolution approvals by Mason County and the City of Shelton, 
it is now necessary to make appropriate changes to the MTA ByLaws. 
 
In summary, the changes relate to the following sections:  Background; Authority Board 
Composition; Quorum; and Terms of the Officers – Chair and Vice Chair. The quorum 
section has been amended to provide for an adjustment should the MTA Board find 
itself with a number of vacancies. The Terms section has been amended to provide for 
the ability to delay the election of officers in one month increments to provide for 
special circumstances, such as the Board Composition review process, which is the case 
this year. 
 
A track changes version is included for ease in determining where the changes have 
been made. 
 
Legal Counsel has reviewed and approved the amendments. 
 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
None. 
 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
Approve. 
 
Motion for Consideration: 
 
Move that the Mason County Public Transportation Area Authority Board approve 
Resolution No. 2017-39 and the attached ByLaws, as amended.  
 

M
ason T

ransit A
uthority B

oard 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 55



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 56



Mason Transit Authority Bylaws Page 1 

MASON COUNTY PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION BENEFIT AREA 
 DOING BUSINESS AS MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY  

BYLAWS 

I. BACKGROUND

II. NAME/OFFICES

III. POWERS, RIGHTS, RESPONSIBILITIES

IV. AUTHORITY COMPOSITION
4.1 Board Composition 
4.2 Non-Voting Labor Representative 

V. MEETINGS
5.1 Regular Meetings 
5.2 Special Meetings 
5.3 Attendance at Meetings 
5.4 Public Hearings 
5.5 Meeting Notices 
5.6 Quorum 
5.7 Chair 
5.8 Conduct of Meetings 
5.9 Order of Business and Agenda 
5.1 Voting/Authority Decisions 
5.11 Meeting Minutes 
5.12 Resolutions 
5.13 Compensation 

VI. OFFICERS – CHAIR AND VICE CHAIR
6.1 Election 
6.2 Term 
6.3 Duties 

VII. COMMITTEES
7.1 Authority Committees 
7.2 Special Appointments 

VIII. APPOINTED POSITIONS
8.1 General Manager 
8.2 Clerk of the Board 
8.3 Legal Counsel 

IX. GENERAL PROVISIONS
9.1 Checks
9.2 Notes
9.3 Other Legal Documents

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 57



 

Mason Transit Authority Bylaws Page 2 
 

IX. GENERAL PROVISIONS (cont’d) 
9.4 Deposits 
9.5 Gifts 
9.6 Travel 
9.7 Repealer 

 
X. AMENDMENTS 

 
 

I. BACKGROUND 
 

The Mason County Public Transportation Benefit Area is the public 
transportation agency which serves the citizens of Mason County including 
the only incorporated city, Shelton, Washington. 
 
In 1989 representatives from the jurisdictions of Mason County and the City 
of Shelton met in a public transportation improvement conference and 
formally established the Mason County Public Transportation Benefit Area 
under the laws of the state of Washington (RCW 36.57A).  In November 1991 
voters approved an initiative allowing for the collection of a sales tax to 
support public transportation. 
 
In February, 2008 representatives from the jurisdictions of Mason County and 
the City of Shelton met in a Public Transportation Improvement Conference 
(PTIC) to review the composition of the Board, and adopted a resolution 
changing the composition to a nine member Board.  
 
In November, 2017, representatives from the jurisdictions of Mason County 
and the City of Shelton met in a Public Transportation Improvement 
Conference (PTIC) to review the composition of the Board, and put forth 
recommendations to the County and City Commissioners that the Board 
composition be as follows: 
 
 Three (3) Mason County Commissioners; 
 
 One (1) City of Shelton Councilmember; and 
 
 Five (5) members who shall be elected officials selected by the Mason 

County Commissioners with the goal of seeking equal voting 
representation among the County Commissioners Districts. The 
recommendation was approved by Mason County and the City of Shelton 
pursuant to Resolutions Nos. 71-17 and 1112-1217, respectively. 

 
 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 58



 

Mason Transit Authority Bylaws Page 3 
 

II. NAME/OFFICES 
 

The name of the public transportation benefit area shall be Mason County 
Public Transportation Benefit Area, doing business as Mason Transit 
Authority.  The governing board of which shall be called the Mason Transit 
Authority Board hereinafter referred to as “Authority Board”.  The principal 
address of Mason Transit Authority shall be790 East Johns Prairie Road, 
Shelton, Washington.  The Mason Transit Authority may have such other 
offices, within Mason County, as the Authority Board may determine from 
time to time. 
 
 

III. POWERS 
 

The Authority shall be responsible for establishing and monitoring the policies 
of the Mason Transit Authority, its budget and its service levels.  The 
Authority Board shall also oversee the performance of the General Manager 
of Mason Transit Authority.  Nothing in these bylaws is intended to limit the 
general powers of the Authority Board; the Authority Board retains all powers 
granted to it under the laws of the State of Washington. 
 
 

IV. AUTHORITY BOARD COMPOSITION 
 

4.1  Board Composition.  Effective January 1, 2018, Tthe Authority 
Board will consist of a governing board of nine (9) voting members and one 
(1) who is a non-voting labor organization representative, set forth as 
follows: 
 
• Three (3) elected members representing Mason County Commissioners, 
• One (1) elected member representing the City of Shelton 

Commissionersouncil, 
• Five (5) members who shall be elected officials selected by the Mason 

County Commissioners with the goal of seeking equal voting 
representation among the County Commissioners Districts; and  

• One (1) elected member representing the Hood Canal School District, 
• One (1) elected member representing the Shelton School District, 
• One (1) elected member representing the Mary M. Knight School District 

or Southside School District serving alternating two year terms, starting 
with Mary M. Knight School District in 2014-2015, 

• One (1) elected member representing the Grapeview School District or 
Pioneer School District serving alternating two year terms, starting with 
Pioneer School District in 2014-2015, 

• One (1) elected representing the North Mason School District, 
• One (1) ex officio non-voting labor union representative pursuant to 

Section 4.2 below. 

Formatted: Keep with next, Keep lines together

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 59



 

Mason Transit Authority Bylaws Page 4 
 

 
The members of the Authority Board shall serve four year terms consistent 
with their terms in the city, county or district positions.. Vacancies through 
resignation or disqualification shall be filled by the County Commission to fill 
the unexpired term. Mason County shall provide to the Clerk of the Board 
minutes of the County Commissioner meeting documenting the motion or 
adoption of a resolution of the elected official selected by the County 
Commissioners to serve on the Authority Board.  
 
4.2  Non-Voting Labor Representative. In accordance with revisions 
made to RCW 36.57A.050, there shall be one (1) non-voting labor 
representative recommended by the labor organization representing the 
public transportation employees. The non-voting member shall comply with 
all governing bylaws and policies of Mason Transit Authority. The Chair or 
Vice Chair of the Mason Transit Authority Board will exclude the non-voting 
member from attending any executive session held for the purpose of 
discussing negotiations with labor organizations. The Chair or Vice Chair shall 
also have the ability to exclude the non-voting member from attending any 
other executive session. 
   

V. MEETINGS 
 

5.1  Regular Meetings.  All meetings of the Authority Board shall be open 
to the public except to the extent that executive sessions are authorized by 
law.  Regular meetings of the Authority Board will be held once each month 
at designated locations at a time and date established by resolution. 
 
5.2  Special Meetings.  Special meetings may be called at any time by the 
Chair or by a majority of the whole Authority Board, provided that each 
member receives personally or by mail written notice of the date, time and 
place of the meeting and the matters to be taken at the meeting at least 24 
hours in advance. 
 
5.3  Attendance at Meetings.  Board members may participate 
electronically in all or part of a board meeting, including voting if: 
1)  All persons participating in the meeting are able to hear each other at the 
same time, such as by the use of speaker-phone or computer internet 
conferencing technology; and 
2)  The board member participating electronically shall have reviewed all of 
the applicable material and participated in the relevant portion of the board 
meeting regarding the topic to which the board member is voting on.  
 
5.4 Public Hearings.  Public hearings may be scheduled by the Authority 
Board at such time and at such place as the Authority Board determines to be 
appropriate to specifically solicit, public comment on certain issues.  Such 
issues may include, but are not necessarily limited to, the following: 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 60



 

Mason Transit Authority Bylaws Page 5 
 

• a change in any transit fare 
• a substantial change in transit service 
• a presentation of the annual budget 
• Federal Transit Administration grant applications 

 
Public notice shall be given at least ten (10) days in advance unless otherwise 
required by Federal or State regulations. 
  
 
5.5  Meeting Notices.  Notices of changes in the time or place of regular 
meetings or the call for a special meeting or public hearing will be provided to 
the official local newspaper(s) of general circulation and to any publications, 
television cable access or radio stations which have on file with the Clerk of 
the Board a written request to be so notified.  Such call or notice shall be 
delivered personally or by mail at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting 
and shall specify the time and place of the meeting and the business to be 
transacted, provided that notice shall be given at least ten (10) days in 
advance of public hearings, unless otherwise required. 
 
The Shelton-Mason County Journal is designated as the official newspaper of 
the Authority Board for the purpose of publication of legal notices and 
dissemination of public information announcements. 
 
5.6  Quorum.  At all meetings of the Authority Board, five (5) voting 
members of the Authority Board shall constitute a quorum for the transaction 
of business, unless there are position vacancies, in which case a majority of 
the filled positions shall constitute a quorum. 
 
5.7  Chair.  The Chair shall open and preside at all meetings of the Authority 
Board.  In the event of the Chair’s absence or inability to preside, the Vice 
Chair shall assume the duties of presiding over the meetings of the Authority 
Board; provided, however, if the Chair is to be permanently unable to 
preside, the Authority Board shall select a new Chair for the remainder of the 
Chair’s term. In the absence of both the Chair and the Vice Chair, the 
member having served on the Authority Board the longest shall serve as 
acting Chair. 
 
5.8  Conduct of Meetings.  Unless otherwise governed by the provisions of 
these Bylaws, the laws of the State of Washington or Authority Board 
resolution, Roberts Rules of Order (newly revised) shall govern the conduct of 
the Authority’s meetings.  It is the intent of the Authority to conduct the 
business in an open environment consistent with the Washington State Open 
Public Meetings Act. 
 
5.9  Order of Business and Agenda.  An order of business at regular and 
special Authority Board meetings shall be established on a meeting-by-

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 61



 

Mason Transit Authority Bylaws Page 6 
 

meeting basis according to the issues requiring discussion in any particular 
month.  Prior to the regular meeting, the Clerk of the Board will confer with 
the Chair on items of discussion.  The Clerk will prepare a written agenda 
including appropriate attachments, and will distribute to all members as soon 
as possible prior to the meeting but not less than 48 hours before the 
meeting. 
 
5.10  Voting/Authority Decisions.  Every voting member of the Authority 
Board shall be entitled to one vote on all issues before the Authority Board.  
All members present may vote or abstain; and abstention shall be recorded 
but will not be counted.  The act of the majority of the members present at a 
meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the act of the Authority Board, 
unless a greater number is required by law.  Any member may require that 
the vote of each member on a particular matter be recorded in the minutes, 
in which case a roll call will be taken. 
 
5.11  Meeting Minutes.  The proceedings of all Authority Board meetings 
and public hearings shall be recorded and maintained and shall contain an 
accurate accounting of the Authority Board’s official action with reference to 
all matters properly before it and any public comments made.  Minutes of the 
meetings shall be provided to each Authority Board member as soon as 
practicable following each meeting.  The official copy for each meeting shall 
be approved by the Authority Board and signed by the Chair and the Clerk of 
the Board.  The official minutes of the meeting shall become a part of the 
permanent records file, maintained by the Clerk. 
 
5.12  Resolutions.  The Authority Board may require that certain actions be 
documented by way of a formal resolution, which shall be prepared by the 
Clerk and shall be approved as to form by the Legal Counsel.  Resolutions 
shall also be signed by the Chair and will be numbered, incorporated in the 
minutes, and made part of the permanent records file. 
 
5.13  Compensation.  Members of the Authority Board and non-voting 
labor representative shall be paid compensation for attendance at regular and 
special Authority Board meetings and at any official Authority Board 
Committee meetings, not to exceed 36 such meetings per year, unless 
authorized by the Board and in no event more than 75.  Compensation shall 
be no more than the maximum rate authorized by RCW 36.57A.050 as 
presently enacted or as may be hereafter amended; provided that 
compensation shall not be paid to an elected official who is receiving regular 
full-time compensation from such government for attending such meetings.  
Any change to this rate shall require a two-thirds majority vote by the 
Authority Board. 
 
 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 62



 

Mason Transit Authority Bylaws Page 7 
 

VI. OFFICERS – CHAIR AND VICE CHAIR 
 

6.1  Election.  The Chair and Vice Chair shall be members of the Authority 
Board elected by the members by majority vote at a regular or special 
meeting of the Authority.  
 
6.2  Term.  The Chair and Vice Chair shall be elected from among the 
members at the first meeting in December of each year, unless it is 
determined by the Authority Board that it is in the best interest of the 
Authority Board the election should be extended in one month increments.  
In the event either becomes vacant, the members shall elect a new officer at 
the next regular meeting to serve until the next December meeting. 
 
6.3  Duties.  In addition to the powers and the duties granted by these 
Bylaws, the Chair shall have such other powers and duties as prescribed by 
law or by resolution of the Authority Board. 
 
In the absence of the Chair, the Vice Chair shall perform the duties of the 
Chair, and when so acting, shall have all the powers of and be subject to all 
the restrictions upon the Chair.  The Vice Chair shall perform other duties as 
may be assigned to him or her by the Chair or by the Authority. 
 
 

VII. COMMITTEES  
 
7.1  Authority Board Committees.  In order to better facilitate the work of 
the Authority Board, the Authority Board may establish standing and/or ad 
hoc committees to address specific issues.  Each committee shall be 
composed of not more than three (3) Authority members; one member 
representing the City of Shelton, one member representing Mason County, 
and one member representing a District.  Committee Chairs and committee 
members may be designated by the Authority Chair, subject to confirmation 
by the full Authority Board.  To the extent possible, committee reports to the 
full Authority Board shall be in writing. 
 
The terms of the standing committees will coincide with the terms of the 
Authority Board officers (which recommence annually in December) at which 
time the Authority Board will review the responsibilities of the committees.  In 
the event that new committee assignments are not made at the time 
Authority Board officers are elected, the incumbent committee members shall 
serve until replacements are appointed. 
 
7.2  Special Appointments.  The Chairman may appoint Authority Board 
members to special intra- and interagency committees and councils as 
appropriate.  
 

Formatted: Keep with next, Keep lines together

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 63



 

Mason Transit Authority Bylaws Page 8 
 

These special appointments will be reviewed annually to coincide with the 
terms of the Authority Board officers and the review of Authority Board 
committees. 
 
 

VIII. APPOINTED POSITIONS 
 
8.1  General Manager.  The Authority Board shall appoint a General 
Manager who shall be responsible for the administrative functions of the 
Mason Transit Authority and shall have such power and perform such duties 
as shall be prescribed by law and action of the Authority Board. 
 
8.2  Clerk of the Authority Board.  The Authority shall appoint a Clerk of 
the Authority Board who shall perform all duties as provided in these Bylaws 
and shall maintain all records of the Authority Board.  The General Manager 
shall serve as Clerk unless someone else has been specifically appointed. 
 
8.3  Legal Counsel.  Principal Legal Counsel shall be appointed by and shall 
serve at the pleasure of the Authority Board. 
 
 

IX. GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 

9.1  Checks.  All disbursements of the Mason Transit Authority shall be by 
check drawn by the appropriate Audit Officer as per Washington State law or 
as otherwise directed by Authority resolution. 
 
9.2  Notes.  All notes or other evidence of indebtedness, including bills, 
issued or incurred in the name of the Mason Transit Authority shall be signed 
by such officer, member, agent or employee of the Mason Transit Authority 
and in such manner as shall from time to time to be determined by Authority 
Board resolution. 
 
9.3  Other Legal Documents.  The Authority may authorize any officer or 
officers, agent or agents of the Mason Transit Authority, in addition to the 
officers so authorized by resolution, to enter into any contract or execute and 
deliver any instrument in the name of and behalf of the Mason Transit 
Authority and such authorization may be general and or may be confined to 
specific instances.  All written contractual obligations of the Mason Transit 
Authority, including but not limited to, contracts, leases and assignments, are 
to be maintained by the Clerk of the Board. 
 
9.4  Deposits.  All funds of the Mason Transit Authority shall be deposited in 
the appropriate accounts established by resolution.  The County Treasurer 
shall be the custodian of the funds, until such time as the Authority Board 
appropriates its own administrative director, and is, subject to approval by 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 64



 

Mason Transit Authority Bylaws Page 9 
 

Authority Board resolution, authorized to invest such funds in the manner 
provided by law. 
 
9.5  Gifts.  The Authority Board may accept on behalf of Mason Transit 
Authority any contribution, gift or bequest (as long as conditions are 
consistent with state law), for any purpose of the Mason Transit Authority. 
 
9.6  Travel.  Members of the Authority Board, in order to properly and fully 
conduct official Mason Transit Authority business, may travel and incur 
expenses.    Authority Board members will receive reimbursement for 
reasonable expenses incurred while engaged in official business in 
accordance with RCW 36.57A.050 and the adopted travel policy which applies 
to all Mason Transit Authority employees.  Out-of-state travel by Authority 
Board members will be authorized by the Chair subject to annual budget 
restraints. 
 
9.7  Repealer.  The terms of these bylaws, as established by resolution, 
shall supersede all prior resolutions in conflict therewith. 
 
 

X. AMENDMENTS 
 

These bylaws may be amended by a majority vote at any meeting of the 
Authority Board, provided that copies of the proposed revisions or 
amendments shall have been made available to each Authority Board 
member as part of the agenda of the meeting at which proposed revisions or 
amendments are to be acted upon. These bylaws are adopted by Authority 
Board resolution; therefore, any amendments hereto shall be by that same 
instrument. 
 
 
ADOPTED: 12/09/91   AMENDED:  04/17/2012 
AMENDED:   11/20/07   AMENDED:  12/17/2013 
AMENDED:   02/28/08   AMENDED:  09/20/2016 
AMENDED: 07/13/10   [AMENDED: 12/19/2017] 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 65



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 66



Mason Transit Authority Bylaws Page 1 

MASON COUNTY PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION BENEFIT AREA 
 DOING BUSINESS AS MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY  

BYLAWS 

I. BACKGROUND

II. NAME/OFFICES

III. POWERS, RIGHTS, RESPONSIBILITIES

IV. AUTHORITY COMPOSITION
4.1 Board Composition 
4.2 Non-Voting Labor Representative 

V. MEETINGS
5.1 Regular Meetings 
5.2 Special Meetings 
5.3 Attendance at Meetings 
5.4 Public Hearings 
5.5 Meeting Notices 
5.6 Quorum 
5.7 Chair 
5.8 Conduct of Meetings 
5.9 Order of Business and Agenda 
5.1 Voting/Authority Decisions 
5.11 Meeting Minutes 
5.12 Resolutions 
5.13 Compensation 

VI. OFFICERS – CHAIR AND VICE CHAIR
6.1 Election 
6.2 Term 
6.3 Duties 

VII. COMMITTEES
7.1 Authority Committees 
7.2 Special Appointments 

VIII. APPOINTED POSITIONS
8.1 General Manager 
8.2 Clerk of the Board 
8.3 Legal Counsel 

IX. GENERAL PROVISIONS
9.1 Checks 
9.2 Notes 
9.3 Other Legal Documents 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 67



 

Mason Transit Authority Bylaws Page 2 
 

IX. GENERAL PROVISIONS (cont’d) 
9.4 Deposits 
9.5 Gifts 
9.6 Travel 
9.7 Repealer 

 
X. AMENDMENTS 

 
 

I. BACKGROUND 
 

The Mason County Public Transportation Benefit Area is the public 
transportation agency which serves the citizens of Mason County including 
the only incorporated city, Shelton, Washington. 
 
In 1989 representatives from the jurisdictions of Mason County and the City 
of Shelton met in a public transportation improvement conference and 
formally established the Mason County Public Transportation Benefit Area 
under the laws of the state of Washington (RCW 36.57A).  In November 1991 
voters approved an initiative allowing for the collection of a sales tax to 
support public transportation. 
 
In February, 2008 representatives from the jurisdictions of Mason County and 
the City of Shelton met in a Public Transportation Improvement Conference 
(PTIC) to review the composition of the Board, and adopted a resolution 
changing the composition to a nine member Board.  
 
In November, 2017, representatives from the jurisdictions of Mason County 
and the City of Shelton met in a Public Transportation Improvement 
Conference (PTIC) to review the composition of the Board, and put forth 
recommendations to the County and City Commissioners that the Board 
composition be as follows: 
 
 Three (3) Mason County Commissioners; 
 
 One (1) City of Shelton Councilmember; and 
 
 Five (5) members who shall be elected officials selected by the Mason 

County Commissioners with the goal of seeking equal voting 
representation among the County Commissioner Districts. The 
recommendation was approved by Mason County and the City of Shelton 
pursuant to Resolutions Nos. 71-17 and 1112-1217, respectively. 

 
 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 68



 

Mason Transit Authority Bylaws Page 3 
 

II. NAME/OFFICES 
 

The name of the public transportation benefit area shall be Mason County 
Public Transportation Benefit Area, doing business as Mason Transit 
Authority.  The governing board of which shall be called the Mason Transit 
Authority Board hereinafter referred to as “Authority Board”.  The principal 
address of Mason Transit Authority shall be790 East Johns Prairie Road, 
Shelton, Washington.  The Mason Transit Authority may have such other 
offices, within Mason County, as the Authority Board may determine from 
time to time. 
 
 

III. POWERS 
 

The Authority shall be responsible for establishing and monitoring the policies 
of the Mason Transit Authority, its budget and its service levels.  The 
Authority Board shall also oversee the performance of the General Manager 
of Mason Transit Authority.  Nothing in these bylaws is intended to limit the 
general powers of the Authority Board; the Authority Board retains all powers 
granted to it under the laws of the State of Washington. 
 
 

IV. AUTHORITY BOARD COMPOSITION 
 

4.1  Board Composition.  Effective January 1, 2018, the Authority 
Board will consist of a governing board of nine (9) voting members and one 
(1) who is a non-voting labor organization representative, set forth as 
follows: 
 
• Three (3) elected members representing Mason County Commissioners, 
• One (1) elected member representing the City of Shelton Council, 
• Five (5) members who shall be elected officials selected by the Mason 

County Commissioners with the goal of seeking equal voting 
representation among the County Commissioner Districts; and  

•  
• One (1) ex officio non-voting labor union representative pursuant to 

Section 4.2 below. 
 
The members of the Authority Board shall serve four year terms.. Vacancies 
through resignation or disqualification shall be filled by the County 
Commission to fill the unexpired term. Mason County shall provide to the 
Clerk of the Board minutes of the County Commissioner meeting documenting 
the motion or adoption of a resolution of the elected official selected by the 
County Commissioners to serve on the Authority Board. 
 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 69



 

Mason Transit Authority Bylaws Page 4 
 

4.2  Non-Voting Labor Representative. In accordance with revisions 
made to RCW 36.57A.050, there shall be one (1) non-voting labor 
representative recommended by the labor organization representing the 
public transportation employees. The non-voting member shall comply with 
all governing bylaws and policies of Mason Transit Authority. The Chair or 
Vice Chair of the Mason Transit Authority Board will exclude the non-voting 
member from attending any executive session held for the purpose of 
discussing negotiations with labor organizations. The Chair or Vice Chair shall 
also have the ability to exclude the non-voting member from attending any 
other executive session. 
   

V. MEETINGS 
 

5.1  Regular Meetings.  All meetings of the Authority Board shall be open 
to the public except to the extent that executive sessions are authorized by 
law.  Regular meetings of the Authority Board will be held once each month 
at designated locations at a time and date established by resolution. 
 
5.2  Special Meetings.  Special meetings may be called at any time by the 
Chair or by a majority of the whole Authority Board, provided that each 
member receives personally or by mail written notice of the date, time and 
place of the meeting and the matters to be taken at the meeting at least 24 
hours in advance. 
 
5.3  Attendance at Meetings.  Board members may participate 
electronically in all or part of a board meeting, including voting if: 
1)  All persons participating in the meeting are able to hear each other at the 
same time, such as by the use of speaker-phone or computer internet 
conferencing technology; and 
2)  The board member participating electronically shall have reviewed all of 
the applicable material and participated in the relevant portion of the board 
meeting regarding the topic to which the board member is voting on.  
 
5.4 Public Hearings.  Public hearings may be scheduled by the Authority 
Board at such time and at such place as the Authority Board determines to be 
appropriate to specifically solicit, public comment on certain issues.  Such 
issues may include, but are not necessarily limited to, the following: 

• a change in any transit fare 
• a substantial change in transit service 
• a presentation of the annual budget 
• Federal Transit Administration grant applications 

 
Public notice shall be given at least ten (10) days in advance unless otherwise 
required by Federal or State regulations. 
  
 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 70



 

Mason Transit Authority Bylaws Page 5 
 

5.5  Meeting Notices.  Notices of changes in the time or place of regular 
meetings or the call for a special meeting or public hearing will be provided to 
the official local newspaper(s) of general circulation and to any publications, 
television cable access or radio stations which have on file with the Clerk of 
the Board a written request to be so notified.  Such call or notice shall be 
delivered personally or by mail at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting 
and shall specify the time and place of the meeting and the business to be 
transacted, provided that notice shall be given at least ten (10) days in 
advance of public hearings, unless otherwise required. 
 
The Shelton-Mason County Journal is designated as the official newspaper of 
the Authority Board for the purpose of publication of legal notices and 
dissemination of public information announcements. 
 
5.6  Quorum.  At all meetings of the Authority Board, five (5) voting 
members of the Authority Board shall constitute a quorum for the transaction 
of business, unless there are position vacancies, in which case a majority of 
the filled positions shall constitute a quorum. 
 
5.7  Chair.  The Chair shall open and preside at all meetings of the Authority 
Board.  In the event of the Chair’s absence or inability to preside, the Vice 
Chair shall assume the duties of presiding over the meetings of the Authority 
Board; provided, however, if the Chair is to be permanently unable to 
preside, the Authority Board shall select a new Chair for the remainder of the 
Chair’s term. In the absence of both the Chair and the Vice Chair, the 
member having served on the Authority Board the longest shall serve as 
acting Chair. 
 
5.8  Conduct of Meetings.  Unless otherwise governed by the provisions of 
these Bylaws, the laws of the State of Washington or Authority Board 
resolution, Roberts Rules of Order (newly revised) shall govern the conduct of 
the Authority’s meetings.  It is the intent of the Authority to conduct the 
business in an open environment consistent with the Washington State Open 
Public Meetings Act. 
 
5.9  Order of Business and Agenda.  An order of business at regular and 
special Authority Board meetings shall be established on a meeting-by-
meeting basis according to the issues requiring discussion in any particular 
month.  Prior to the regular meeting, the Clerk of the Board will confer with 
the Chair on items of discussion.  The Clerk will prepare a written agenda 
including appropriate attachments, and will distribute to all members as soon 
as possible prior to the meeting but not less than 48 hours before the 
meeting. 
 
5.10  Voting/Authority Decisions.  Every voting member of the Authority 
Board shall be entitled to one vote on all issues before the Authority Board.  

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 71



 

Mason Transit Authority Bylaws Page 6 
 

All members present may vote or abstain; and abstention shall be recorded 
but will not be counted.  The act of the majority of the members present at a 
meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the act of the Authority Board, 
unless a greater number is required by law.  Any member may require that 
the vote of each member on a particular matter be recorded in the minutes, 
in which case a roll call will be taken. 
 
5.11  Meeting Minutes.  The proceedings of all Authority Board meetings 
and public hearings shall be recorded and maintained and shall contain an 
accurate accounting of the Authority Board’s official action with reference to 
all matters properly before it and any public comments made.  Minutes of the 
meetings shall be provided to each Authority Board member as soon as 
practicable following each meeting.  The official copy for each meeting shall 
be approved by the Authority Board and signed by the Chair and the Clerk of 
the Board.  The official minutes of the meeting shall become a part of the 
permanent records file, maintained by the Clerk. 
 
5.12  Resolutions.  The Authority Board may require that certain actions be 
documented by way of a formal resolution, which shall be prepared by the 
Clerk and shall be approved as to form by the Legal Counsel.  Resolutions 
shall also be signed by the Chair and will be numbered, incorporated in the 
minutes, and made part of the permanent records file. 
 
5.13  Compensation.  Members of the Authority Board and non-voting 
labor representative shall be paid compensation for attendance at regular and 
special Authority Board meetings and at any official Authority Board 
Committee meetings, not to exceed 36 such meetings per year, unless 
authorized by the Board and in no event more than 75.  Compensation shall 
be no more than the maximum rate authorized by RCW 36.57A.050 as 
presently enacted or as may be hereafter amended; provided that 
compensation shall not be paid to an elected official who is receiving regular 
full-time compensation from such government for attending such meetings.  
Any change to this rate shall require a two-thirds majority vote by the 
Authority Board. 
 
 

VI. OFFICERS – CHAIR AND VICE CHAIR 
 

6.1  Election.  The Chair and Vice Chair shall be members of the Authority 
Board elected by the members by majority vote at a regular or special 
meeting of the Authority.  
 
6.2  Term.  The Chair and Vice Chair shall be elected from among the 
members at the first meeting in December of each year, unless it is 
determined by the Authority Board that it is in the best interest of the 
Authority Board the election should be extended in one month increments.  

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 72



 

Mason Transit Authority Bylaws Page 7 
 

In the event either becomes vacant, the members shall elect a new officer at 
the next regular meeting to serve until the next December meeting. 
 
6.3  Duties.  In addition to the powers and the duties granted by these 
Bylaws, the Chair shall have such other powers and duties as prescribed by 
law or by resolution of the Authority Board. 
 
In the absence of the Chair, the Vice Chair shall perform the duties of the 
Chair, and when so acting, shall have all the powers of and be subject to all 
the restrictions upon the Chair.  The Vice Chair shall perform other duties as 
may be assigned to him or her by the Chair or by the Authority. 
 
 

VII. COMMITTEES  
 
7.1  Authority Board Committees.  In order to better facilitate the work of 
the Authority Board, the Authority Board may establish standing and/or ad 
hoc committees to address specific issues.  Each committee shall be 
composed of not more than three (3) Authority members; one member 
representing the City of Shelton, one member representing Mason County, 
and one member representing a District.  Committee Chairs and committee 
members may be designated by the Authority Chair, subject to confirmation 
by the full Authority Board.  To the extent possible, committee reports to the 
full Authority Board shall be in writing. 
 
The terms of the standing committees will coincide with the terms of the 
Authority Board officers (which recommence annually in December) at which 
time the Authority Board will review the responsibilities of the committees.  In 
the event that new committee assignments are not made at the time 
Authority Board officers are elected, the incumbent committee members shall 
serve until replacements are appointed. 
 
7.2  Special Appointments.  The Chairman may appoint Authority Board 
members to special intra- and interagency committees and councils as 
appropriate.  
 
These special appointments will be reviewed annually to coincide with the 
terms of the Authority Board officers and the review of Authority Board 
committees. 
 
 

VIII. APPOINTED POSITIONS 
 
8.1  General Manager.  The Authority Board shall appoint a General 
Manager who shall be responsible for the administrative functions of the 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 73



 

Mason Transit Authority Bylaws Page 8 
 

Mason Transit Authority and shall have such power and perform such duties 
as shall be prescribed by law and action of the Authority Board. 
 
8.2  Clerk of the Authority Board.  The Authority shall appoint a Clerk of 
the Authority Board who shall perform all duties as provided in these Bylaws 
and shall maintain all records of the Authority Board.  The General Manager 
shall serve as Clerk unless someone else has been specifically appointed. 
 
8.3  Legal Counsel.  Principal Legal Counsel shall be appointed by and shall 
serve at the pleasure of the Authority Board. 
 
 

IX. GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 

9.1  Checks.  All disbursements of the Mason Transit Authority shall be by 
check drawn by the appropriate Audit Officer as per Washington State law or 
as otherwise directed by Authority resolution. 
 
9.2  Notes.  All notes or other evidence of indebtedness, including bills, 
issued or incurred in the name of the Mason Transit Authority shall be signed 
by such officer, member, agent or employee of the Mason Transit Authority 
and in such manner as shall from time to time to be determined by Authority 
Board resolution. 
 
9.3  Other Legal Documents.  The Authority may authorize any officer or 
officers, agent or agents of the Mason Transit Authority, in addition to the 
officers so authorized by resolution, to enter into any contract or execute and 
deliver any instrument in the name of and behalf of the Mason Transit 
Authority and such authorization may be general and or may be confined to 
specific instances.  All written contractual obligations of the Mason Transit 
Authority, including but not limited to, contracts, leases and assignments, are 
to be maintained by the Clerk of the Board. 
 
9.4  Deposits.  All funds of the Mason Transit Authority shall be deposited in 
the appropriate accounts established by resolution.  The County Treasurer 
shall be the custodian of the funds, until such time as the Authority Board 
appropriates its own administrative director, and is, subject to approval by 
Authority Board resolution, authorized to invest such funds in the manner 
provided by law. 
 
9.5  Gifts.  The Authority Board may accept on behalf of Mason Transit 
Authority any contribution, gift or bequest (as long as conditions are 
consistent with state law), for any purpose of the Mason Transit Authority. 
 
9.6  Travel.  Members of the Authority Board, in order to properly and fully 
conduct official Mason Transit Authority business, may travel and incur 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 74



 

Mason Transit Authority Bylaws Page 9 
 

expenses.    Authority Board members will receive reimbursement for 
reasonable expenses incurred while engaged in official business in 
accordance with RCW 36.57A.050 and the adopted travel policy which applies 
to all Mason Transit Authority employees.  Out-of-state travel by Authority 
Board members will be authorized by the Chair subject to annual budget 
restraints. 
 
9.7  Repealer.  The terms of these bylaws, as established by resolution, 
shall supersede all prior resolutions in conflict therewith. 
 
 

X. AMENDMENTS 
 

These bylaws may be amended by a majority vote at any meeting of the 
Authority Board, provided that copies of the proposed revisions or 
amendments shall have been made available to each Authority Board 
member as part of the agenda of the meeting at which proposed revisions or 
amendments are to be acted upon. These bylaws are adopted by Authority 
Board resolution; therefore, any amendments hereto shall be by that same 
instrument. 
 
 
ADOPTED: 12/09/91   AMENDED:  04/17/2012 
AMENDED:   11/20/07   AMENDED:  12/17/2013 
AMENDED:   02/28/08   AMENDED:  09/20/2016 
AMENDED: 07/13/10   [AMENDED: 12/19/2017] 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 75



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 76



Resolution No. 2017-39 Page 1 of 2 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-39 

A RESOLUTION OF THE MASON COUNTY PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 
AREA AUTHORITY BOARD APPROVING AMENDMENTS TO THE BYLAWS 
OF MASON COUNTY PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION BENEFIT AREA DOING 

BUSINESS AS MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY. 

 WHEREAS, the Mason County Public Transportation Benefit Area Authority first adopted 
its ByLaws on December 9, 1991, and amended those ByLaws on November 20, 2007, 
February 28, 2008, July 13, 2010, June 14, 2011, April 17, 2012, December 17, 2013 and 
September 20, 2016; and 

 WHEREAS, the Bylaws should now be amended to: (a) update the background to 
include the recent Authority Board Composition changes as approved by Mason County and the 
City of Shelton; (b) update the Authority Board composition; (c) make additional provisions as 
to establishing a quorum; and (d) make provisions in the event it serves the Authority Board to 
extend the term of the officers;  

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MASON COUNTY PUBLIC 
TRANSPORTATION AREA AUTHORITY BOARD that its ByLaws are hereby amended 
attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference.  
 

Adopted this 19th day of December, 2017. 
 
 
______________________________  _____________________________ 
Terri Drexler, Chair      John Campbell, Vice-Chair  
 
______________________________  ____________________________ 
Wes Martin, Authority Member   Tracy Moore, Authority Member 
 
______________________________  ____________________________ 
Randy Neatherlin, Authority Member  Deborah Petersen, Authority Member 
 
______________________________  ____________________________ 
Don Pogreba, Authority Member   Sandy Tarzwell, Authority Member 
     
______________________________ 
Kevin Shutty, Authority Member 
 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 77



Resolution No. 2017-39 Page 2 of 2 
 

 
APPROVED AS TO CONTENT:    _______    ______ 
          Danette Brannin, General Manager 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:        ______ 
    Robert W. Johnson, Legal Counsel 
 
 
ATTEST:        DATE:    ______ 
           Tracy Becht, Clerk of the Board 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 78



Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item: New Business – Item 3 – Actionable 
Subject:   Drug and Alcohol Policy Update 
Prepared by:  LeeAnn McNulty, Administrative Services Manager 
Approved by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Date:   December 19, 2017 

Summary for Discussion Purposes: 

Mason Transit Authority performs a vital public service for our community. To ensure 
this service is delivered safely, we are dedicated to providing and maintaining a drug 
and alcohol free working environment in compliance with the Drug-Free Workplace Act 
of 1988. Employees who perform safety-sensitive functions will be subject to the 
specific requirements of federal regulations 49 CFR Part 40, published December 11, 
2000, and as amended thereafter, and 49 CFR Part 655, published August 9, 2001, and 
as amended thereafter, issued pursuant to the Omnibus Transportation Employees 
Testing Act of 1991. Participation in the federally mandated testing program is a 
condition of performing safety-sensitive functions. 

Attached is a track changes version of the policy reflecting the expanded definition of 
prohibited drugs as set forth in the citations above. 

Legal Counsel and a member of the Board have reviewed and approved this form of the 
updated policy. 

Fiscal Impact: 

None. 

Staff Recommendation: 

Approve. 

Motion for Consideration: 

Move that the Mason Transit Authority Board approve Resolution No. 2017-40 and the 
attached Policy for Drug and Alcohol for the purposes of MTA business.  

M
ason T

ransit A
uthority B

oard 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 79



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 80



Title: Drug and Alcohol Policy 
Number: 301 
Effective: August January 1, 20184 
Cancels: August 1, 2014, September 14, 2010,  
Prepared by: Rikki Johnson, Human Resources 
ManagerLeeAnn McNulty, Administrative Services 
Manager 
Approved by: Authority Board 

Resolution No. 2014-16, Resolution No. 
2017-40 

See Also:  Employee Handbook, APP-301A-D, FLO-301A-C, FRM-301A-C 
Page 1 of 23 

POL-301 DRUG AND ALCOHOL POLICY 

This policy applies in general to all Mason Transit Authority (MTA) employees: full-time, 
part-time, seasonal, worker/driver, contract employees and contractors when they are 
on MTA property or when performing MTA-related business off property.  Employees 
who perform safety-sensitive functions, or contractors performing safety-sensitive 
functions for MTA will be subject to the specific requirements of federal regulations 49 
CFR Part 40, published December 11, 2000, and as amended thereafter, and 49 CFR Part 
655, published August 9, 2001 and as amended thereafter, issued pursuant to the 
Omnibus Transportation Employee Testing Act of 1991.  Participation in the federally 
mandated testing program is a condition of performing safety-sensitive functions.  This 
policy also applies to individuals who apply for employment with MTA.   

 (Underlined text represents locally adopted language that is above the 
minimums established by the FTA.)  

1.0 POLICY STATEMENT 

MTA performs a vital public service for our community.  To ensure this service is 
delivered safely, we are dedicated to providing and maintaining a drug and alcohol free 
working environment in compliance with the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 and the 
Omnibus Transportation Employees Testing Act of 1991.  It is MTA’s policy to: 

• Assure that employees have the ability to perform assigned duties in a safe,
healthy and productive manner; 

• Create a workplace free from the adverse effects of drug abuse and alcohol 
misuse; 

• Prohibit the unlawful distribution, possession or use of controlled substances. 

MTA cares about the health and well-being of its employees.  We urge anyone who 
believes they are having an alcohol or chemical dependency problem to seek treatment 
before their job performance and employment is endangered.   

1.1 Purpose 

The purpose of this policy is to assure employee fitness for duty and to protect 
our employees, passengers and the public from risks posed by worker’s misuse 
of alcohol and abuse of drugs.  This policy is intended to comply with all 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 81



 
 

Title: Drug and Alcohol Policy 
Number: 301 
Effective: August January 1, 20184 
Cancels: August 1, 2014, September 14, 2010,  
Prepared by: Rikki Johnson, Human Resources 
ManagerLeeAnn McNulty, Administrative Services 
Manager 
Approved by: Authority Board  
 Resolution No. 2014-16, Resolution No. 
2017-40 

 

 
See Also:  Employee Handbook, APP-301A-D, FLO-301A-C, FRM-301A-C 
Page 2 of 23 

applicable federal regulations governing workplace alcohol and drug abuse in the 
transit industry.  Regulations issued by the U.S. Department of Transportation 
and the Federal Transit Administration mandate urine drug testing and evidential 
breath alcohol testing for safety-sensitive positions.  This policy sets forth the 
MTA substance abuse program and the testing and reporting guidelines for 
safety-sensitive employees as required by those regulations.  This policy also sets 
forth additional guidelines based on MTA’s independent authority for all 
employees.  See Appendix D for a list of abbreviations referenced in this policy. 

Copies of this policy will be given to safety-sensitive and non-safety sensitive 
employees during new employee orientation.  Employees will be kept apprised 
of changes and clarifications through periodic memos.  Revised policies will be 
distributed and receipt certified by safety-sensitive employees.  Copies of this 
Drug and Alcohol Policy will be available in the Human Resources Department. 

 1.2 Effects of Drug Use and Alcohol Misuse 

The cost of substance misuse/abuse is devastating to society, the workplace, the 
family, and individuals.  Two-thirds of all homicides are committed by people 
who used drugs or alcohol prior to the crime.  Two-thirds of all Americans will be 
involved in an alcohol-related accident during their lifetime.   

The medical costs of illness related to substance misuse/abuse are staggering.  
Each year 30,000 people die due to alcohol-caused liver disease.  Another 10,000 
die due to alcohol induced brain disease or suicide. 

Symptoms of substance abuse problems include: tardiness, alcohol odor on 
breath, overreaction to real or imagined criticism, complaints from clients or co-
workers, avoidance of associates, lowered job efficiency, confusion, difficulty in 
concentration, accidents on the job, absenteeism, leaving work early, excessive 
sick leave, frequent unscheduled short-term absences, and higher absentee rate 
compared to other workers. 

Besides the human costs described above, substance-abusing employees create 
business costs and legal liabilities for their employers.  These costs include: 

• Direct and measurable costs, such as the additional health care benefits 
claimed by substance abusers. 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 82



 
 

Title: Drug and Alcohol Policy 
Number: 301 
Effective: August January 1, 20184 
Cancels: August 1, 2014, September 14, 2010,  
Prepared by: Rikki Johnson, Human Resources 
ManagerLeeAnn McNulty, Administrative Services 
Manager 
Approved by: Authority Board  
 Resolution No. 2014-16, Resolution No. 
2017-40 

 

 
See Also:  Employee Handbook, APP-301A-D, FLO-301A-C, FRM-301A-C 
Page 3 of 23 

• Less tangible and difficult to measure costs, such as the negative impact 
on employee morale or the diminished creativity of substance abusing 
individuals. 

• Potential costs or “liabilities” such as a lawsuit filed by an injured party 
after an accident caused by the impaired employee. 

These costs arise because of the effects of substance abuse in many areas 
including: 
 

• Employee Health  • Community Relations 
• Intoxication  • Neurologic and Liver Damage 
• Productivity  • Fetal Alcohol Syndrome 
• Sensory Alteration  • Employee Morale 
• Decision-Making  • Dependence 
• Anxiety Reduction  • Safety 
• Security  • Toxic Psychosis 

   
This Drug and Alcohol Policy includes several components for prevention and 
intervention.  To promote a drug free workplace and comply with FTA 
regulations, MTA provides supervisory and employee education and contracts 
with EAP (Employee Assistance Program) and SAP (Substance Abuse 
Professional) services that provide employees access to professionals in 
addressing substance abuse.    

1.3 Applicability 

Employees who perform safety-sensitive functions, or contractors performing 
safety-sensitive functions for MTA, will be subject to the specific requirements of 
federal regulations and subsequent amendments to 49 CFR Part 40, published 
December 11, 2000 and as amended thereafter, and 49 CFR Part 655 published 
August 9, 2001 and as amended thereafter, issued pursuant to the Omnibus 
Transportation Employee Testing Act of 1991.  Participation in the federally 
mandated testing program is a condition of performing safety-sensitive 
functions. 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 83



 
 

Title: Drug and Alcohol Policy 
Number: 301 
Effective: August January 1, 20184 
Cancels: August 1, 2014, September 14, 2010,  
Prepared by: Rikki Johnson, Human Resources 
ManagerLeeAnn McNulty, Administrative Services 
Manager 
Approved by: Authority Board  
 Resolution No. 2014-16, Resolution No. 
2017-40 

 

 
See Also:  Employee Handbook, APP-301A-D, FLO-301A-C, FRM-301A-C 
Page 4 of 23 

Employees shall promptly report to his/her supervisor or to the Drug and Alcohol 
Program Manager (DAPM) whenever he/she observes or has knowledge of an 
employee who poses a hazard to the safety and welfare of others.  Failure to 
report may result in discipline. 

Supervisory level staff is required to use and apply all aspects of this policy.  Any 
supervisory level employee who knowingly disregards the requirements of this 
policy, or who is found to deliberately misuse the policy in regard to 
subordinates, shall be subject to disciplinary action, up to and including 
discharge. 

A safety-sensitive function is any duty related to the safe operation of public 
transit service as defined in 49 CFR Part 655, including: 

• Operating a revenue service vehicle, including when not in revenue 
service; 

• Operating a non-revenue service vehicle, when required to be operated 
by a holder of a Commercial Driver’s License; 

• Controlling the dispatch or movement of a revenue service vehicle; 

• Maintaining (including repairs, overhaul and rebuilding) a revenue service 
vehicle, or equipment used in revenue service including times when not 
in revenue service; 

• Carrying a firearm for security purposes. 

A list of safety-sensitive positions can be found in Appendix B. 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 84



 
 

Title: Drug and Alcohol Policy 
Number: 301 
Effective: August January 1, 20184 
Cancels: August 1, 2014, September 14, 2010,  
Prepared by: Rikki Johnson, Human Resources 
ManagerLeeAnn McNulty, Administrative Services 
Manager 
Approved by: Authority Board  
 Resolution No. 2014-16, Resolution No. 
2017-40 

 

 
See Also:  Employee Handbook, APP-301A-D, FLO-301A-C, FRM-301A-C 
Page 5 of 23 

 1.4 Prohibited Substances 

“Prohibited drugs” include cocaine, marijuana, amphetamines (amphetamine, 
methamphetamine, MDMA, MDA), opioids (codeine, heroin, morphine, 
oxycodone, oxymorphone, hydrocodone, hydromorphoneopiates, phencyclidine 
(PCP), and any other substance recognized as a controlled substance in 49 CFR 
Part 40 or 49 CFR Part 655 as amended.  “Prohibited drugs” includes use of or 
impairment by any illegal drug, misuse of legally prescribed or over-the-counter 
drugs, and illegally obtained prescription drugs. 

“Alcohol” includes the intoxicating agent in alcohol beverage, ethyl alcohol, and 
other low molecular weight alcohol including methyl and isopropyl alcohol.  The 
use of any beverage or mixture, including any medication, containing alcohol 
during or prior to performing a safety-sensitive function is prohibited. 

The appropriate use of legally prescribed drugs and non-prescription medication 
is not prohibited. However, the use of any substance which carries a warning 
label indicating that mental functioning, motor skills, or judgment will be 
adversely affected MUST be reported to their department head prior to 
performing safety-sensitive duties.  It is the responsibility of employees to 
remove themselves from service if they are experiencing any adverse effects 
from medication that could impair their performance of essential job functions.  
Legally prescribed drugs must include documentation of the patient’s name, the 
substance name, the quantity to be taken and the period of authorization. 

 1.5 Prohibited Conduct 

In compliance with the Drug Free Workplace Act of 1988, employees are 
absolutely prohibited from using, manufacturing, dispensing, or distributing 
prohibited drugs in the workplace or while on duty.  Employees are also 
absolutely prohibited from possessing or being impaired by alcohol or prohibited 
drugs when reporting for duty, while on duty or when on MTA’s premises.  Such 
behavior constitutes a threat to the health, safety and security of themselves, 
their fellow employees, passengers and other members of the public.  Therefore, 
employees must not report for work or continue working under these 
circumstances.   

Formatted: Font: 12 pt

Formatted: Font: 12 pt

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 85



 
 

Title: Drug and Alcohol Policy 
Number: 301 
Effective: August January 1, 20184 
Cancels: August 1, 2014, September 14, 2010,  
Prepared by: Rikki Johnson, Human Resources 
ManagerLeeAnn McNulty, Administrative Services 
Manager 
Approved by: Authority Board  
 Resolution No. 2014-16, Resolution No. 
2017-40 

 

 
See Also:  Employee Handbook, APP-301A-D, FLO-301A-C, FRM-301A-C 
Page 6 of 23 

Employees who are reasonably suspected of not being fit for duty due to drug or 
alcohol use shall be suspended from job duties with pay pending an 
investigation.  Employees who fail to pass a drug or alcohol test shall be removed 
from duty immediately and subject to disciplinary action, up to and including 
discharge. 

Drug Use:  Reporting to work with any of the drugs identified in Section 1.4 in 
their system is prohibited at all times for safety-sensitive employees.  
 
Alcohol Use: No safety-sensitive employee shall report for duty within four hours 
of using alcohol, just before, during or just after performing safety-sensitive 
duties, or use alcohol while subject to being on call. In addition, unless the 
employee’s contribution to the accident can be completely discounted, non-
safety-sensitive and safety-sensitive employees involved in an accident in a 
revenue or non-revenue vehicle as defined by the FTA regulations shall abstain 
from alcohol consumption until he or she has been tested or until eight hours 
has elapsed, whichever occurs first.  A positive alcohol test under Mason Transit 
Authority is defined under this policy as a blood alcohol concentration of 0.02 
and above on an evidentiary breath-testing device. A positive test under FTA 
authority is defined under this policy as a blood alcohol concentration greater 
than 0.04 on an evidentiary breath testing device. 

 1.6 Compliance with Testing 

Safety-sensitive employees who refuse to comply with a request for drug and/or 
alcohol testing under the circumstances defined in Section 2.3 Types of Testing, 
shall be removed from duty immediately under FTA authority.  Non-safety-
sensitive employees under the same circumstances will be removed from duty 
immediately under MTA authority.  Refusal to comply with a request for testing 
includes:  

• Failure to appear for any test (except for pre-employment) within a 
reasonable time, as determined by the Employer; 

• Failure to remain at the testing site until the testing process is complete; 

• Failure to provide a breath sample or urine specimen for any required 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 86



 
 

Title: Drug and Alcohol Policy 
Number: 301 
Effective: August January 1, 20184 
Cancels: August 1, 2014, September 14, 2010,  
Prepared by: Rikki Johnson, Human Resources 
ManagerLeeAnn McNulty, Administrative Services 
Manager 
Approved by: Authority Board  
 Resolution No. 2014-16, Resolution No. 
2017-40 

 

 
See Also:  Employee Handbook, APP-301A-D, FLO-301A-C, FRM-301A-C 
Page 7 of 23 

breath or drug test; 

• Failure to permit the observation or monitoring of the specimen 
collection when required to do so; 

• Failure to provide a sufficient amount of urine when directed and there is 
no adequate medical explanation for the failure; 

• Failure to take a second test when directed to do so by the Employer or 
collector; 

• Failure to undergo within five days a medical examination by a licensed 
physician acceptable to the Medical Review Officer (MRO), who has 
expertise in the medical issues raised by the employee’s failure to 
provide a sufficient specimen when directed to do so by the MRO or 
employer; 

• Failure to cooperate with any part of the testing process (e.g., refuse to 
empty pockets when directed by the collector, behave in a 
confrontational way that disrupts the collection process, failure to wash 
hands after being directed to do so by the collector, or refusal to sign the 
test); 

• Failure to follow the observer’s instructions during an observed collection 
including instructions to raise your clothing above the waist, lower 
clothing and underpants, and to turn around to permit the observer to 
determine if you have any type of prosthetic or other device that could 
be used to interfere with the collection process; 

• Possess or wear a prosthetic or other device that could be used to 
interfere with the collection process;  

• Admit to the collector or MRO that you adulterated or substituted the 
specimen; 

• The MRO reports that you have a verified adulterated or substituted test 
result; 

• Failure to sign step 2 of the alcohol test form; 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 87



 
 

Title: Drug and Alcohol Policy 
Number: 301 
Effective: August January 1, 20184 
Cancels: August 1, 2014, September 14, 2010,  
Prepared by: Rikki Johnson, Human Resources 
ManagerLeeAnn McNulty, Administrative Services 
Manager 
Approved by: Authority Board  
 Resolution No. 2014-16, Resolution No. 
2017-40 

 

 
See Also:  Employee Handbook, APP-301A-D, FLO-301A-C, FRM-301A-C 
Page 8 of 23 

• Failure to remain at the scene of an accident without just cause prior to 
submitting to a test. 

Such refusals will be treated as a positive test, with the employee subject to 
discharge.  The employee will be referred to a Substance Abuse Professional for 
evaluation.  Referrals do not preclude the employee from being subject to 
discharge. 

 
2.0 TESTING FOR PROHIBITED SUBSTANCES 

Under FTA authority, all safety-sensitive employees and applicants for safety-sensitive 
positions with MTA will be subject to testing under the following circumstances; (1) 
prior to employment, (2) reasonable suspicion, (3) on a random, unannounced basis, 
and (4) following an accident as defined in Section 2.3(c).  

2.1 Confidentiality 

MTA will carry out this policy in a manner that respects the dignity and 
confidentiality of those involved.  Confidentiality is maintained throughout the 
drug/alcohol testing process from notification of the request to test, to 
collection of the required specimens, to notification of results.  

A. Maintenance of Records 
The Human Resources Department will maintain records of results in the 
strictest of confidence in a locked file cabinet separate from the official 
personnel file.  In cases where disciplinary action results from a positive 
test, such information is shared only with those in a supervisory capacity 
directly involved in the disciplinary decisions related to the test result.   

  
  

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 88



 
 

Title: Drug and Alcohol Policy 
Number: 301 
Effective: August January 1, 20184 
Cancels: August 1, 2014, September 14, 2010,  
Prepared by: Rikki Johnson, Human Resources 
ManagerLeeAnn McNulty, Administrative Services 
Manager 
Approved by: Authority Board  
 Resolution No. 2014-16, Resolution No. 
2017-40 

 

 
See Also:  Employee Handbook, APP-301A-D, FLO-301A-C, FRM-301A-C 
Page 9 of 23 

 B. Release of Records 
Testing records and results will be released only to those authorized by 
the FTA rules to receive such information or as required by law.  This 
includes: 

a) The employee, if requested in writing. 
b) The National Traffic Safety Board (NTSB), if they are investigating an 

accident. 
c) Certain legal proceedings on behalf of the employee and arising from 

the result of a drug or alcohol test administered under FTA rules, 
including, but not limited to, a worker’s compensation, 
unemployment compensation, or other proceeding relating to a 
benefit sought by the employee. 

d) A court of competent jurisdiction or the decision-maker in a criminal 
or civil action resulting from an employee’s performance of safety-
sensitive duties, if the court determines that the drug or alcohol test 
information is relevant to the case and issues an order directing the 
employer to produce the information.  In such a proceeding, the 
information will be released only with a binding stipulation that the 
decision-maker to whom it is released will make it available only to 
parties to the proceeding.  

e) DOT agency or State Oversight Agency authorized by the DOT. 
f) Other DOT employers when a current or former employee is an 

applicant for a safety-sensitive position within two years of their MTA 
employment. 

g) Subsequent employers, if requested in writing by the employee. 
h) Other identified persons as requested in writing by the employee. 

 
C. Reporting to Washington State Department of Licensing (RCW 46.25) 

In accordance with the provisions of RCW 46.25, MTA shall report 
positive drug test results and refusals to test of current CDL holders for 
tests conducted under the authority of the FTA regulations 49 CFR Part 
655 to the Washington State Department of Licensing under the 
following circumstances: 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 89



 
 

Title: Drug and Alcohol Policy 
Number: 301 
Effective: August January 1, 20184 
Cancels: August 1, 2014, September 14, 2010,  
Prepared by: Rikki Johnson, Human Resources 
ManagerLeeAnn McNulty, Administrative Services 
Manager 
Approved by: Authority Board  
 Resolution No. 2014-16, Resolution No. 
2017-40 

 

 
See Also:  Employee Handbook, APP-301A-D, FLO-301A-C, FRM-301A-C 
Page 10 of 23 

a) An employee is terminated or resigns. 
b) An employee has not been cleared to return to performing safety 

sensitive functions. 

Also in accordance with this regulatory requirement, MTA’s MRO shall report all 
positive pre-employment drug test results or refusals to test for current CDL 
holders to DOL after consultation with MTA’s Drug and Alcohol Program 
Manager to confirm applicability of the regulation.  

Individuals whose positive test results or refusals to test are reported to DOL will 
be subject to the consequences outlined in the RCW 46.25. 

2.2 Methodology 

Testing will be conducted in accordance with 49 CFR, Part 40, as amended, and 
in a manner to assure a high degree of accuracy and reliability by using the 
techniques, chain of custody procedures, equipment and laboratory facilities 
which have been approved by the U.S. Department of Health and Human 
Services as called for in the federal regulations. Both alcohol and drug testing will 
be conducted in an environment that affords maximum privacy as described in 
49 CFR Parts 40 or 49 CFR Part 655 as amended. 

Specimen collection for urine drug testing will occur at a collection site 
designated by MTA.  Collection will be conducted according to procedures 
outlined in 49 CFR Part 40 and 49 CFR Part 655 as amended.  

A. Analytical urine testing will be conducted at a DHHS certified laboratory 
for marijuana, cocaine, opiates, amphetamines, phencyclidine and any 
other substance recognized as a controlled substance in 49 CFR Part 40 or 
49 CFR Part 655 as amended.  An initial drug screen will be conducted on 
each specimen after a split sample is provided to the laboratory.  For 
those specimens that are not negative, a confirmatory Gas 
Chromatography/Mass Spectrometry will be performed.  A positive test 
result, at or above the minimum thresholds set forth by federal 
regulations in 49 CFR Part 40 or 49 CFR Part 655 as amended and verified 
by the MRO, will be considered a violation of this policy and will 
constitute a failure to pass a drug test.  Specimen validity testing will be 
conducted on all urine specimens provided for testing under DOT 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 90



 
 

Title: Drug and Alcohol Policy 
Number: 301 
Effective: August January 1, 20184 
Cancels: August 1, 2014, September 14, 2010,  
Prepared by: Rikki Johnson, Human Resources 
ManagerLeeAnn McNulty, Administrative Services 
Manager 
Approved by: Authority Board  
 Resolution No. 2014-16, Resolution No. 
2017-40 

 

 
See Also:  Employee Handbook, APP-301A-D, FLO-301A-C, FRM-301A-C 
Page 11 of 23 

authority. Specimen validity testing is the evaluation of the specimen to 
determine if it is consistent with normal human urine.  The purpose of 
validity testing is to determine whether certain adulterants or foreign 
substances were added to the urine, if the urine was diluted, or if the 
specimen was substituted. 
 
Tests for alcohol concentration will be conducted using National Highway 
Traffic Safety Administration (NHTSA) approved evidential breath-testing 
devices operated by breath alcohol technicians trained to proficiency on 
the particular EBT they are using.  Equipment will be maintained 
according to the quality assurance plan developed for the particular piece 
of equipment.  The collection process will be conducted according to 
procedures set forth in 49 CFR Part 40 Subpart J-N.  A US Department of 
Transportation Breath Alcohol Testing Form will be completed with each 
collection.  In accordance with the regulations an employee who tests at 
0.02 or above will be retested within 15 to 30 minutes of the first test.  
This second test is considered a confirmatory test. A confirmed alcohol 
concentration of 0.02 or greater will be considered a positive alcohol test, 
a violation of this policy, and will constitute a failure to pass an alcohol 
test.  In the event an employee is unable to provide an adequate breath 
sample, within five days, the employee must seek an evaluation from a 
licensed physician acceptable to the MRO, who has expertise in the 
medical issues raised by the employee’s failure to provide a sufficient 
breath sample to determine if there is a reasonable explanation for the 
employee’s inability to provide an adequate amount of breath.  If the 
physician determines there is no reasonable explanation, the employee’s 
inability will be recorded as a refusal to take the test and a violation of 
this policy.   

B. An employee who tests positive for drugs or alcohol will be removed 
immediately from safety-sensitive job duties and informed about 
educational and rehabilitation programs available, and referred to a 
Substance Abuse Professional (SAP). The SAP will evaluate the employee 
to determine what assistance, if any, the employee needs in resolving 
problems associated with substance abuse.  The SAP must make a 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 91



 
 

Title: Drug and Alcohol Policy 
Number: 301 
Effective: August January 1, 20184 
Cancels: August 1, 2014, September 14, 2010,  
Prepared by: Rikki Johnson, Human Resources 
ManagerLeeAnn McNulty, Administrative Services 
Manager 
Approved by: Authority Board  
 Resolution No. 2014-16, Resolution No. 
2017-40 

 

 
See Also:  Employee Handbook, APP-301A-D, FLO-301A-C, FRM-301A-C 
Page 12 of 23 

recommendation for education or treatment for every referred individual 
who has violated a DOT drug and alcohol regulation.  Assessment by a 
SAP does not protect an employee from disciplinary action or guarantee 
employment.  A positive drug or alcohol test will result in disciplinary 
action up to and including discharge as outlined in Discipline 5.0 of this 
policy. 

2.3 TYPES OF TESTING 

A. Pre-employment/Pre-Transfer Testing (49 CFR Part 655.41)  
Applicants for all safety-sensitive positions shall undergo urine drug 
testing prior to employment.  Receipt by the agency of verified negative 
test results is required prior to performance of safety-sensitive functions 
and failure to pass will disqualify an applicant. 

Employees transferring from a non-safety-sensitive to a safety-sensitive 
position shall undergo urine drug testing prior to appointment to the new 
position.  Test results must be negative in order for the appointment to 
take place. 

If a pre-employment drug test is cancelled or the results are negative 
dilute, the applicant will be required to complete another DOT test with a 
verified negative result in order for the appointment to a safety-sensitive 
position to occur.  Applicants, who have failed a DOT drug and/or alcohol 
test for a previous DOT covered employer, must provide proof of a 
referral to an SAP, a substance abuse evaluation, and successful 
completion of the prescribed rehabilitation program prior to 
appointment to the safety-sensitive position. 

Covered employees who have not performed safety-sensitive functions 
for 90 consecutive calendar days, regardless of the reason, and have not 
been in the random pool, shall undergo pre-employment drug testing 
prior to returning to performing safety-sensitive work.  The results must 
be verified negative. 

B. Reasonable Suspicion Testing (49 CFR Part 655.43) 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 92



 
 

Title: Drug and Alcohol Policy 
Number: 301 
Effective: August January 1, 20184 
Cancels: August 1, 2014, September 14, 2010,  
Prepared by: Rikki Johnson, Human Resources 
ManagerLeeAnn McNulty, Administrative Services 
Manager 
Approved by: Authority Board  
 Resolution No. 2014-16, Resolution No. 
2017-40 

 

 
See Also:  Employee Handbook, APP-301A-D, FLO-301A-C, FRM-301A-C 
Page 13 of 23 

Under FTA authority, safety-sensitive employees are subject to a fitness- 
for-duty evaluation including a drug and/or alcohol test when there is a 
reason to suspect they are under the influence of any of the prohibited 
drugs while on duty, or have used alcohol immediately prior to, or during, 
or immediately after performing safety-sensitive duties or while on the 
property, in agency vehicles or in agency uniform.  Non-safety sensitive 
employees are also subject to a fitness-for-duty evaluation including drug 
and/or alcohol testing in these same circumstances under MTA authority. 
  A referral for testing will be made on the basis of documented objective 
facts and circumstances.  Supervisory personnel who are trained to 
detect signs and symptoms of drug and alcohol use will make such 
referrals.  Employees in safety-sensitive positions will be tested for on or 
off-duty drug or alcohol use when there is reasonable suspicion of on-
duty impairment supported by (1) evidence of specific personal 
observations concerning job performance, appearance, behavior, speech 
or bodily odors of the employee or direct observation of drug or alcohol 
use; (2) a pattern of abnormal conduct or erratic behavior; (3) arrest or 
conviction for a drug-related offense or the identification of an employee 
as the focus of a criminal investigation into illegal drug possession, use or 
trafficking; (4) information provided either by reliable and creditable 
sources or independently corroborated; or (5) newly discovered evidence 
that the employee has tampered with a previous drug test.  Safety-
sensitive employees will be removed immediately from performing 
safety-sensitive functions and subject to discipline as outlined in Section 
5.0 Discipline of this policy. 

Non-safety-sensitive employees who are reasonably suspected of not 
being fit for duty due to drug or alcohol use shall be suspended from job 
duties with pay pending the outcome of an investigation.  Such 
employees who fail to pass a drug or alcohol test shall also be subject to 
disciplinary action, up to and including discharge. 

C. Post-Accident Testing (49 CFR 655.44) 

a) Accident: 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 93



 
 

Title: Drug and Alcohol Policy 
Number: 301 
Effective: August January 1, 20184 
Cancels: August 1, 2014, September 14, 2010,  
Prepared by: Rikki Johnson, Human Resources 
ManagerLeeAnn McNulty, Administrative Services 
Manager 
Approved by: Authority Board  
 Resolution No. 2014-16, Resolution No. 
2017-40 

 

 
See Also:  Employee Handbook, APP-301A-D, FLO-301A-C, FRM-301A-C 
Page 14 of 23 

The occurrence associated with the operation of a vehicle, if as a 
result: 

1. An individual dies; or; 
2. An individual suffers bodily injury and immediately 

receives medical treatment away from the scene of the 
accident; or 

3. With respect to an occurrence in which the public transit 
vehicle involved is a bus, electric bus, van, or automobile, 
one or more vehicles (including non-FTA funded vehicles) 
incurs disabling damage as the result of the occurrence 
and such vehicle or vehicles are transported away from 
the scene by a tow truck or other vehicle; or 
 

 

b) Fatal Accident: 

As soon as practicable following an accident involving the loss of 
human life, and regardless of fault, each surviving employee 
performing safety-sensitive functions in the transit vehicle at the 
time of the accident, and any other covered employee whose 
performance could have contributed to the accident (as 
determined by MTA using the best information available at the 
time of the decision), shall be tested for alcohol and prohibited 
drugs. 

c) Non-Fatal Accidents: 

As soon as practicable following an accident not involving the loss 
of human life in which a transit vehicle is involved, each employee 
performing safety-sensitive functions in the transit vehicle at the 
time of the accident shall be tested for alcohol and prohibited 
substances unless MTA determines using the best information 
available at the time of the decision, that the employee’s 
performance can be completely discounted as a contributing 
factor to the accident.  Any other employee whose performance 

 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 94



 
 

Title: Drug and Alcohol Policy 
Number: 301 
Effective: August January 1, 20184 
Cancels: August 1, 2014, September 14, 2010,  
Prepared by: Rikki Johnson, Human Resources 
ManagerLeeAnn McNulty, Administrative Services 
Manager 
Approved by: Authority Board  
 Resolution No. 2014-16, Resolution No. 
2017-40 

 

 
See Also:  Employee Handbook, APP-301A-D, FLO-301A-C, FRM-301A-C 
Page 15 of 23 

could have contributed to the accident (as determined by MTA 
using the best information available at the time of the decision) 
shall also be tested for alcohol and prohibited substances. If an 
alcohol test required by this section is not administered within 
two (2) hours following the accident, MTA shall prepare and 
maintain on file a record stating the reasons the alcohol test was 
not promptly administered. If an alcohol test required by this 
section is not administered within eight (8) hours following the 
accident, the employer shall cease attempts to administer an 
alcohol test and shall maintain records on why the test was not 
performed.  Likewise, if a drug test has not been performed 
within 32 hours, the employer must cease attempts to conduct 
the drug test and document why the test was not administered. 

D. Random Testing (49 CFR Part 655.45) 

Employees in safety-sensitive positions will be subject to random, 
unannounced testing.  Selection of employees for random testing shall be 
made by a scientifically valid, computer based, random number 
generator that is matched to the employee’s social security number.  All 
covered employees will have an equal chance of being tested each time a 
selection is made.  Testing will be continuous throughout the year and 
conducted on all days and hours during which MTA is in operation.  Each 
year MTA will conduct the number of tests required to meet the 
established federal minimum rates for drug and alcohol.  These 
percentage rates are subject to change by direction of the Federal Transit 
Administration. 

Random drug and alcohol testing will be unannounced and 
unpredictable.  Employees selected for testing will receive a Letter of 
Notification and will report immediately to the appropriate testing site.  
Alcohol testing will only occur while the employee is performing safety-
sensitive functions, just prior to performing such functions or just after an 
employee has completed performing such functions.  Drug testing will 
occur anytime while that employee is on duty. 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 95



 
 

Title: Drug and Alcohol Policy 
Number: 301 
Effective: August January 1, 20184 
Cancels: August 1, 2014, September 14, 2010,  
Prepared by: Rikki Johnson, Human Resources 
ManagerLeeAnn McNulty, Administrative Services 
Manager 
Approved by: Authority Board  
 Resolution No. 2014-16, Resolution No. 
2017-40 

 

 
See Also:  Employee Handbook, APP-301A-D, FLO-301A-C, FRM-301A-C 
Page 16 of 23 

E. Return to Duty Testing (49 CFR Part 655.46) 

Under FTA authority safety-sensitive employees who previously tested 
positive on a drug or alcohol test or who refused to submit to a test and 
who, under the discipline policy are allowed to return to work, will be 
subject to testing for either drugs or alcohol or both prior to being 
released for duty by a Substance Abuse Professional.  Test results must 
be negative.  This same provision holds true for non-safety-sensitive 
employees under MTA authority.   

F. Follow-up Testing (49 CFR Part 655.47) 

 Employees who are allowed to return to work following a violation of this 
policy will be required to undergo frequent random drug and/or alcohol 
testing during the period of their re-entry with a minimum of six (6) 
randomly scheduled tests during the first twelve (12) months following 
their return. The Substance Abuse Professional will recommend the 
frequency and duration of the testing.  (See Section 5.0 Discipline.)   

2.4 Retests and Observed Tests 

Employees who have a verified positive drug test result or a test refusal due to 
adulteration or substitution may request a test of their split specimen within 72 
hours of notification, as all specimens are split and the non-tested portion is 
stored for a period of time.  The procedure for requesting this test may be 
obtained from the Human Resources Manager.  Employees do not have access to 
a test of their split specimen following an invalid result. 

There are certain situations that may require the employee to provide, at the 
collection site, another urine or breath sample, i.e., when insufficient volume or 
breath provides an inadequate sample, or the technician has reason to suspect 
tampering with the specimen.  Under the latter circumstances, a second 
collection may be under observed conditions. 

Under DOT authority (49 CFR Part 40.67 & 40.197) when MTA receives a report 
from its Medical Review Officer that the lab has reported a negative dilute test 
result with a creatinine level of 2 mg/dL or above but less than or equal to 5 
mg/dL, that employee will be directed to undergo a recollection under direct 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 96



 
 

Title: Drug and Alcohol Policy 
Number: 301 
Effective: August January 1, 20184 
Cancels: August 1, 2014, September 14, 2010,  
Prepared by: Rikki Johnson, Human Resources 
ManagerLeeAnn McNulty, Administrative Services 
Manager 
Approved by: Authority Board  
 Resolution No. 2014-16, Resolution No. 
2017-40 

 

 
See Also:  Employee Handbook, APP-301A-D, FLO-301A-C, FRM-301A-C 
Page 17 of 23 

observation.  If the employee is on duty at the time of the report, they will be 
removed immediately from performing safety-sensitive functions and directed to 
report to the collection site for the observed recollection.  If the employee is not 
on duty when the report is received, they will be directed to report immediately 
to MTA’s collection site for the recollection when they next report for duty.  The 
result of this recollection test will be the result of record for reporting and 
disciplinary purposes.  When MTA receives an MRO determination reporting a 
negative test result with a dilute specimen outside those parameters requiring 
retesting, the test will be treated as a negative test and no retesting will be 
required. 

Observed collections are required pursuant to 49 CFR Part 40.67 in the following 
circumstances: 

A. Return-to-Duty tests;  

B. Follow-up tests;  

C. Anytime the employee is directed to provide another specimen because 
the temperature on the original specimen was out of the accepted 
temperature range of 90°F - 100°F; 

D. Anytime the employee is directed to provide another specimen because 
the original specimen appeared to have been tampered with; 

E. Anytime a collector observes materials brought to the collection site or 
the employee’s conduct clearly indicates an attempt to tamper with a 
specimen; 

F. Anytime the employee is directed to provide another specimen because 
the laboratory reported to the MRO that the original specimen was 
invalid and the MRO determined that there was not an adequate medical 
explanation for the result; 

G. Anytime the employee is directed to provide another specimen because 
the MRO determined that the original specimen was positive, adulterated 
or substituted, but had to be cancelled because the test of the split 
specimen could not be performed. 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 97



 
 

Title: Drug and Alcohol Policy 
Number: 301 
Effective: August January 1, 20184 
Cancels: August 1, 2014, September 14, 2010,  
Prepared by: Rikki Johnson, Human Resources 
ManagerLeeAnn McNulty, Administrative Services 
Manager 
Approved by: Authority Board  
 Resolution No. 2014-16, Resolution No. 
2017-40 

 

 
See Also:  Employee Handbook, APP-301A-D, FLO-301A-C, FRM-301A-C 
Page 18 of 23 

The employee who is being observed will be required to raise his or her shirt, 
blouse, or dress/skirt, as appropriate, above the waist; and lower clothing and 
underpants to show the collector, by turning around that they do not have a 
prosthetic device.  The observation must be made by an individual of the same 
gender as the donor.  The observer must view urine stream from the donor to 
collection container. 

2.5 Medical Review Officer (MRO) 

MTA will establish a contractual relationship with a qualified Medical Review 
Officer who is a licensed physician with knowledge of substance abuse disorders 
and who has met the qualification training requirements outlined in 49 CFR Part 
40 Subpart G.  The MRO or authorized staff will personally review at least 5% of 
all custody/control forms quarterly.  In addition, the MRO will review and 
interpret confirmed positive test results, examining alternative medical 
explanations for these results.  Prior to verifying a positive test, the MRO will 
contact the affected employee to discuss the test results and provide an 
opportunity to offer a legitimate medical reason for the test results.  If the MRO 
determines the test is a verified positive, the MRO will contact both the MTA 
Program Manager and the employee with that determination.  MTA’s MRO will 
fully comply with the role and responsibilities prescribed in Subpart G of 49 CFR 
Part 40.  

2.6 Substance Abuse Professional (SAP) 

MTA will contract with a qualified Substance Abuse Professional (SAP) to 
evaluate employees who have violated this policy to determine whether they 
need help in resolving problems associated with drug abuse and/or alcohol 
misuse.  The SAP shall be a licensed physician (Medical Doctor or Doctor of 
Osteopathy) or a licensed or certified psychologist, social worker, or employee 
assistance professional; or an addiction counselor (certified by the National 
Association of Alcoholism and Drug Abuse Counselors Certification Commission 
or by the International Certification Reciprocity Consortium/Alcohol and Other 
Drug Abuse.  The SAP shall have knowledge of, and clinical experience in, the 
diagnosis and treatment of alcohol and controlled substance-related disorders. 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 98



 
 

Title: Drug and Alcohol Policy 
Number: 301 
Effective: August January 1, 20184 
Cancels: August 1, 2014, September 14, 2010,  
Prepared by: Rikki Johnson, Human Resources 
ManagerLeeAnn McNulty, Administrative Services 
Manager 
Approved by: Authority Board  
 Resolution No. 2014-16, Resolution No. 
2017-40 

 

 
See Also:  Employee Handbook, APP-301A-D, FLO-301A-C, FRM-301A-C 
Page 19 of 23 

MTA’s SAP will recommend education or treatment for all employees referred 
for violation of DOT drug and alcohol regulations. 

3.0 DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE ACT OF 1988 

In compliance with the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 the distribution, dispensing, 
possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited at MTA.  Employees violating 
this prohibition will be disciplined up to and including discharge.  Also, all employees are 
required to notify MTA of any conviction under a criminal drug statute for violations 
occurring on or off MTA property within five days of conviction and any moving violation 
involving drugs or alcohol causing the suspension or revocation of the employee’s 
driver’s license.  Failure to report such a conviction will result in discipline, up to and 
including discharge.  MTA will notify FTA within ten days after receiving notice of such 
conviction.  MTA will conduct a drug-free awareness program informing employees 
about the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace and available substance abuse 
counseling, rehabilitation and employee assistance programs. 

4.0       EMPL0YEE ASSISTANCE PROGRAM (EAP) 

MTA supports employees who volunteer for treatment of alcohol misuse or drug abuse. 
Alcoholism and drug dependency are treatable illnesses and can be successfully dealt 
with if identified in their early stages and referred to an appropriate source for 
treatment.  Indications of alcohol misuse and drug abuse can include extreme changes 
in personality, problems with other employees, interrupted or changing sleep patterns, 
attendance problems, concealment of social habits involving drugs and alcohol, and 
family problems.  Continued alcohol and drug dependency can lead to deteriorating 
health. 

MTA encourages employees to seek treatment voluntarily and makes available the 
Employee Assistance Program.  Any employee, who comes forth and notifies the agency 
of alcohol or chemical abuse problems prior to violating any of the prohibited conduct 
rules, will be given the assistance extended to employees with any other illness.  Sick 
leave, vacation leave or leave of absence without pay may be granted for treatment and 
rehabilitation as in other illnesses, and insurance coverage for treatment will be 
provided to the extent of similarly benefited individual coverage.   

While MTA is anxious to assist employees with alcohol or chemical dependency 
problems, employees are expected to remember that safety is our first priority.  

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 99



 
 

Title: Drug and Alcohol Policy 
Number: 301 
Effective: August January 1, 20184 
Cancels: August 1, 2014, September 14, 2010,  
Prepared by: Rikki Johnson, Human Resources 
ManagerLeeAnn McNulty, Administrative Services 
Manager 
Approved by: Authority Board  
 Resolution No. 2014-16, Resolution No. 
2017-40 

 

 
See Also:  Employee Handbook, APP-301A-D, FLO-301A-C, FRM-301A-C 
Page 20 of 23 

Therefore, employees must not report for work or continue working if they are under 
the influence of, or impaired by, alcohol or any controlled substance.  Violations of this 
policy will result in disciplinary action (see Discipline section) regardless of whether or 
not an employee is participating in a treatment program.  Such employees are expected 
to observe all other job performance standards and work rules, including attendance, 
required of all employees. 

 5.0 DISCIPLINE – CONSEQUENCES OF POLICY VIOLATIONS 

Under FTA regulations, discipline for program violations is determined at the local level.  
The MTA discipline policy for prohibited conduct is as follows.  Individual circumstances 
involving a positive test may merit action, up to and including discharge: 

5.1 Any employee who tests positive for alcohol at a 0.02 alcohol level or higher will 
be removed from duty, given a list of treatment resources available for 
evaluating and resolving drug and alcohol problems, referred to the SAP, and 
discharged. 

5.2 An employee who has volunteered for treatment and has a positive result under 
any testing circumstances will be discharged. 

5.3 Any safety-sensitive employee who tests positive from reasonable suspicion or 
post-accident testing for the presence of drugs will be subject to discharge. 

5.4 Any employee who tests for alcohol at a level above 0.00 but below 0.02 will be 
provided information about the EAP.  

5.5 Any safety-sensitive employee who refuses to comply with a request for testing 
will be subject to discipline for insubordination and discharged. 

6.0 EDUCATION AND TRAINING 

The effects of controlled substance abuse and alcohol misuse negatively impact an 
individual’s personal and work experience.  If you believe you have a substance abuse or 
alcohol misuse problem, please contact the following agencies in Mason County: 

• Crisis Clinic of Mason/Thurston Counties (360) 586-2800 
• Mason County Drug Abuse Prevention (360) 427-1686 

It is the policy of MTA to make training and education programs available to all agency 
employees.  All safety-sensitive employees will receive 60 minutes of training on the 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 100



 
 

Title: Drug and Alcohol Policy 
Number: 301 
Effective: August January 1, 20184 
Cancels: August 1, 2014, September 14, 2010,  
Prepared by: Rikki Johnson, Human Resources 
ManagerLeeAnn McNulty, Administrative Services 
Manager 
Approved by: Authority Board  
 Resolution No. 2014-16, Resolution No. 
2017-40 

 

 
See Also:  Employee Handbook, APP-301A-D, FLO-301A-C, FRM-301A-C 
Page 21 of 23 

effects of drugs and alcohol on the body, the major elements of the DOT drug testing 
regulations, and MTA’s Drug and Alcohol Policy, and resources for dealing with a 
substance abuse problem.  The training will also provide detailed information on alcohol 
misuse, specifically as it impacts an individual’s biological, emotional, and psychosocial 
well-being.  The effects of misuse can be seen in an individual’s work performance, 
attitude and social interaction. 

Supervisors, managers, and union officials will receive a minimum of two (2) hours of 
instruction on how to identify the signs of drug and/or alcohol use or impairment and 
MTA’s reasonable suspicion investigation process.  

  

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 101



 
 

Title: Drug and Alcohol Policy 
Number: 301 
Effective: August January 1, 20184 
Cancels: August 1, 2014, September 14, 2010,  
Prepared by: Rikki Johnson, Human Resources 
ManagerLeeAnn McNulty, Administrative Services 
Manager 
Approved by: Authority Board  
 Resolution No. 2014-16, Resolution No. 
2017-40 

 

 
See Also:  Employee Handbook, APP-301A-D, FLO-301A-C, FRM-301A-C 
Page 22 of 23 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 
  

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 102



 
 

Title: Drug and Alcohol Policy 
Number: 301 
Effective: August January 1, 20184 
Cancels: August 1, 2014, September 14, 2010,  
Prepared by: Rikki Johnson, Human Resources 
ManagerLeeAnn McNulty, Administrative Services 
Manager 
Approved by: Authority Board  
 Resolution No. 2014-16, Resolution No. 
2017-40 

 

 
See Also:  Employee Handbook, APP-301A-D, FLO-301A-C, FRM-301A-C 
Page 23 of 23 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY DRUG AND ALCOHOL TESTING POLICY 
 
I, _________________________, hereby acknowledge that I have received a copy of the MTA 
Drug & Alcohol Policy mandated by the U.S. Department of Transportation, Federal Transit 
Administration, for all covered personnel who perform a safety-sensitive function. 
 
I understand this policy is required by and conforms to 49 CFR PART 655, as amended, and has 
been duly adopted by the governing body of MTA.  Any provisions contained herein which are 
not required by either 49 CFR Part 655  or 49 CFR Part 40, as amended, and have been imposed 
solely on the authority of MTA designated as such in the policy. 
 
I also affirm my understanding that compliance with all provisions contained in this policy is a 
condition of my initial and continued employment.  By accepting employment or continuing to 
be employed by MTA in a safety-sensitive position, I am giving my consent to submit to testing 
for alcohol and drugs as specified in this policy and the regulations upon which it is based. 
 
I hereby agree to comply with all requirements of MTA policy and USDOT reglations 49 CFR 655 
and 49 CFR 40 with regard to implementation and execution of their substance abuse 
programs. 
 
I further understand that the information contained in the approved policy is subject to change, 
and that any change or addendum to this policy shall be provided to me in a manner consistent 
with the provisions of 49 CFR Part 655, as amended. 
 
Please sign and date this certification and return it to the Human Resources Manager. 
 
            
Employee Name (Print)    Witness Name (Print) 
 
            
Employee Signature     Witness Signature 
 
            
Date       Date  

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 103



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 104



Resolution No. 2017-40 Page 1 of 2 

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-40 

A RESOLUTION OF THE MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY BOARD 
ADOPTING A REVISED DRUG AND ALCOHOL POLICY. 

WHEREAS, the Mason Transit Authority Board approved and adopted Mason Transit 
Authority’s Drug and Alcohol Policy on February 6, 1996; and subsequently revised the policy on 
July 12, 2005, February 13, 2007, April 8, 2008, February 9, 2010, May 11, 2010, 
September 14, 2010, and July 15, 2014; and 

WHEREAS, from time to time, revisions are necessary to be consistent and in 
compliance with drug and alcohol testing as mandated by the Federal Transit Administration 
(FTA) and the U.S. Department of Transportation (DOT) in 49 CFR Part 40, and Part 655, as 
amended;  

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY 
BOARD that the revised Policy for Drug and Alcohol which is attached hereto and incorporated 
herein be established and adopted. 

Adopted this 19th day of December, 2017. 

______________________________ _____________________________ 
Terri Drexler, Chair   John Campbell, Vice-Chair  

______________________________ ____________________________ 
Wes Martin, Authority Member  Tracy Moore, Authority Member 

______________________________ ____________________________ 
Randy Neatherlin, Authority Member Deborah Petersen, Authority Member 

______________________________ ____________________________ 
Don Pogreba, Authority Member  Sandy Tarzwell, Authority Member 

______________________________ 
Kevin Shutty, Authority Member 

APPROVED AS TO CONTENT: _______ ______ 
 Danette Brannin, General Manager 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: ______ 
Robert W. Johnson, Legal Counsel 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 105



Resolution No. 2017-40 Page 2 of 2 
 

 
 
ATTEST:        DATE:    ______ 
           Tracy Becht, Clerk of the Board 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 106



Title: Drug and Alcohol Policy 
Number: 301 
Effective: January 1, 2018 
Cancels: August 1, 2014, September 14, 2010, 
Prepared by: LeeAnn McNulty 

Administrative Services Manager 
Approved by: Authority Board 

Resolution No. 2017-40 

See Also:  Employee Handbook, APP-301A-D, FLO-301A-C, FRM-301A-C 
Page 1 of 21 

POL-301 DRUG AND ALCOHOL POLICY 

This policy applies in general to all Mason Transit Authority (MTA) employees: full-time, 
part-time, seasonal, worker/driver, contract employees and contractors when they are 
on MTA property or when performing MTA-related business off property.  Employees 
who perform safety-sensitive functions, or contractors performing safety-sensitive 
functions for MTA will be subject to the specific requirements of federal regulations 49 
CFR Part 40, published December 11, 2000, and as amended thereafter, and 49 CFR Part 
655, published August 9, 2001 and as amended thereafter, issued pursuant to the 
Omnibus Transportation Employee Testing Act of 1991.  Participation in the federally 
mandated testing program is a condition of performing safety-sensitive functions.  This 
policy also applies to individuals who apply for employment with MTA.   

(Underlined text represents locally adopted language that is above the 
minimums established by the FTA.)  

1.0 POLICY STATEMENT 

MTA performs a vital public service for our community.  To ensure this service is 
delivered safely, we are dedicated to providing and maintaining a drug and alcohol free 
working environment in compliance with the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 and the 
Omnibus Transportation Employees Testing Act of 1991.  It is MTA’s policy to: 

• Assure that employees have the ability to perform assigned duties in a safe,
healthy and productive manner;

• Create a workplace free from the adverse effects of drug abuse and alcohol
misuse;

• Prohibit the unlawful distribution, possession or use of controlled substances.

MTA cares about the health and well-being of its employees.  We urge anyone who 
believes they are having an alcohol or chemical dependency problem to seek treatment 
before their job performance and employment is endangered.   

1.1 Purpose 

The purpose of this policy is to assure employee fitness for duty and to protect 
our employees, passengers and the public from risks posed by worker’s misuse 
of alcohol and abuse of drugs.  This policy is intended to comply with all 
applicable federal regulations governing workplace alcohol and drug abuse in the 
transit industry.  Regulations issued by the U.S. Department of Transportation 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 107



 
 

Title: Drug and Alcohol Policy 
Number: 301 
Effective: January 1, 2018 
Cancels: August 1, 2014, September 14, 2010,  
Prepared by: LeeAnn McNulty 
 Administrative Services Manager 
Approved by: Authority Board 
 Resolution No. 2017-40 

 

 
See Also:  Employee Handbook, APP-301A-D, FLO-301A-C, FRM-301A-C 
Page 2 of 21 

and the Federal Transit Administration mandate urine drug testing and evidential 
breath alcohol testing for safety-sensitive positions.  This policy sets forth the 
MTA substance abuse program and the testing and reporting guidelines for 
safety-sensitive employees as required by those regulations.  This policy also sets 
forth additional guidelines based on MTA’s independent authority for all 
employees.  See Appendix D for a list of abbreviations referenced in this policy. 

Copies of this policy will be given to safety-sensitive and non-safety sensitive 
employees during new employee orientation.  Employees will be kept apprised 
of changes and clarifications through periodic memos.  Revised policies will be 
distributed and receipt certified by safety-sensitive employees.  Copies of this 
Drug and Alcohol Policy will be available in the Human Resources Department. 

 1.2 Effects of Drug Use and Alcohol Misuse 

The cost of substance misuse/abuse is devastating to society, the workplace, the 
family, and individuals.  Two-thirds of all homicides are committed by people 
who used drugs or alcohol prior to the crime.  Two-thirds of all Americans will be 
involved in an alcohol-related accident during their lifetime.   

The medical costs of illness related to substance misuse/abuse are staggering.  
Each year 30,000 people die due to alcohol-caused liver disease.  Another 10,000 
die due to alcohol induced brain disease or suicide. 

Symptoms of substance abuse problems include: tardiness, alcohol odor on 
breath, overreaction to real or imagined criticism, complaints from clients or co-
workers, avoidance of associates, lowered job efficiency, confusion, difficulty in 
concentration, accidents on the job, absenteeism, leaving work early, excessive 
sick leave, frequent unscheduled short-term absences, and higher absentee rate 
compared to other workers. 

Besides the human costs described above, substance-abusing employees create 
business costs and legal liabilities for their employers.  These costs include: 

• Direct and measurable costs, such as the additional health care benefits 
claimed by substance abusers. 

• Less tangible and difficult to measure costs, such as the negative impact 
on employee morale or the diminished creativity of substance abusing 
individuals. 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 108



 
 

Title: Drug and Alcohol Policy 
Number: 301 
Effective: January 1, 2018 
Cancels: August 1, 2014, September 14, 2010,  
Prepared by: LeeAnn McNulty 
 Administrative Services Manager 
Approved by: Authority Board 
 Resolution No. 2017-40 

 

 
See Also:  Employee Handbook, APP-301A-D, FLO-301A-C, FRM-301A-C 
Page 3 of 21 

• Potential costs or “liabilities” such as a lawsuit filed by an injured party 
after an accident caused by the impaired employee. 

These costs arise because of the effects of substance abuse in many areas 
including: 
 

• Employee Health  • Community Relations 
• Intoxication  • Neurologic and Liver Damage 
• Productivity  • Fetal Alcohol Syndrome 
• Sensory Alteration  • Employee Morale 
• Decision-Making  • Dependence 
• Anxiety Reduction  • Safety 
• Security  • Toxic Psychosis 

   
This Drug and Alcohol Policy includes several components for prevention and 
intervention.  To promote a drug free workplace and comply with FTA 
regulations, MTA provides supervisory and employee education and contracts 
with EAP (Employee Assistance Program) and SAP (Substance Abuse 
Professional) services that provide employees access to professionals in 
addressing substance abuse.    

1.3 Applicability 

Employees who perform safety-sensitive functions, or contractors performing 
safety-sensitive functions for MTA, will be subject to the specific requirements of 
federal regulations and subsequent amendments to 49 CFR Part 40, published 
December 11, 2000 and as amended thereafter, and 49 CFR Part 655 published 
August 9, 2001 and as amended thereafter, issued pursuant to the Omnibus 
Transportation Employee Testing Act of 1991.  Participation in the federally 
mandated testing program is a condition of performing safety-sensitive 
functions. 

Employees shall promptly report to his/her supervisor or to the Drug and Alcohol 
Program Manager (DAPM) whenever he/she observes or has knowledge of an 
employee who poses a hazard to the safety and welfare of others.  Failure to 
report may result in discipline. 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 109



 
 

Title: Drug and Alcohol Policy 
Number: 301 
Effective: January 1, 2018 
Cancels: August 1, 2014, September 14, 2010,  
Prepared by: LeeAnn McNulty 
 Administrative Services Manager 
Approved by: Authority Board 
 Resolution No. 2017-40 

 

 
See Also:  Employee Handbook, APP-301A-D, FLO-301A-C, FRM-301A-C 
Page 4 of 21 

Supervisory level staff is required to use and apply all aspects of this policy.  Any 
supervisory level employee who knowingly disregards the requirements of this 
policy, or who is found to deliberately misuse the policy in regard to 
subordinates, shall be subject to disciplinary action, up to and including 
discharge. 

A safety-sensitive function is any duty related to the safe operation of public 
transit service as defined in 49 CFR Part 655, including: 

• Operating a revenue service vehicle, including when not in revenue 
service; 

• Operating a non-revenue service vehicle, when required to be operated 
by a holder of a Commercial Driver’s License; 

• Controlling the dispatch or movement of a revenue service vehicle; 

• Maintaining (including repairs, overhaul and rebuilding) a revenue service 
vehicle, or equipment used in revenue service including times when not 
in revenue service; 

• Carrying a firearm for security purposes. 

A list of safety-sensitive positions can be found in Appendix B. 

 1.4 Prohibited Substances 

“Prohibited drugs” include cocaine, marijuana, amphetamines (amphetamine, 
methamphetamine, MDMA, MDA), opioids (codeine, heroin, morphine, 
oxycodone, oxymorphone, hydrocodone, hydromorphone, phencyclidine (PCP), 
and any other substance recognized as a controlled substance in 49 CFR Part 40 
or 49 CFR Part 655 as amended.  “Prohibited drugs” includes use of or 
impairment by any illegal drug, misuse of legally prescribed or over-the-counter 
drugs, and illegally obtained prescription drugs. 

“Alcohol” includes the intoxicating agent in alcohol beverage, ethyl alcohol, and 
other low molecular weight alcohol including methyl and isopropyl alcohol.  The 
use of any beverage or mixture, including any medication, containing alcohol 
during or prior to performing a safety-sensitive function is prohibited. 

The appropriate use of legally prescribed drugs and non-prescription medication 
is not prohibited. However, the use of any substance which carries a warning 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 110



 
 

Title: Drug and Alcohol Policy 
Number: 301 
Effective: January 1, 2018 
Cancels: August 1, 2014, September 14, 2010,  
Prepared by: LeeAnn McNulty 
 Administrative Services Manager 
Approved by: Authority Board 
 Resolution No. 2017-40 

 

 
See Also:  Employee Handbook, APP-301A-D, FLO-301A-C, FRM-301A-C 
Page 5 of 21 

label indicating that mental functioning, motor skills, or judgment will be 
adversely affected MUST be reported to their department head prior to 
performing safety-sensitive duties.  It is the responsibility of employees to 
remove themselves from service if they are experiencing any adverse effects 
from medication that could impair their performance of essential job functions.  
Legally prescribed drugs must include documentation of the patient’s name, the 
substance name, the quantity to be taken and the period of authorization. 

 1.5 Prohibited Conduct 

In compliance with the Drug Free Workplace Act of 1988, employees are 
absolutely prohibited from using, manufacturing, dispensing, or distributing 
prohibited drugs in the workplace or while on duty.  Employees are also 
absolutely prohibited from possessing or being impaired by alcohol or prohibited 
drugs when reporting for duty, while on duty or when on MTA’s premises.  Such 
behavior constitutes a threat to the health, safety and security of themselves, 
their fellow employees, passengers and other members of the public.  Therefore, 
employees must not report for work or continue working under these 
circumstances.   

Employees who are reasonably suspected of not being fit for duty due to drug or 
alcohol use shall be suspended from job duties with pay pending an 
investigation.  Employees who fail to pass a drug or alcohol test shall be removed 
from duty immediately and subject to disciplinary action, up to and including 
discharge. 

Drug Use:  Reporting to work with any of the drugs identified in Section 1.4 in 
their system is prohibited at all times for safety-sensitive employees.  
 
Alcohol Use: No safety-sensitive employee shall report for duty within four hours 
of using alcohol, just before, during or just after performing safety-sensitive 
duties, or use alcohol while subject to being on call. In addition, unless the 
employee’s contribution to the accident can be completely discounted, non-
safety-sensitive and safety-sensitive employees involved in an accident in a 
revenue or non-revenue vehicle as defined by the FTA regulations shall abstain 
from alcohol consumption until he or she has been tested or until eight hours 
has elapsed, whichever occurs first.  A positive alcohol test under Mason Transit 
Authority is defined under this policy as a blood alcohol concentration of 0.02 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 111



 
 

Title: Drug and Alcohol Policy 
Number: 301 
Effective: January 1, 2018 
Cancels: August 1, 2014, September 14, 2010,  
Prepared by: LeeAnn McNulty 
 Administrative Services Manager 
Approved by: Authority Board 
 Resolution No. 2017-40 

 

 
See Also:  Employee Handbook, APP-301A-D, FLO-301A-C, FRM-301A-C 
Page 6 of 21 

and above on an evidentiary breath-testing device. A positive test under FTA 
authority is defined under this policy as a blood alcohol concentration greater 
than 0.04 on an evidentiary breath testing device. 

 1.6 Compliance with Testing 

Safety-sensitive employees who refuse to comply with a request for drug and/or 
alcohol testing under the circumstances defined in Section 2.3 Types of Testing, 
shall be removed from duty immediately under FTA authority.  Non-safety-
sensitive employees under the same circumstances will be removed from duty 
immediately under MTA authority.  Refusal to comply with a request for testing 
includes:  

• Failure to appear for any test (except for pre-employment) within a 
reasonable time, as determined by the Employer; 

• Failure to remain at the testing site until the testing process is complete; 

• Failure to provide a breath sample or urine specimen for any required 
breath or drug test; 

• Failure to permit the observation or monitoring of the specimen 
collection when required to do so; 

• Failure to provide a sufficient amount of urine when directed and there is 
no adequate medical explanation for the failure; 

• Failure to take a second test when directed to do so by the Employer or 
collector; 

• Failure to undergo within five days a medical examination by a licensed 
physician acceptable to the Medical Review Officer (MRO), who has 
expertise in the medical issues raised by the employee’s failure to 
provide a sufficient specimen when directed to do so by the MRO or 
employer; 

• Failure to cooperate with any part of the testing process (e.g., refuse to 
empty pockets when directed by the collector, behave in a 
confrontational way that disrupts the collection process, failure to wash 
hands after being directed to do so by the collector, or refusal to sign the 
test); 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 112



 
 

Title: Drug and Alcohol Policy 
Number: 301 
Effective: January 1, 2018 
Cancels: August 1, 2014, September 14, 2010,  
Prepared by: LeeAnn McNulty 
 Administrative Services Manager 
Approved by: Authority Board 
 Resolution No. 2017-40 

 

 
See Also:  Employee Handbook, APP-301A-D, FLO-301A-C, FRM-301A-C 
Page 7 of 21 

• Failure to follow the observer’s instructions during an observed collection 
including instructions to raise your clothing above the waist, lower 
clothing and underpants, and to turn around to permit the observer to 
determine if you have any type of prosthetic or other device that could 
be used to interfere with the collection process; 

• Possess or wear a prosthetic or other device that could be used to 
interfere with the collection process;  

• Admit to the collector or MRO that you adulterated or substituted the 
specimen; 

• The MRO reports that you have a verified adulterated or substituted test 
result; 

• Failure to sign step 2 of the alcohol test form; 

• Failure to remain at the scene of an accident without just cause prior to 
submitting to a test. 

Such refusals will be treated as a positive test, with the employee subject to 
discharge.  The employee will be referred to a Substance Abuse Professional for 
evaluation.  Referrals do not preclude the employee from being subject to 
discharge. 

 
2.0 TESTING FOR PROHIBITED SUBSTANCES 

Under FTA authority, all safety-sensitive employees and applicants for safety-sensitive 
positions with MTA will be subject to testing under the following circumstances; (1) 
prior to employment, (2) reasonable suspicion, (3) on a random, unannounced basis, 
and (4) following an accident as defined in Section 2.3(c).  

2.1 Confidentiality 

MTA will carry out this policy in a manner that respects the dignity and 
confidentiality of those involved.  Confidentiality is maintained throughout the 
drug/alcohol testing process from notification of the request to test, to 
collection of the required specimens, to notification of results.  

A. Maintenance of Records 
The Human Resources Department will maintain records of results in the 
strictest of confidence in a locked file cabinet separate from the official 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 113



 
 

Title: Drug and Alcohol Policy 
Number: 301 
Effective: January 1, 2018 
Cancels: August 1, 2014, September 14, 2010,  
Prepared by: LeeAnn McNulty 
 Administrative Services Manager 
Approved by: Authority Board 
 Resolution No. 2017-40 

 

 
See Also:  Employee Handbook, APP-301A-D, FLO-301A-C, FRM-301A-C 
Page 8 of 21 

personnel file.  In cases where disciplinary action results from a positive 
test, such information is shared only with those in a supervisory capacity 
directly involved in the disciplinary decisions related to the test result.   

 B. Release of Records 
Testing records and results will be released only to those authorized by 
the FTA rules to receive such information or as required by law.  This 
includes: 

a) The employee, if requested in writing. 
b) The National Traffic Safety Board (NTSB), if they are investigating an 

accident. 
c) Certain legal proceedings on behalf of the employee and arising from 

the result of a drug or alcohol test administered under FTA rules, 
including, but not limited to, a worker’s compensation, 
unemployment compensation, or other proceeding relating to a 
benefit sought by the employee. 

d) A court of competent jurisdiction or the decision-maker in a criminal 
or civil action resulting from an employee’s performance of safety-
sensitive duties, if the court determines that the drug or alcohol test 
information is relevant to the case and issues an order directing the 
employer to produce the information.  In such a proceeding, the 
information will be released only with a binding stipulation that the 
decision-maker to whom it is released will make it available only to 
parties to the proceeding.  

e) DOT agency or State Oversight Agency authorized by the DOT. 
f) Other DOT employers when a current or former employee is an 

applicant for a safety-sensitive position within two years of their MTA 
employment. 

g) Subsequent employers, if requested in writing by the employee. 
h) Other identified persons as requested in writing by the employee. 

 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 114



 
 

Title: Drug and Alcohol Policy 
Number: 301 
Effective: January 1, 2018 
Cancels: August 1, 2014, September 14, 2010,  
Prepared by: LeeAnn McNulty 
 Administrative Services Manager 
Approved by: Authority Board 
 Resolution No. 2017-40 

 

 
See Also:  Employee Handbook, APP-301A-D, FLO-301A-C, FRM-301A-C 
Page 9 of 21 

C. Reporting to Washington State Department of Licensing (RCW 46.25) 
In accordance with the provisions of RCW 46.25, MTA shall report 
positive drug test results and refusals to test of current CDL holders for 
tests conducted under the authority of the FTA regulations 49 CFR Part 
655 to the Washington State Department of Licensing under the 
following circumstances: 

a) An employee is terminated or resigns. 
b) An employee has not been cleared to return to performing safety 

sensitive functions. 

Also in accordance with this regulatory requirement, MTA’s MRO shall report all 
positive pre-employment drug test results or refusals to test for current CDL 
holders to DOL after consultation with MTA’s Drug and Alcohol Program 
Manager to confirm applicability of the regulation.  

Individuals whose positive test results or refusals to test are reported to DOL will 
be subject to the consequences outlined in the RCW 46.25. 

2.2 Methodology 

Testing will be conducted in accordance with 49 CFR, Part 40, as amended, and 
in a manner to assure a high degree of accuracy and reliability by using the 
techniques, chain of custody procedures, equipment and laboratory facilities 
which have been approved by the U.S. Department of Health and Human 
Services as called for in the federal regulations. Both alcohol and drug testing will 
be conducted in an environment that affords maximum privacy as described in 
49 CFR Parts 40 or 49 CFR Part 655 as amended. 

Specimen collection for urine drug testing will occur at a collection site 
designated by MTA.  Collection will be conducted according to procedures 
outlined in 49 CFR Part 40 and 49 CFR Part 655 as amended.  

A. Analytical urine testing will be conducted at a DHHS certified laboratory 
for marijuana, cocaine, opiates, amphetamines, phencyclidine and any 
other substance recognized as a controlled substance in 49 CFR Part 40 or 
49 CFR Part 655 as amended.  An initial drug screen will be conducted on 
each specimen after a split sample is provided to the laboratory.  For 
those specimens that are not negative, a confirmatory Gas 
Chromatography/Mass Spectrometry will be performed.  A positive test 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 115



 
 

Title: Drug and Alcohol Policy 
Number: 301 
Effective: January 1, 2018 
Cancels: August 1, 2014, September 14, 2010,  
Prepared by: LeeAnn McNulty 
 Administrative Services Manager 
Approved by: Authority Board 
 Resolution No. 2017-40 

 

 
See Also:  Employee Handbook, APP-301A-D, FLO-301A-C, FRM-301A-C 
Page 10 of 21 

result, at or above the minimum thresholds set forth by federal 
regulations in 49 CFR Part 40 or 49 CFR Part 655 as amended and verified 
by the MRO, will be considered a violation of this policy and will 
constitute a failure to pass a drug test.  Specimen validity testing will be 
conducted on all urine specimens provided for testing under DOT 
authority. Specimen validity testing is the evaluation of the specimen to 
determine if it is consistent with normal human urine.  The purpose of 
validity testing is to determine whether certain adulterants or foreign 
substances were added to the urine, if the urine was diluted, or if the 
specimen was substituted. 
 
Tests for alcohol concentration will be conducted using National Highway 
Traffic Safety Administration (NHTSA) approved evidential breath-testing 
devices operated by breath alcohol technicians trained to proficiency on 
the particular EBT they are using.  Equipment will be maintained 
according to the quality assurance plan developed for the particular piece 
of equipment.  The collection process will be conducted according to 
procedures set forth in 49 CFR Part 40 Subpart J-N.  A US Department of 
Transportation Breath Alcohol Testing Form will be completed with each 
collection.  In accordance with the regulations an employee who tests at 
0.02 or above will be retested within 15 to 30 minutes of the first test.  
This second test is considered a confirmatory test. A confirmed alcohol 
concentration of 0.02 or greater will be considered a positive alcohol test, 
a violation of this policy, and will constitute a failure to pass an alcohol 
test.  In the event an employee is unable to provide an adequate breath 
sample, within five days, the employee must seek an evaluation from a 
licensed physician acceptable to the MRO, who has expertise in the 
medical issues raised by the employee’s failure to provide a sufficient 
breath sample to determine if there is a reasonable explanation for the 
employee’s inability to provide an adequate amount of breath.  If the 
physician determines there is no reasonable explanation, the employee’s 
inability will be recorded as a refusal to take the test and a violation of 
this policy.   

B. An employee who tests positive for drugs or alcohol will be removed 
immediately from safety-sensitive job duties and informed about 
educational and rehabilitation programs available, and referred to a 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 116



 
 

Title: Drug and Alcohol Policy 
Number: 301 
Effective: January 1, 2018 
Cancels: August 1, 2014, September 14, 2010,  
Prepared by: LeeAnn McNulty 
 Administrative Services Manager 
Approved by: Authority Board 
 Resolution No. 2017-40 

 

 
See Also:  Employee Handbook, APP-301A-D, FLO-301A-C, FRM-301A-C 
Page 11 of 21 

Substance Abuse Professional (SAP). The SAP will evaluate the employee 
to determine what assistance, if any, the employee needs in resolving 
problems associated with substance abuse.  The SAP must make a 
recommendation for education or treatment for every referred individual 
who has violated a DOT drug and alcohol regulation.  Assessment by a 
SAP does not protect an employee from disciplinary action or guarantee 
employment.  A positive drug or alcohol test will result in disciplinary 
action up to and including discharge as outlined in Discipline 5.0 of this 
policy. 

2.3 TYPES OF TESTING 

A. Pre-employment/Pre-Transfer Testing (49 CFR Part 655.41)  
Applicants for all safety-sensitive positions shall undergo urine drug 
testing prior to employment.  Receipt by the agency of verified negative 
test results is required prior to performance of safety-sensitive functions 
and failure to pass will disqualify an applicant. 

Employees transferring from a non-safety-sensitive to a safety-sensitive 
position shall undergo urine drug testing prior to appointment to the new 
position.  Test results must be negative in order for the appointment to 
take place. 

If a pre-employment drug test is cancelled or the results are negative 
dilute, the applicant will be required to complete another DOT test with a 
verified negative result in order for the appointment to a safety-sensitive 
position to occur.  Applicants, who have failed a DOT drug and/or alcohol 
test for a previous DOT covered employer, must provide proof of a 
referral to an SAP, a substance abuse evaluation, and successful 
completion of the prescribed rehabilitation program prior to 
appointment to the safety-sensitive position. 

Covered employees who have not performed safety-sensitive functions 
for 90 consecutive calendar days, regardless of the reason, and have not 
been in the random pool, shall undergo pre-employment drug testing 
prior to returning to performing safety-sensitive work.  The results must 
be verified negative. 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 117



 
 

Title: Drug and Alcohol Policy 
Number: 301 
Effective: January 1, 2018 
Cancels: August 1, 2014, September 14, 2010,  
Prepared by: LeeAnn McNulty 
 Administrative Services Manager 
Approved by: Authority Board 
 Resolution No. 2017-40 

 

 
See Also:  Employee Handbook, APP-301A-D, FLO-301A-C, FRM-301A-C 
Page 12 of 21 

B. Reasonable Suspicion Testing (49 CFR Part 655.43) 

Under FTA authority, safety-sensitive employees are subject to a fitness- 
for-duty evaluation including a drug and/or alcohol test when there is a 
reason to suspect they are under the influence of any of the prohibited 
drugs while on duty, or have used alcohol immediately prior to, or during, 
or immediately after performing safety-sensitive duties or while on the 
property, in agency vehicles or in agency uniform.  Non-safety sensitive 
employees are also subject to a fitness-for-duty evaluation including drug 
and/or alcohol testing in these same circumstances under MTA authority. 
  A referral for testing will be made on the basis of documented objective 
facts and circumstances.  Supervisory personnel who are trained to 
detect signs and symptoms of drug and alcohol use will make such 
referrals.  Employees in safety-sensitive positions will be tested for on or 
off-duty drug or alcohol use when there is reasonable suspicion of on-
duty impairment supported by (1) evidence of specific personal 
observations concerning job performance, appearance, behavior, speech 
or bodily odors of the employee or direct observation of drug or alcohol 
use; (2) a pattern of abnormal conduct or erratic behavior; (3) arrest or 
conviction for a drug-related offense or the identification of an employee 
as the focus of a criminal investigation into illegal drug possession, use or 
trafficking; (4) information provided either by reliable and creditable 
sources or independently corroborated; or (5) newly discovered evidence 
that the employee has tampered with a previous drug test.  Safety-
sensitive employees will be removed immediately from performing 
safety-sensitive functions and subject to discipline as outlined in Section 
5.0 Discipline of this policy. 

Non-safety-sensitive employees who are reasonably suspected of not 
being fit for duty due to drug or alcohol use shall be suspended from job 
duties with pay pending the outcome of an investigation.  Such 
employees who fail to pass a drug or alcohol test shall also be subject to 
disciplinary action, up to and including discharge. 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 118



 
 

Title: Drug and Alcohol Policy 
Number: 301 
Effective: January 1, 2018 
Cancels: August 1, 2014, September 14, 2010,  
Prepared by: LeeAnn McNulty 
 Administrative Services Manager 
Approved by: Authority Board 
 Resolution No. 2017-40 

 

 
See Also:  Employee Handbook, APP-301A-D, FLO-301A-C, FRM-301A-C 
Page 13 of 21 

C. Post-Accident Testing (49 CFR 655.44) 

a) Accident: 

The occurrence associated with the operation of a vehicle, if as a 
result: 

1. An individual dies; or; 
2. An individual suffers bodily injury and immediately 

receives medical treatment away from the scene of the 
accident; or 

3. With respect to an occurrence in which the public transit 
vehicle involved is a bus, electric bus, van, or automobile, 
one or more vehicles (including non-FTA funded vehicles) 
incurs disabling damage as the result of the occurrence 
and such vehicle or vehicles are transported away from 
the scene by a tow truck or other vehicle; or 
 

b) Fatal Accident: 

As soon as practicable following an accident involving the loss of 
human life, and regardless of fault, each surviving employee 
performing safety-sensitive functions in the transit vehicle at the 
time of the accident, and any other covered employee whose 
performance could have contributed to the accident (as 
determined by MTA using the best information available at the 
time of the decision), shall be tested for alcohol and prohibited 
drugs. 

c) Non-Fatal Accidents: 

As soon as practicable following an accident not involving the loss 
of human life in which a transit vehicle is involved, each employee 
performing safety-sensitive functions in the transit vehicle at the 
time of the accident shall be tested for alcohol and prohibited 
substances unless MTA determines using the best information 
available at the time of the decision, that the employee’s 
performance can be completely discounted as a contributing 
factor to the accident.  Any other employee whose performance 
could have contributed to the accident (as determined by MTA 

 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 119



 
 

Title: Drug and Alcohol Policy 
Number: 301 
Effective: January 1, 2018 
Cancels: August 1, 2014, September 14, 2010,  
Prepared by: LeeAnn McNulty 
 Administrative Services Manager 
Approved by: Authority Board 
 Resolution No. 2017-40 

 

 
See Also:  Employee Handbook, APP-301A-D, FLO-301A-C, FRM-301A-C 
Page 14 of 21 

using the best information available at the time of the decision) 
shall also be tested for alcohol and prohibited substances. If an 
alcohol test required by this section is not administered within 
two (2) hours following the accident, MTA shall prepare and 
maintain on file a record stating the reasons the alcohol test was 
not promptly administered. If an alcohol test required by this 
section is not administered within eight (8) hours following the 
accident, the employer shall cease attempts to administer an 
alcohol test and shall maintain records on why the test was not 
performed.  Likewise, if a drug test has not been performed 
within 32 hours, the employer must cease attempts to conduct 
the drug test and document why the test was not administered. 

D. Random Testing (49 CFR Part 655.45) 

Employees in safety-sensitive positions will be subject to random, 
unannounced testing.  Selection of employees for random testing shall be 
made by a scientifically valid, computer based, random number 
generator that is matched to the employee’s social security number.  All 
covered employees will have an equal chance of being tested each time a 
selection is made.  Testing will be continuous throughout the year and 
conducted on all days and hours during which MTA is in operation.  Each 
year MTA will conduct the number of tests required to meet the 
established federal minimum rates for drug and alcohol.  These 
percentage rates are subject to change by direction of the Federal Transit 
Administration. 

Random drug and alcohol testing will be unannounced and 
unpredictable.  Employees selected for testing will receive a Letter of 
Notification and will report immediately to the appropriate testing site.  
Alcohol testing will only occur while the employee is performing safety-
sensitive functions, just prior to performing such functions or just after an 
employee has completed performing such functions.  Drug testing will 
occur anytime while that employee is on duty. 

E. Return to Duty Testing (49 CFR Part 655.46) 

Under FTA authority safety-sensitive employees who previously tested 
positive on a drug or alcohol test or who refused to submit to a test and 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 120



 
 

Title: Drug and Alcohol Policy 
Number: 301 
Effective: January 1, 2018 
Cancels: August 1, 2014, September 14, 2010,  
Prepared by: LeeAnn McNulty 
 Administrative Services Manager 
Approved by: Authority Board 
 Resolution No. 2017-40 

 

 
See Also:  Employee Handbook, APP-301A-D, FLO-301A-C, FRM-301A-C 
Page 15 of 21 

who, under the discipline policy are allowed to return to work, will be 
subject to testing for either drugs or alcohol or both prior to being 
released for duty by a Substance Abuse Professional.  Test results must 
be negative.  This same provision holds true for non-safety-sensitive 
employees under MTA authority.   

F. Follow-up Testing (49 CFR Part 655.47) 

 Employees who are allowed to return to work following a violation of this 
policy will be required to undergo frequent random drug and/or alcohol 
testing during the period of their re-entry with a minimum of six (6) 
randomly scheduled tests during the first twelve (12) months following 
their return. The Substance Abuse Professional will recommend the 
frequency and duration of the testing.  (See Section 5.0 Discipline.)   

2.4 Retests and Observed Tests 

Employees who have a verified positive drug test result or a test refusal due to 
adulteration or substitution may request a test of their split specimen within 72 
hours of notification, as all specimens are split and the non-tested portion is 
stored for a period of time.  The procedure for requesting this test may be 
obtained from the Human Resources Manager.  Employees do not have access to 
a test of their split specimen following an invalid result. 

There are certain situations that may require the employee to provide, at the 
collection site, another urine or breath sample, i.e., when insufficient volume or 
breath provides an inadequate sample, or the technician has reason to suspect 
tampering with the specimen.  Under the latter circumstances, a second 
collection may be under observed conditions. 

Under DOT authority (49 CFR Part 40.67 & 40.197) when MTA receives a report 
from its Medical Review Officer that the lab has reported a negative dilute test 
result with a creatinine level of 2 mg/dL or above but less than or equal to 5 
mg/dL, that employee will be directed to undergo a recollection under direct 
observation.  If the employee is on duty at the time of the report, they will be 
removed immediately from performing safety-sensitive functions and directed to 
report to the collection site for the observed recollection.  If the employee is not 
on duty when the report is received, they will be directed to report immediately 
to MTA’s collection site for the recollection when they next report for duty.  The 
result of this recollection test will be the result of record for reporting and 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 121



 
 

Title: Drug and Alcohol Policy 
Number: 301 
Effective: January 1, 2018 
Cancels: August 1, 2014, September 14, 2010,  
Prepared by: LeeAnn McNulty 
 Administrative Services Manager 
Approved by: Authority Board 
 Resolution No. 2017-40 

 

 
See Also:  Employee Handbook, APP-301A-D, FLO-301A-C, FRM-301A-C 
Page 16 of 21 

disciplinary purposes.  When MTA receives an MRO determination reporting a 
negative test result with a dilute specimen outside those parameters requiring 
retesting, the test will be treated as a negative test and no retesting will be 
required. 

Observed collections are required pursuant to 49 CFR Part 40.67 in the following 
circumstances: 

A. Return-to-Duty tests;  

B. Follow-up tests;  

C. Anytime the employee is directed to provide another specimen because 
the temperature on the original specimen was out of the accepted 
temperature range of 90°F - 100°F; 

D. Anytime the employee is directed to provide another specimen because 
the original specimen appeared to have been tampered with; 

E. Anytime a collector observes materials brought to the collection site or 
the employee’s conduct clearly indicates an attempt to tamper with a 
specimen; 

F. Anytime the employee is directed to provide another specimen because 
the laboratory reported to the MRO that the original specimen was 
invalid and the MRO determined that there was not an adequate medical 
explanation for the result; 

G. Anytime the employee is directed to provide another specimen because 
the MRO determined that the original specimen was positive, adulterated 
or substituted, but had to be cancelled because the test of the split 
specimen could not be performed. 

The employee who is being observed will be required to raise his or her shirt, 
blouse, or dress/skirt, as appropriate, above the waist; and lower clothing and 
underpants to show the collector, by turning around that they do not have a 
prosthetic device.  The observation must be made by an individual of the same 
gender as the donor.  The observer must view urine stream from the donor to 
collection container. 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 122



 
 

Title: Drug and Alcohol Policy 
Number: 301 
Effective: January 1, 2018 
Cancels: August 1, 2014, September 14, 2010,  
Prepared by: LeeAnn McNulty 
 Administrative Services Manager 
Approved by: Authority Board 
 Resolution No. 2017-40 

 

 
See Also:  Employee Handbook, APP-301A-D, FLO-301A-C, FRM-301A-C 
Page 17 of 21 

2.5 Medical Review Officer (MRO) 

MTA will establish a contractual relationship with a qualified Medical Review 
Officer who is a licensed physician with knowledge of substance abuse disorders 
and who has met the qualification training requirements outlined in 49 CFR Part 
40 Subpart G.  The MRO or authorized staff will personally review at least 5% of 
all custody/control forms quarterly.  In addition, the MRO will review and 
interpret confirmed positive test results, examining alternative medical 
explanations for these results.  Prior to verifying a positive test, the MRO will 
contact the affected employee to discuss the test results and provide an 
opportunity to offer a legitimate medical reason for the test results.  If the MRO 
determines the test is a verified positive, the MRO will contact both the MTA 
Program Manager and the employee with that determination.  MTA’s MRO will 
fully comply with the role and responsibilities prescribed in Subpart G of 49 CFR 
Part 40.  

2.6 Substance Abuse Professional (SAP) 

MTA will contract with a qualified Substance Abuse Professional (SAP) to 
evaluate employees who have violated this policy to determine whether they 
need help in resolving problems associated with drug abuse and/or alcohol 
misuse.  The SAP shall be a licensed physician (Medical Doctor or Doctor of 
Osteopathy) or a licensed or certified psychologist, social worker, or employee 
assistance professional; or an addiction counselor (certified by the National 
Association of Alcoholism and Drug Abuse Counselors Certification Commission 
or by the International Certification Reciprocity Consortium/Alcohol and Other 
Drug Abuse.  The SAP shall have knowledge of, and clinical experience in, the 
diagnosis and treatment of alcohol and controlled substance-related disorders. 
MTA’s SAP will recommend education or treatment for all employees referred 
for violation of DOT drug and alcohol regulations. 

3.0 DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE ACT OF 1988 

In compliance with the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 the distribution, dispensing, 
possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited at MTA.  Employees violating 
this prohibition will be disciplined up to and including discharge.  Also, all employees are 
required to notify MTA of any conviction under a criminal drug statute for violations 
occurring on or off MTA property within five days of conviction and any moving violation 
involving drugs or alcohol causing the suspension or revocation of the employee’s 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 123



 
 

Title: Drug and Alcohol Policy 
Number: 301 
Effective: January 1, 2018 
Cancels: August 1, 2014, September 14, 2010,  
Prepared by: LeeAnn McNulty 
 Administrative Services Manager 
Approved by: Authority Board 
 Resolution No. 2017-40 

 

 
See Also:  Employee Handbook, APP-301A-D, FLO-301A-C, FRM-301A-C 
Page 18 of 21 

driver’s license.  Failure to report such a conviction will result in discipline, up to and 
including discharge.  MTA will notify FTA within ten days after receiving notice of such 
conviction.  MTA will conduct a drug-free awareness program informing employees 
about the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace and available substance abuse 
counseling, rehabilitation and employee assistance programs. 

4.0 EMPL0YEE ASSISTANCE PROGRAM (EAP) 

MTA supports employees who volunteer for treatment of alcohol misuse or drug abuse. 
Alcoholism and drug dependency are treatable illnesses and can be successfully dealt 
with if identified in their early stages and referred to an appropriate source for 
treatment.  Indications of alcohol misuse and drug abuse can include extreme changes 
in personality, problems with other employees, interrupted or changing sleep patterns, 
attendance problems, concealment of social habits involving drugs and alcohol, and 
family problems.  Continued alcohol and drug dependency can lead to deteriorating 
health. 

MTA encourages employees to seek treatment voluntarily and makes available the 
Employee Assistance Program.  Any employee, who comes forth and notifies the agency 
of alcohol or chemical abuse problems prior to violating any of the prohibited conduct 
rules, will be given the assistance extended to employees with any other illness.  Sick 
leave, vacation leave or leave of absence without pay may be granted for treatment and 
rehabilitation as in other illnesses, and insurance coverage for treatment will be 
provided to the extent of similarly benefited individual coverage.   

While MTA is anxious to assist employees with alcohol or chemical dependency 
problems, employees are expected to remember that safety is our first priority.  
Therefore, employees must not report for work or continue working if they are under 
the influence of, or impaired by, alcohol or any controlled substance.  Violations of this 
policy will result in disciplinary action (see Discipline section) regardless of whether or 
not an employee is participating in a treatment program.  Such employees are expected 
to observe all other job performance standards and work rules, including attendance, 
required of all employees. 

 5.0 DISCIPLINE – CONSEQUENCES OF POLICY VIOLATIONS 

Under FTA regulations, discipline for program violations is determined at the local level.  
The MTA discipline policy for prohibited conduct is as follows.  Individual circumstances 
involving a positive test may merit action, up to and including discharge: 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 124



 
 

Title: Drug and Alcohol Policy 
Number: 301 
Effective: January 1, 2018 
Cancels: August 1, 2014, September 14, 2010,  
Prepared by: LeeAnn McNulty 
 Administrative Services Manager 
Approved by: Authority Board 
 Resolution No. 2017-40 

 

 
See Also:  Employee Handbook, APP-301A-D, FLO-301A-C, FRM-301A-C 
Page 19 of 21 

5.1 Any employee who tests positive for alcohol at a 0.02 alcohol level or higher will 
be removed from duty, given a list of treatment resources available for 
evaluating and resolving drug and alcohol problems, referred to the SAP, and 
discharged. 

5.2 An employee who has volunteered for treatment and has a positive result under 
any testing circumstances will be discharged. 

5.3 Any safety-sensitive employee who tests positive from reasonable suspicion or 
post-accident testing for the presence of drugs will be subject to discharge. 

5.4 Any employee who tests for alcohol at a level above 0.00 but below 0.02 will be 
provided information about the EAP.  

5.5 Any safety-sensitive employee who refuses to comply with a request for testing 
will be subject to discipline for insubordination and discharged. 

6.0 EDUCATION AND TRAINING 

The effects of controlled substance abuse and alcohol misuse negatively impact an 
individual’s personal and work experience.  If you believe you have a substance abuse or 
alcohol misuse problem, please contact the following agencies in Mason County: 

• Crisis Clinic of Mason/Thurston Counties (360) 586-2800 
• Mason County Drug Abuse Prevention (360) 427-1686 

It is the policy of MTA to make training and education programs available to all agency 
employees.  All safety-sensitive employees will receive 60 minutes of training on the 
effects of drugs and alcohol on the body, the major elements of the DOT drug testing 
regulations, and MTA’s Drug and Alcohol Policy, and resources for dealing with a 
substance abuse problem.  The training will also provide detailed information on alcohol 
misuse, specifically as it impacts an individual’s biological, emotional, and psychosocial 
well-being.  The effects of misuse can be seen in an individual’s work performance, 
attitude and social interaction. 

Supervisors, managers, and union officials will receive a minimum of two (2) hours of 
instruction on how to identify the signs of drug and/or alcohol use or impairment and 
MTA’s reasonable suspicion investigation process.  

  

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 125



 
 

Title: Drug and Alcohol Policy 
Number: 301 
Effective: January 1, 2018 
Cancels: August 1, 2014, September 14, 2010,  
Prepared by: LeeAnn McNulty 
 Administrative Services Manager 
Approved by: Authority Board 
 Resolution No. 2017-40 

 

 
See Also:  Employee Handbook, APP-301A-D, FLO-301A-C, FRM-301A-C 
Page 20 of 21 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 
  

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 126



 
 

Title: Drug and Alcohol Policy 
Number: 301 
Effective: January 1, 2018 
Cancels: August 1, 2014, September 14, 2010,  
Prepared by: LeeAnn McNulty 
 Administrative Services Manager 
Approved by: Authority Board 
 Resolution No. 2017-40 

 

 
See Also:  Employee Handbook, APP-301A-D, FLO-301A-C, FRM-301A-C 
Page 21 of 21 

 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY DRUG AND ALCOHOL TESTING POLICY 
 
I, _________________________, hereby acknowledge that I have received a copy of the MTA 
Drug & Alcohol Policy mandated by the U.S. Department of Transportation, Federal Transit 
Administration, for all covered personnel who perform a safety-sensitive function. 
 
I understand this policy is required by and conforms to 49 CFR PART 655, as amended, and has 
been duly adopted by the governing body of MTA.  Any provisions contained herein which are 
not required by either 49 CFR Part 655  or 49 CFR Part 40, as amended, and have been imposed 
solely on the authority of MTA designated as such in the policy. 
 
I also affirm my understanding that compliance with all provisions contained in this policy is a 
condition of my initial and continued employment.  By accepting employment or continuing to 
be employed by MTA in a safety-sensitive position, I am giving my consent to submit to testing 
for alcohol and drugs as specified in this policy and the regulations upon which it is based. 
 
I hereby agree to comply with all requirements of MTA policy and USDOT reglations 49 CFR 655 
and 49 CFR 40 with regard to implementation and execution of their substance abuse 
programs. 
 
I further understand that the information contained in the approved policy is subject to change, 
and that any change or addendum to this policy shall be provided to me in a manner consistent 
with the provisions of 49 CFR Part 655, as amended. 
 
Please sign and date this certification and return it to the Human Resources Manager. 
 
 
            
Employee Name (Print)    Witness Name (Print) 
 
            
Employee Signature     Witness Signature 
 
            
Date       Date  

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 127



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 128



Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item:   New Business – Item 4 – Actionable 
Subject:    Employee Recognition Policy Update 
Prepared by:  LeeAnn McNulty, Administrative Services Manager 
Approved by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Date:    December 19, 2017 
 
 
Summary for Discussion Purposes: 
 
MTA has an employee that has approached 25 years of service and in consulting our 
Employee Recognition Policy, there was no guidance since at the time of initial drafting 
of the policy, MTA had not existed for that amount of time. Revisions have been made 
to make the policy more flexible for years of service changes. A track changes version 
of the policy is included for ease in reviewing the amendments. 
 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
Employee recognition is included in the annual budget. 
 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
Approve. 
 
Motion for Consideration: 
 
Move that the Mason Transit Authority Board approve Resolution No. 2017-41 and the 
attached Employee Recognition Policy.  
 

M
ason T

ransit A
uthority B

oard 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 129



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 130



Title: Employee Recognition Program 
Number: 302 
Effective: November December 197, 20175 
Cancels: April November 17, 1, 2015 
Prepared by: Rikki Johnson, Human Resources 
ManagerLeeAnn McNulty, Administrative Services 
Manager 
Approved by: Authority Board 

Resolution No. 2015-04A12017-41 

See Also:  N/A 
Page 1 of 2 

POL-302 EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION PROGRAM 

This policy applies to all Mason Transit Authority (MTA) employees 

1.0 Purpose 

1.1 Employee recognition means any award, token of appreciation, prize, meal, 
entertainment, or event that is intended to specifically promote good will; foster 
a sense of pride in affiliation with MTA, promote safety, productivity, reliability, 
efficiency, dedication, commitment to the community, and/or cost savings for 
MTA. 

2.0 Policy 

2.1 MTA or its individual departments, subject to budgetary authority and in 
accordance with RCW 41.60.150, expend funds for the purpose of employee 
recognition.  Recognition will be of de minimis value.  In no event shall the total 
of all awards/gifts received by an employee exceed the non-taxable limit as set 
by the Internal Revenue Service.  The expenditure of funds for meals related to 
an employee recognition event must be authorized by the General Manager in 
advance, and may not exceed for per-employee cost of meals covered under 
MTA’s Travel and Expense Policy governing travel-status meals.  The General 
Manager must approve the expenditures of funds for use of facilities, 
entertainment, or similar costs for the purposes of employee recognition in 
advance. 

2.2 At the direction of the General Manager, Human ResourcesAdministrative 
Services department will coordinate employee events and awards.  Departments 
will manage the department level employee recognition events and awards.  
Recognition events and awards must follow a reasonable standard.  MTA 
encourages recognition activities that provide employees and volunteers a 
meaningful experience, but not considered extravagant by community 
standards, and in accordance with standards outlined in RCW 41.60.150, 
Recognition Awards. 

3.0 Annual Recognition Event 

3.1 This event will be coordinated by the General Manager and Human 
ResourcesAdministrative Services department, based on input from the 
Leadership Team.  Funding for the program will be maintained centrally within 
the Human ResourcesAdministrative Services department. 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 131



 
 

Title: Employee Recognition Program 
Number: 302 
Effective: November December 197, 20175 
Cancels: April November 17, 1, 2015 
Prepared by: Rikki Johnson, Human Resources 
ManagerLeeAnn McNulty, Administrative Services 
Manager 
Approved by: Authority Board  
 Resolution No. 2015-04A12017-41 

 

See Also:  N/A 
Page 2 of 2 

3.1.1 Years of Service:  Employees will be recognized annually for years of 
service.  At five year increments, an award may be given to an official or 
employee who has completed aggregate Mason Transit Authority years of 
service. For five and 10 years of service, the employee will receive an 
engraved key chain.  For 15 years of service, the employee will receive an 
engraved pen.  For 20 years of service, the employee will receive an 
embroidered fleece jacket. 

 
3.1.2 Safety Awards:  Employees will be recognized annually for zero 

preventable accidents. 

3.1.3 General Manager Recognition Award:  This award will be used in 
extreme areas of exceptional performance or career achievement.  For 
example, inspires and provides opportunities to motivate, lead and/or 
develop others; develops crucial process, product or technology over a 
sustained period of time with significant impact; or produces significant 
cost savings. 

4.0 Star Award 

4.1 The Star Award is recognition given from one employee to other employees for 
day-to-day good deeds which could include help on a project, exemplary 
customer service, an innovative idea, or overall positive attitude and 
performance. 

5.0 Retirement Awards 

5.1 Human ResourcesAdministrative Services department and department heads 
will work together to honor retirees by providing cake, card and beverages. 

6.0 MTA Employee Appreciation Day 

 6.1 During the Spring National Transportation week, exempt employees will honor 
all non-exempt employees for their service. 

7.0 Employee Recognition Awards 

 7.1 To assist managers in recognizing outstanding performance and excellence 
through items of de minimis value in a manner that fits the needs of the 
department. 

 

Formatted: Space After:  0 pt, Don't adjust space between
Latin and Asian text, Don't adjust space between Asian text
and numbers, Tab stops: Not at  0.5" +  1.5"

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 132



Resolution No. 2017-41 Page 1 of 1 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-41 

A RESOLUTION OF THE MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY BOARD 
ADOPTING A REVISED EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION POLICY. 

 WHEREAS, the existing Employee Recognition Policy is out of date relating to years of 
service and needs to be updated;  

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY 
BOARD that the revised Employee Recognition Policy which is attached hereto and 
incorporated herein be established and adopted. 
 

Adopted this 19th day of December, 2017. 
 
 
______________________________  _____________________________ 
Terri Drexler, Chair      John Campbell, Vice-Chair  
 
______________________________  ____________________________ 
Wes Martin, Authority Member   Tracy Moore, Authority Member 
 
______________________________  ____________________________ 
Randy Neatherlin, Authority Member  Deborah Petersen, Authority Member 
 
______________________________  ____________________________ 
Don Pogreba, Authority Member   Sandy Tarzwell, Authority Member 
     
______________________________ 
Kevin Shutty, Authority Member 
 
APPROVED AS TO CONTENT:    _______    ______ 
          Danette Brannin, General Manager 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:        ______ 
    Robert W. Johnson, Legal Counsel 
 
 
ATTEST:        DATE:    ______ 
           Tracy Becht, Clerk of the Board 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 133



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 134



Title: Employee Recognition Program 
Number: 302 
Effective: December 19, 2017 
Cancels: November 17, 2015 
Prepared by: LeeAnn McNulty 

Administrative Services Manager 
Approved by: Authority Board 

Resolution No. 2017-41 

See Also:  N/A 
Page 1 of 2 

POL-302 EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION PROGRAM 

This policy applies to all Mason Transit Authority (MTA) employees 

1.0 Purpose 

1.1 Employee recognition means any award, token of appreciation, prize, meal, 
entertainment, or event that is intended to specifically promote good will; foster 
a sense of pride in affiliation with MTA, promote safety, productivity, reliability, 
efficiency, dedication, commitment to the community, and/or cost savings for 
MTA. 

2.0 Policy 

2.1 MTA or its individual departments, subject to budgetary authority and in 
accordance with RCW 41.60.150, expend funds for the purpose of employee 
recognition.  Recognition will be of de minimis value.  In no event shall the total 
of all awards/gifts received by an employee exceed the non-taxable limit as set 
by the Internal Revenue Service.  The expenditure of funds for meals related to 
an employee recognition event must be authorized by the General Manager in 
advance, and may not exceed for per-employee cost of meals covered under 
MTA’s Travel and Expense Policy governing travel-status meals.  The General 
Manager must approve the expenditures of funds for use of facilities, 
entertainment, or similar costs for the purposes of employee recognition in 
advance. 

2.2 At the direction of the General Manager, Administrative Services department 
will coordinate employee events and awards.  Departments will manage the 
department level employee recognition events and awards.  Recognition events 
and awards must follow a reasonable standard.  MTA encourages recognition 
activities that provide employees and volunteers a meaningful experience, but 
not considered extravagant by community standards, and in accordance with 
standards outlined in RCW 41.60.150, Recognition Awards. 

3.0 Annual Recognition Event 

3.1 This event will be coordinated by the General Manager and Administrative 
Services department, based on input from the Leadership Team.  Funding for the 
program will be maintained centrally within the Administrative Services 
department. 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 135



 
 

Title: Employee Recognition Program 
Number: 302 
Effective: December 19, 2017 
Cancels: November 17, 2015 
Prepared by: LeeAnn McNulty 
 Administrative Services Manager 
Approved by: Authority Board  
 Resolution No. 2017-41 

 

See Also:  N/A 
Page 2 of 2 

3.1.1 Years of Service:  Employees will be recognized annually for years of 
service.At five year increments, an award may be given to an official or 
employee who has completed aggregate Mason Transit Authority years of 
service.  

 
3.1.2 Safety Awards:  Employees will be recognized annually for zero 

preventable accidents. 

3.1.3 General Manager Recognition Award:  This award will be used in 
extreme areas of exceptional performance or career achievement.  For 
example, inspires and provides opportunities to motivate, lead and/or 
develop others; develops crucial process, product or technology over a 
sustained period of time with significant impact; or produces significant 
cost savings. 

4.0 Star Award 

4.1 The Star Award is recognition given from one employee to other employees for 
day-to-day good deeds which could include help on a project, exemplary 
customer service, an innovative idea, or overall positive attitude and 
performance. 

5.0 Retirement Awards 

5.1 Administrative Services department and department heads will work together to 
honor retirees by providing cake, card and beverages. 

6.0 MTA Employee Appreciation Day 

 6.1 During the Spring National Transportation week, exempt employees will honor 
all non-exempt employees for their service. 

7.0 Employee Recognition Awards 

 7.1 To assist managers in recognizing outstanding performance and excellence 
through items of de minimis value in a manner that fits the needs of the 
department. 

 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 136



Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item: New Business – Item 5 – Actionable 
Subject:   Customer Comment/Complaint Policy 
Prepared by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Approved by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Date:   December 19, 2017 

Summary for Discussion Purposes: 

This policy was developed from a standard WSDOT document and required for 
receiving grant money. 

This form of policy replaces an out-of-date earlier version. 

Legal Counsel and a member of the Board have reviewed and approved this form of the 
updated policy. 

Fiscal Impact: 

None. 

Staff Recommendation: 

Approve. 

Motion for Consideration: 

Move that Mason Transit Authority Board approve Resolution No. 2017-42 and the 
attached Customer Comment/Complaint Policy.  

M
ason T

ransit A
uthority B

oard 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 137



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 138



Title: Customer Comment/Complaint Policy 
Number: 505 
Effective: December 19, 2017 
Cancels: Pol-2000.05 Submitting Comments to MTA 
Prepared by: Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Approved by: Authority Board 

Resolution No. 2017-42 

Page 1 of 4 

POL-505 Customer Complaint Policy 

This policy applies to all Mason Transit Authority (MTA) officers, employees, 
board members or agents. 

1.0 Purpose 

The purpose of the Customer Complaint Policy is to establish a policy that 
ensures riders of the system have an easy and accessible way to provide 
feedback to the agency. Mason Transit Authority is open to hearing any 
customer feedback including complaints, comments, suggestions, or concerns. 

2.0 Policy 

Mason Transit Authority shall seek to continuously improve its services by 
encouraging comments and feedback from riders of Mason Transit Authority 
services, employees, and members of the community at large. Mason Transit 
Authority shall provide a variety of ways to receive input and shall ensure that 
persons making comments receive an acknowledgement of their comments and 
a report on the outcomes of any investigations or changes that may result if 
requested. 

Mason Transit Authority shall maintain a comprehensive education and outreach 
program to ensure that persons with special needs and the general public are 
aware of the methods by which the comment process can be accessed. 

3.0 Contacting MTA 

Riders can contact MTA in the following ways: 

1. US Mail: Riders can mail their feedback to the Mason Transit Authority office
at 790 E Johns Prairie Rd, Shelton, WA 98584.  A pre-addressed comment card
is available on buses and at the Transit-Community Center.

2. Feedback Line: Riders can contact MTA 360-427-5033 or toll free at 800-374-
3747. This line is available 24 hour a day, seven days a week. Add information
for Spanish speaking assistance.

3. E-mail: Riders can contact MTA by e-mail at mta@masontransit.org.
4. Fax: Riders can send written feedback by fax to 360-426-1152.
5. TTY/TTD Line: 711 or 800-833-6388.
6. Website: Riders can offer feedback on the MTA Website at

www.masontransit.org.

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 139



 
 

Title: Customer Comment/Complaint Policy 
Number: 505 
Effective: December 19, 2017 
Cancels: Pol-2000.05 Submitting Comments to MTA 
Prepared by: Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Approved by: Authority Board 
 Resolution No. 2017-42 

 
 

Page 2 of 4 

4.0 Feedback Review Process 

All feedback from customers is valued and will be reviewed by the Operations 
Manager or designee. After review, the Operations Manager or designee will 
distribute the customer communication to the appropriate agency 
representative(s). 

 
• Customer concerns, complaints, or employee commendations will be 

forwarded to the appropriate supervisor.  
• Recommendations for service or system modification will be sent to the 

Outreach/Transit Planner and Service Review Committee. 
• Questions regarding discrimination or bias will be sent to the agency Equal 

Opportunity Officer. 
• All compliments will be entered into the tracking system before being 

forwarded to supervisor(s) or manager. Compliments regarding individuals 
shall be forwarded to the employee and his/her supervisor for 
acknowledgement. Compliments for the agency shall be forwarded to the 
General Manager or his/her designee. 

 
5.0 Tracking 

Mason Transit Authority shall maintain a tracking system for all comments 
received which provides a unique identification of each comment and allows 
ready access to information on the status of the comment at any time. 
 
The comment process, i.e. data entry, assignment, tracking, follow-up, response, 
reporting, shall be managed by the Operations Manager or designee. 

 
6.0 Investigation and Follow-up 

Complaints or concerns shall be assigned by the Operations Manager or 
designee to an appropriate Mason Transit Authority employee for investigation 
and follow-up. Comments and/or suggestions about MTA services will be 
assigned to staff responsible for service development or another appropriate 
department for investigation and follow-up. 

 
7.0 Acknowledgement 

Anyone who submits a comment, complaint, or service suggestion to MTA shall 
receive a response provided they give legible contact information.  

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 140



 
 

Title: Customer Comment/Complaint Policy 
Number: 505 
Effective: December 19, 2017 
Cancels: Pol-2000.05 Submitting Comments to MTA 
Prepared by: Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Approved by: Authority Board 
 Resolution No. 2017-42 

 
 

Page 3 of 4 

• Feedback sent via mail or fax will receive with an initial response within seven 
(7) business days.  

• E-mail, phone, or web originated messages will be returned with 72 hours.   
 

Should the period of time needed for response exceed the above time, the 
person making the comment shall be advised of the status within the time 
frame, in addition to receiving a final response. 

 
8.0 Customer Appeals Process 

Any person who is dissatisfied with the response they receive from MTA is 
welcome to appeal the decision by contacting the General Manager or 
Outreach/Transit Planner. A review team consisting of the General Manager, 
Operations Manager, a Mason County Transportation Advisory Board (MCTAB) 
representative and one other staff member will review customer appeals. 

 
9.0   Information About Policy 

Information about the Customer Complaint Policy, including how to submit a 
complaint, will be made available to riders: 

 
• On comment cards available on all transportation vehicles  
• At the T-CC and Johns Prairie Facilities 
• Letters to Dial-a-Ride users upon initial registration 
• In Schedules and Guides 
• On Mason Transit Authority website 
• Presentations to community organizations and groups 

 
10.0 Reporting 

A summary of the status of all comments shall be provided to the Board, staff 
and employees on a periodic basis for use in reviewing and evaluating service 
and planning. 

 
11.0 Protection from Retribution/Non-Discrimination 

Mason Transit Authority shall ensure that the quality of service delivered to 
persons submitting comments to the agency will not, in any way, be negatively 
impacted by that submission. Customers of MTA should be able to submit 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 141



 
 

Title: Customer Comment/Complaint Policy 
Number: 505 
Effective: December 19, 2017 
Cancels: Pol-2000.05 Submitting Comments to MTA 
Prepared by: Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Approved by: Authority Board 
 Resolution No. 2017-42 

 
 

Page 4 of 4 

feedback without fear of retribution from the agency. If a rider feels like they are 
being treated unfairly in response to the feedback that they provided, they 
should contact the MTA Outreach/Transit Planner or General Manager.  MTA will 
appropriately discipline any employee that retaliates against a customer. 

 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 142



Resolution No. 2017-42 Page 1 of 2 

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-42 

A RESOLUTION OF THE MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY BOARD 
RESCINDING RESOLUTION NO. 2014-08 AND ADOPTING A NEW 

CUSTOMER COMMENT/COMPLAINT POLICY. 

WHEREAS, the Mason Transit Authority Board approved and adopted a Public 
Comment Policy (POL-2000.05); and 

WHEREAS, as a requirement for receiving grant money, Washington State Department 
of Transportation requires that the attached policy replace any other earlier policies used by 
Mason Transit Authority;  

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY 
BOARD that Resolution No. 2014-08 be rescinded in its entirety; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Customer Comment/Complaint Policy which is 
attached hereto and incorporated herein be established and adopted. 

Adopted this 19th day of December, 2017. 

______________________________ _____________________________ 
Terri Drexler, Chair   John Campbell, Vice-Chair  

______________________________ ____________________________ 
Wes Martin, Authority Member  Tracy Moore, Authority Member 

______________________________ ____________________________ 
Randy Neatherlin, Authority Member Deborah Petersen, Authority Member 

______________________________ ____________________________ 
Don Pogreba, Authority Member  Sandy Tarzwell, Authority Member 

______________________________ 
Kevin Shutty, Authority Member 

APPROVED AS TO CONTENT: _______ ______ 
 Danette Brannin, General Manager 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: ______ 
Robert W. Johnson, Legal Counsel 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 143



Resolution No. 2017-42 Page 2 of 2 
 

 
ATTEST:        DATE:    ______ 
           Tracy Becht, Clerk of the Board 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 144



Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item: New Business – Item 6 – Actionable 
Subject:   Paid Sick Leave Policy  
Prepared by:  LeeAnn McNulty, Administrative Services Manager 
Approved by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Date:   December 19, 2017 

Summary for Discussion Purposes: 

This proposed policy is prepared in accordance with Washington State’s new paid sick 
leave law.  The law provides for 1 hour of paid sick leave for every 40 hours worked to 
most employees to care for themselves or their family members.  For a full-time non-
exempt employee, the law would provide 52 hours of paid sick time. MTA currently 
offers a more generous sick leave policy.  In an effort to minimize the administrative 
burden of managing two banks of sick leave, MTA has chosen to incorporate the new 
law’s requirements to the existing 96 hours full-time employees currently receive each 
year. 

Legal Counsel and a member of the Board have reviewed and approved this form of the 
policy. 

Fiscal Impact: 

TBD. 

Staff Recommendation: 

Approve. 

Motion for Consideration: 

Move that the Mason Transit Authority Board approve Resolution No. 2017-43 
 and the attached Paid Sick Leave Policy. 

M
ason T

ransit A
uthority B

oard 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 145



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 146



 
 

Title: Paid Sick Leave Policy 
Number: 309 
Effective: January 1, 2018 
Cancels: N/A 
Prepared by: LeeAnn McNulty, 
 Administrative Services Manager 
Approved by: Authority Board 
 Resolution No. 2017-43 

 

Page 1 of 7 

POL-309 PAID SICK LEAVE POLICY 

This policy applies to all Mason Transit Authority (MTA) employees. 

1.0 Purpose 

1.1  Paid sick leave is available for employees to care for their health and the health 
of their family members per Washington state law. 

 
2.0 Policy 

2.1 Authorized Uses of Paid Sick Leave  
Paid sick leave may be used for the following:  

o   An employee’s mental or physical illness, injury or health condition;  
o Preventive care such as a medical, dental or optical appointments 

and/or treatment;  
o Care of a family member with an illness, injury, health condition and/or 

preventive care such as a medical/dental/optical appointment;  
o Closure of the employee’s place of business or child’s school/place of 

care by order of a public official for any health-related reasons;  
o If the employee or the employee’s family member is a victim of 

domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking.  
 

2.2 Authorized use of paid sick leave for domestic violence, sexual assault or 
stalking includes:  

o Seeking legal or law enforcement assistance or remedies to ensure the 
health and safety of employee's and their family members including, but 
not limited to, preparing for, or participating in, any civil or criminal legal 
proceeding related to or derived from domestic violence, sexual assault 
or stalking.  

o Seeking treatment by a health care provider for physical or mental 
injuries caused by domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking.  

o Attending health care treatment for a victim who is the employee's 
family member.  

o Obtaining, or assisting the employee's family member(s) in obtaining, 
services from: a domestic violence shelter; a rape crisis center; or a 
social services program for relief from domestic violence, sexual assault 
or stalking.  

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 147



 
 

Title: Paid Sick Leave Policy 
Number: 309 
Effective: January 1, 2018 
Cancels: N/A 
Prepared by: LeeAnn McNulty, 
 Administrative Services Manager 
Approved by: Authority Board 
 Resolution No. 2017-43 

 

Page 2 of 7 

o To obtain, or assist a family member in obtaining, mental health 
counseling related to an incident of domestic violence, sexual assault or 
stalking in which the employee or the employee's family member was a 
victim of domestic violence, sexual assault or stalking.  

o Participating, for the employee or for the employee's family member(s), 
in: safety planning; or temporary or permanent relocation; or other 
actions to increase the safety from future incidents of domestic 
violence, sexual assault, or stalking.  
 

2.3 Accrual of Paid Sick Leave  
Sick leave is accumulated at the rate of 3.69 hours per pay period for full-time 
employees, never to exceed a balance of 960 hours.  For example, 3.69 hours per 
pay period x 26 pay periods = 96 hours sick leave per year.  Part time, On-Call, 
Worker Driver and Temporary employees will earn sick leave at a rate of .025 per 
hour for each hour worked.  MTA’s accrual year is based on the calendar year. 

 
 Sick leave accruals begin to accumulate at the commencement of employment.  

Employees will be provided with an Employee Paid Sick Leave Notification at the 
start of employment. It contains information regarding: authorized use of paid 
sick leave, MTA’s paid sick leave accrual year, carryover of paid sick leave, 
eligibility for use, and information about retaliation.  

 
2.4 Eligibility to Use Accrued Paid Sick Leave  

Employees are eligible to use accrued paid sick leave 90 days after starting their 
employment. 
 
Sick leave accrued during a pay period may not be taken until the following 
period. 
 

 2.5 Reasonable Notice for the Use of Paid Sick Leave 
Employees must provide reasonable advance notice of an absence from work for 
the use of paid sick leave to care for yourself or a family member. Please provide 
such reasonable notice to your team. Any information provided will be kept 
confidential. 
 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 148



 
 

Title: Paid Sick Leave Policy 
Number: 309 
Effective: January 1, 2018 
Cancels: N/A 
Prepared by: LeeAnn McNulty, 
 Administrative Services Manager 
Approved by: Authority Board 
 Resolution No. 2017-43 

 

Page 3 of 7 

Reasonable Notice for Foreseeable Use of Paid Sick Leave 
 
If an employee’s absence is foreseeable, the employee must provide notice to 
his or her team manager at least 10 days, or as early as possible, before the 
first day paid sick leave is used. 
• Employees are required to submit an Employee Notice for Use of Paid 
Sick Leave form. 
•  If possible, notification should include the expected duration of the 
absence. 
 
Reasonable Notice for Unforeseeable Use of Paid Sick Leave 
 
If an employee’s absence is unforeseeable, the employee must contact his or her 
team manager as soon as possible. 
•  If the need for paid sick leave is unforeseeable, and arises before the 
required start of the employee’s shift, notice should be provided no later than 
one (1) hour before the employee’s required start time. 
•   In the event it is not possible to provide notice of an unforeseeable 
absence, a person, on the employee’s behalf, may provide such notice. 
•   If possible, the notification should include the expected duration of the 
absence. 
•   Employees are required to complete an Employee Notice for Use of Paid 
Sick Leave form on the day following the employee’s return from paid sick leave. 
Please note: 
 •   Verification may be required if an employee uses paid sick leave for 
more than three (3) consecutive days for which the employee was required to 
work. 
 
Reasonable Notice for Use of Paid Sick Leave for Domestic Violence Leave 
 
Reasonable Notice for Foreseeable Use of Paid Sick Leave 
 
An employee must give advance oral or written notice to his or her team 
manager as soon as possible for the foreseeable use of paid sick leave to 
address issues related to the employee or the employee’s family member being 
a victim of domestic violence, sexual assault or stalking. 
 
Reasonable Notice for Unforeseeable Use of Paid Sick Leave 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 149



 
 

Title: Paid Sick Leave Policy 
Number: 309 
Effective: January 1, 2018 
Cancels: N/A 
Prepared by: LeeAnn McNulty, 
 Administrative Services Manager 
Approved by: Authority Board 
 Resolution No. 2017-43 

 

Page 4 of 7 

 
If an employee is unable to give advance notice because of an emergent or 
unforeseen circumstance related to the employee or the employee’s family 
member being a victim of domestic violence, sexual assault or stalking., the 
employee or a designee must give oral or written notice to his or her team 
manager no later than the end of the first day that the employee takes such 
leave. 
 

2.6 Verification for Absences Exceeding Three Days 
 
If an employee is seeking to use or has used paid sick leave for authorized 
purposes for more than three (3) consecutive days during which the employee 
is/was required to work, the employee may be required to provide verification 
that establishes or confirms that the use of paid sick leave is for an authorized 
purpose. 
 
When an employee or the employee’s family member is sick for more than three 
(3) consecutive days for which the employee is required to work, acceptable 
verification may include: 
 
•   A doctor’s note or a signed statement by a health care provider 
indicating that the use of paid sick leave is necessary to take care of the 
employee or an employee’s family member; or 
 
• A written or oral statement from the employee indicating that the use of 
paid sick leave is necessary to take care of themselves or a family member. 
 
When an employee or the employee’s family member has been a victim of 
domestic violence, sexual assault or stalking, the employee’s choice of any of the 
following documents, or any combination thereof, satisfy this verification 
requirement: • A written statement that the employee or an employee’s 
member is a victim of domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking, and that the 
leave was taken to address related issues. • A police report indicating that the 
employee or the employee’s family member was a victim of domestic violence; • 
Evidence from a court or prosecuting attorney showing that the employee or the 
employee’s family member appeared, or is scheduled to appear, in court in 
connection with an incident of domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking; • A 
court order of protection; • Documentation from any of the following persons 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 150



 
 

Title: Paid Sick Leave Policy 
Number: 309 
Effective: January 1, 2018 
Cancels: N/A 
Prepared by: LeeAnn McNulty, 
 Administrative Services Manager 
Approved by: Authority Board 
 Resolution No. 2017-43 

 

Page 5 of 7 

from whom an employee or an employee’s family member sought assistance in 
addressing the domestic violence situation indicating that the employee or the 
employee’s family member is a victim: • An advocate for victims of domestic 
violence, sexual assault, or stalking; o An attorney; • A member of the clergy; or 
• A medical professional. 
 
When an employee is absent due to the closure of the employee’s child’s school 
or place of care by a public official due to health-related reasons: 
 
•  Notice of closure by a public official that the employee received 
regarding employee’s child’s school or place of care. 
 
Verification must be provided to no less than 10 calendar days of the first day an 
employee used paid sick leave to care for themselves or a family member. 
 

2.7 Increments of Use for Paid Sick Leave  
Employees are allowed to use paid sick leave in increments of one (1) hour. 
  
 

2.8  Payroll  
Employees will be notified of their paid sick leave balances each pay period on a 
direct deposit statement and/or Paylocity’s Time-Off section of the Self Service 
Portal, including:  

o Accrued paid sick leave since the last notification  
o Used paid sick leave since the last notification  
o Current balance of paid sick leave available for use  
o If applicable – donations via an optional shared leave program  

 
2.9  Rate of pay when using paid sick leave  

Paid sick leave hours will be compensated at an employee’s regular rate of pay, 
excluding tips, service charges and overtime rates, where applicable. Paid sick 
leave hours will not count towards the calculation of overtime. 
 

2.10 Carryover of Paid Sick Leave Hours  
At the end of the paid sick leave accrual year, unused paid sick leave balances 
will carry over to the following year with a cap of 960 hours. 

 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 151



 
 

Title: Paid Sick Leave Policy 
Number: 309 
Effective: January 1, 2018 
Cancels: N/A 
Prepared by: LeeAnn McNulty, 
 Administrative Services Manager 
Approved by: Authority Board 
 Resolution No. 2017-43 

 

Page 6 of 7 

2.11  Separation from Employment  
If an employee separates from employment, there will not be a financial or other 
reimbursement to the employee for accrued, unused paid sick leave at the time 
of separation. 

2.12  Reinstatement of Employment  
If an employee leaves employment and is rehired within 12 months of 
separation, any accrued, unused paid sick leave will be reinstated to the 
employees paid sick leave balance.  
 
If an employee is rehired within 12 months of separation, the employee will not 
be required to wait another 90 days to use the accrued paid sick leave if the 
employee met that requirement during the previous period of employment. If an 
employee did not meet the 90-day requirement for the use of paid sick leave 
prior to separation, the previous period of time the employee worked for Mason 
Transit Authority will count towards the 90 days for purposes of determining the 
employee’s eligibility to use paid sick leave. 

2.13  Retaliation Prohibited  
Any discrimination or retaliation against an employee for lawful exercise of paid 
sick leave rights is not allowed. Employees will not be disciplined for the lawful 
use of paid sick leave.  
 
If an employee feels they are being discriminated or retailed against, the 
employee may contact the General Manager. 
 
If an employee is not satisfied with the company’s response, the employee may 
contact the Washington State Department of Labor & Industries.  
Online: www.Lni.wa.gov/WorkplaceRights  
Call: 1-866-219-7321, toll-free  
Visit: www.Lni.wa.gov/Offices  
Email: ESgeneral@Lni.wa.gov 

 
3.0        Definitions 

o “Family member” is defined as a child or parent (including biological, adopted, foster, 
step or legal guardian), a spouse, registered domestic partner, spouse’s parent, 
grandparent, grandchild or sibling. 
 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 152

mailto:ESgeneral@Lni.wa.gov


 
 

Title: Paid Sick Leave Policy 
Number: 309 
Effective: January 1, 2018 
Cancels: N/A 
Prepared by: LeeAnn McNulty, 
 Administrative Services Manager 
Approved by: Authority Board 
 Resolution No. 2017-43 

 

Page 7 of 7 

o "Health-related reason" means a serious public health concern that could result in 
bodily injury or exposure to an infectious agent, biological toxin, or hazardous material. 
Health-related reason does not include closures for inclement weather. 
 

o "Absences exceeding three days" means absences exceeding three consecutive days an 
employee is required to work. For example, assume an employee is required to work on 
Mondays, Wednesdays, and Fridays, and then the employee uses paid sick leave for any 
portion of those three work days in a row. If the employee uses paid sick leave again on 
the following Monday, the employee would have absences exceeding three days. 
 

o "Commencement of his or her employment" means no later than the beginning of the 
first day on which the employee is authorized or required by the employer to be on duty 
on the employer's premises or at a prescribed workplace. 
 

o "Verification" means evidence that establishes or confirms that an employee's use of paid 
sick leave is for an authorized purpose under RCW 49.46.210 (1)(b) and (c). 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 153

http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=49.46.210


 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 154



Resolution No. 2017-43 Page 1 of 1 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-43 

A RESOLUTION OF THE MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY BOARD 
ADOPTING A PAID SICK LEAVE POLICY. 

 WHEREAS, Initiative 1433, Washington State’s new paid sick leave law, necessitates 
that MTA adopt a new policy that sets forth when non-exempt employees of MTA accrue and 
use paid sick leave;  

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY 
BOARD that the Paid Sick Leave Policy which is attached hereto and incorporated herein be 
established and adopted. 
 

Adopted this 19th day of December, 2017. 
 
 
______________________________  _____________________________ 
Terri Drexler, Chair      John Campbell, Vice-Chair  
 
______________________________  ____________________________ 
Wes Martin, Authority Member   Tracy Moore, Authority Member 
 
______________________________  ____________________________ 
Randy Neatherlin, Authority Member  Deborah Petersen, Authority Member 
 
______________________________  ____________________________ 
Don Pogreba, Authority Member   Sandy Tarzwell, Authority Member 
     
______________________________ 
Kevin Shutty, Authority Member 
 
APPROVED AS TO CONTENT:    _______    ______ 
          Danette Brannin, General Manager 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:        ______ 
    Robert W. Johnson, Legal Counsel 
 
 
ATTEST:        DATE:    ______ 
           Tracy Becht, Clerk of the Board 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 155



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 156



 
 

Title: Paid Sick Leave Policy 
Number: 309 
Effective: January 1, 2018 
Cancels: N/A 
Prepared by: LeeAnn McNulty, 
 Administrative Services Manager 
Approved by: Authority Board 
 Resolution No. 2017-43 

 

Page 1 of 7 

POL-309 PAID SICK LEAVE POLICY 

This policy applies to all Mason Transit Authority (MTA) employees. 

1.0 Purpose 

1.1  Paid sick leave is available for employees to care for their health and the health 
of their family members per Washington state law. 

 
2.0 Policy 

2.1 Authorized Uses of Paid Sick Leave  
Paid sick leave may be used for the following:  

o   An employee’s mental or physical illness, injury or health condition;  
o Preventive care such as a medical, dental or optical appointments 

and/or treatment;  
o Care of a family member with an illness, injury, health condition and/or 

preventive care such as a medical/dental/optical appointment;  
o Closure of the employee’s place of business or child’s school/place of 

care by order of a public official for any health-related reasons;  
o If the employee or the employee’s family member is a victim of 

domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking.  
 

2.2 Authorized use of paid sick leave for domestic violence, sexual assault or 
stalking includes:  

o Seeking legal or law enforcement assistance or remedies to ensure the 
health and safety of employee's and their family members including, but 
not limited to, preparing for, or participating in, any civil or criminal legal 
proceeding related to or derived from domestic violence, sexual assault 
or stalking.  

o Seeking treatment by a health care provider for physical or mental 
injuries caused by domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking.  

o Attending health care treatment for a victim who is the employee's 
family member.  

o Obtaining, or assisting the employee's family member(s) in obtaining, 
services from: a domestic violence shelter; a rape crisis center; or a 
social services program for relief from domestic violence, sexual assault 
or stalking.  

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 157



 
 

Title: Paid Sick Leave Policy 
Number: 309 
Effective: January 1, 2018 
Cancels: N/A 
Prepared by: LeeAnn McNulty, 
 Administrative Services Manager 
Approved by: Authority Board 
 Resolution No. 2017-43 

 

Page 2 of 7 

o To obtain, or assist a family member in obtaining, mental health 
counseling related to an incident of domestic violence, sexual assault or 
stalking in which the employee or the employee's family member was a 
victim of domestic violence, sexual assault or stalking.  

o Participating, for the employee or for the employee's family member(s), 
in: safety planning; or temporary or permanent relocation; or other 
actions to increase the safety from future incidents of domestic 
violence, sexual assault, or stalking.  
 

2.3 Accrual of Paid Sick Leave  
Sick leave is accumulated at the rate of 3.69 hours per pay period for full-time 
employees, never to exceed a balance of 960 hours.  For example, 3.69 hours per 
pay period x 26 pay periods = 96 hours sick leave per year.  Part time, On-Call, 
Worker Driver and Temporary employees will earn sick leave at a rate of .025 per 
hour for each hour worked.  MTA’s accrual year is based on the calendar year. 

 
 Sick leave accruals begin to accumulate at the commencement of employment.  

Employees will be provided with an Employee Paid Sick Leave Notification at the 
start of employment. It contains information regarding: authorized use of paid 
sick leave, MTA’s paid sick leave accrual year, carryover of paid sick leave, 
eligibility for use, and information about retaliation.  

 
2.4 Eligibility to Use Accrued Paid Sick Leave  

Employees are eligible to use accrued paid sick leave 90 days after starting their 
employment. 
 
Sick leave accrued during a pay period may not be taken until the following 
period. 
 

 2.5 Reasonable Notice for the Use of Paid Sick Leave 
Employees must provide reasonable advance notice of an absence from work for 
the use of paid sick leave to care for yourself or a family member. Please provide 
such reasonable notice to your team. Any information provided will be kept 
confidential. 
 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 158



 
 

Title: Paid Sick Leave Policy 
Number: 309 
Effective: January 1, 2018 
Cancels: N/A 
Prepared by: LeeAnn McNulty, 
 Administrative Services Manager 
Approved by: Authority Board 
 Resolution No. 2017-43 

 

Page 3 of 7 

Reasonable Notice for Foreseeable Use of Paid Sick Leave 
 
If an employee’s absence is foreseeable, the employee must provide notice to 
his or her team manager at least 10 days, or as early as possible, before the 
first day paid sick leave is used. 
• Employees are required to submit an Employee Notice for Use of Paid 
Sick Leave form. 
•  If possible, notification should include the expected duration of the 
absence. 
 
Reasonable Notice for Unforeseeable Use of Paid Sick Leave 
 
If an employee’s absence is unforeseeable, the employee must contact his or her 
team manager as soon as possible. 
•  If the need for paid sick leave is unforeseeable, and arises before the 
required start of the employee’s shift, notice should be provided no later than 
one (1) hour before the employee’s required start time. 
•   In the event it is not possible to provide notice of an unforeseeable 
absence, a person, on the employee’s behalf, may provide such notice. 
•   If possible, the notification should include the expected duration of the 
absence. 
•   Employees are required to complete an Employee Notice for Use of Paid 
Sick Leave form on the day following the employee’s return from paid sick leave. 
Please note: 
 •   Verification may be required if an employee uses paid sick leave for 
more than three (3) consecutive days for which the employee was required to 
work. 
 
Reasonable Notice for Use of Paid Sick Leave for Domestic Violence Leave 
 
Reasonable Notice for Foreseeable Use of Paid Sick Leave 
 
An employee must give advance oral or written notice to his or her team 
manager as soon as possible for the foreseeable use of paid sick leave to 
address issues related to the employee or the employee’s family member being 
a victim of domestic violence, sexual assault or stalking. 
 
Reasonable Notice for Unforeseeable Use of Paid Sick Leave 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 159



 
 

Title: Paid Sick Leave Policy 
Number: 309 
Effective: January 1, 2018 
Cancels: N/A 
Prepared by: LeeAnn McNulty, 
 Administrative Services Manager 
Approved by: Authority Board 
 Resolution No. 2017-43 

 

Page 4 of 7 

 
If an employee is unable to give advance notice because of an emergent or 
unforeseen circumstance related to the employee or the employee’s family 
member being a victim of domestic violence, sexual assault or stalking., the 
employee or a designee must give oral or written notice to his or her team 
manager no later than the end of the first day that the employee takes such 
leave. 
 

2.6 Verification for Absences Exceeding Three Days 
 
If an employee is seeking to use or has used paid sick leave for authorized 
purposes for more than three (3) consecutive days during which the employee 
is/was required to work, the employee may be required to provide verification 
that establishes or confirms that the use of paid sick leave is for an authorized 
purpose. 
 
When an employee or the employee’s family member is sick for more than three 
(3) consecutive days for which the employee is required to work, acceptable 
verification may include: 
 
•   A doctor’s note or a signed statement by a health care provider 
indicating that the use of paid sick leave is necessary to take care of the 
employee or an employee’s family member; or 
 
• A written or oral statement from the employee indicating that the use of 
paid sick leave is necessary to take care of themselves or a family member. 
 
When an employee or the employee’s family member has been a victim of 
domestic violence, sexual assault or stalking, the employee’s choice of any of the 
following documents, or any combination thereof, satisfy this verification 
requirement: • A written statement that the employee or an employee’s 
member is a victim of domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking, and that the 
leave was taken to address related issues. • A police report indicating that the 
employee or the employee’s family member was a victim of domestic violence; • 
Evidence from a court or prosecuting attorney showing that the employee or the 
employee’s family member appeared, or is scheduled to appear, in court in 
connection with an incident of domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking; • A 
court order of protection; • Documentation from any of the following persons 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 160



 
 

Title: Paid Sick Leave Policy 
Number: 309 
Effective: January 1, 2018 
Cancels: N/A 
Prepared by: LeeAnn McNulty, 
 Administrative Services Manager 
Approved by: Authority Board 
 Resolution No. 2017-43 

 

Page 5 of 7 

from whom an employee or an employee’s family member sought assistance in 
addressing the domestic violence situation indicating that the employee or the 
employee’s family member is a victim: • An advocate for victims of domestic 
violence, sexual assault, or stalking; o An attorney; • A member of the clergy; or 
• A medical professional. 
 
When an employee is absent due to the closure of the employee’s child’s school 
or place of care by a public official due to health-related reasons: 
 
•  Notice of closure by a public official that the employee received 
regarding employee’s child’s school or place of care. 
 
Verification must be provided to no less than 10 calendar days of the first day an 
employee used paid sick leave to care for themselves or a family member. 
 

2.7 Increments of Use for Paid Sick Leave  
Employees are allowed to use paid sick leave in increments of one (1) hour. 
  
 

2.8  Payroll  
Employees will be notified of their paid sick leave balances each pay period on a 
direct deposit statement and/or Paylocity’s Time-Off section of the Self Service 
Portal, including:  

o Accrued paid sick leave since the last notification  
o Used paid sick leave since the last notification  
o Current balance of paid sick leave available for use  
o If applicable – donations via an optional shared leave program  

 
2.9  Rate of pay when using paid sick leave  

Paid sick leave hours will be compensated at an employee’s regular rate of pay, 
excluding tips, service charges and overtime rates, where applicable. Paid sick 
leave hours will not count towards the calculation of overtime. 
 

2.10 Carryover of Paid Sick Leave Hours  
At the end of the paid sick leave accrual year, unused paid sick leave balances 
will carry over to the following year with a cap of 960 hours. 

 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 161



 
 

Title: Paid Sick Leave Policy 
Number: 309 
Effective: January 1, 2018 
Cancels: N/A 
Prepared by: LeeAnn McNulty, 
 Administrative Services Manager 
Approved by: Authority Board 
 Resolution No. 2017-43 

 

Page 6 of 7 

2.11  Separation from Employment  
If an employee separates from employment, there will not be a financial or other 
reimbursement to the employee for accrued, unused paid sick leave at the time 
of separation. 

2.12  Reinstatement of Employment  
If an employee leaves employment and is rehired within 12 months of 
separation, any accrued, unused paid sick leave will be reinstated to the 
employees paid sick leave balance.  
 
If an employee is rehired within 12 months of separation, the employee will not 
be required to wait another 90 days to use the accrued paid sick leave if the 
employee met that requirement during the previous period of employment. If an 
employee did not meet the 90-day requirement for the use of paid sick leave 
prior to separation, the previous period of time the employee worked for Mason 
Transit Authority will count towards the 90 days for purposes of determining the 
employee’s eligibility to use paid sick leave. 

2.13  Retaliation Prohibited  
Any discrimination or retaliation against an employee for lawful exercise of paid 
sick leave rights is not allowed. Employees will not be disciplined for the lawful 
use of paid sick leave.  
 
If an employee feels they are being discriminated or retailed against, the 
employee may contact the General Manager. 
 
If an employee is not satisfied with the company’s response, the employee may 
contact the Washington State Department of Labor & Industries.  
Online: www.Lni.wa.gov/WorkplaceRights  
Call: 1-866-219-7321, toll-free  
Visit: www.Lni.wa.gov/Offices  
Email: ESgeneral@Lni.wa.gov 

 
3.0        Definitions 

o “Family member” is defined as a child or parent (including biological, adopted, foster, 
step or legal guardian), a spouse, registered domestic partner, spouse’s parent, 
grandparent, grandchild or sibling. 
 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 162

mailto:ESgeneral@Lni.wa.gov


 
 

Title: Paid Sick Leave Policy 
Number: 309 
Effective: January 1, 2018 
Cancels: N/A 
Prepared by: LeeAnn McNulty, 
 Administrative Services Manager 
Approved by: Authority Board 
 Resolution No. 2017-43 

 

Page 7 of 7 

o "Health-related reason" means a serious public health concern that could result in 
bodily injury or exposure to an infectious agent, biological toxin, or hazardous material. 
Health-related reason does not include closures for inclement weather. 
 

o "Absences exceeding three days" means absences exceeding three consecutive days an 
employee is required to work. For example, assume an employee is required to work on 
Mondays, Wednesdays, and Fridays, and then the employee uses paid sick leave for any 
portion of those three work days in a row. If the employee uses paid sick leave again on 
the following Monday, the employee would have absences exceeding three days. 
 

o "Commencement of his or her employment" means no later than the beginning of the 
first day on which the employee is authorized or required by the employer to be on duty 
on the employer's premises or at a prescribed workplace. 
 

o "Verification" means evidence that establishes or confirms that an employee's use of paid 
sick leave is for an authorized purpose under RCW 49.46.210 (1)(b) and (c). 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 163

http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=49.46.210


 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 164



Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item:   New Business – Item 7 – Actionable 
Subject:    Rescinding Attendance Policy 
Prepared by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Approved by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Date:    December 19, 2017 
 
 
Summary for Discussion Purposes: 
 
On January 17, 2017, the Board approved Resolution No. 2017-01 approving 
Attendance Policy (POL-306). Due to the recently adopted Initiative 1433 (the new paid 
sick leave law) it is appropriate to rescind Resolution No. 2017-01 and Attendance 
Policy (POL-306). 
 
Legal Counsel has reviewed and approved the attached rescinding resolution. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
None. 
 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
Approve. 
 
Motion for Consideration: 
 
Move that Mason Transit Authority Board approve Resolution No. 2017-44, rescinding 
Resolution No. 2017-01 and the Attendance Policy (POL-306).  
 

M
ason T

ransit A
uthority B

oard 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 165



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 166



Resolution No. 2017-44 Page 1 of 2 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-44 

A RESOLUTION OF THE MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY BOARD 
RESCINDING RESOLUTION NO. 2017-01 APPROVING ATTENDANCE 

POLICY (POL-306). 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution No. 2017-01, the Mason Transit Authority Board 
approved an Attendance Policy (POL-306); and 

 WHEREAS, it is now necessary to rescind the Attendance Policy (POL-306) and its 
approving resolution as it would be out of compliance with Initiative 1433 (the new paid sick 
leave law);  

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY 
BOARD that Resolution No. 2017-01 be rescinded, and accordingly, the Attendance Policy 
(POL-306).  
 

Adopted this 19th day of December, 2017. 
 
 
______________________________  _____________________________ 
Terri Drexler, Chair      John Campbell, Vice-Chair  
 
______________________________  ____________________________ 
Wes Martin, Authority Member   Tracy Moore, Authority Member 
 
______________________________  ____________________________ 
Randy Neatherlin, Authority Member  Deborah Petersen, Authority Member 
 
______________________________  ____________________________ 
Don Pogreba, Authority Member   Sandy Tarzwell, Authority Member 
     
______________________________ 
Kevin Shutty, Authority Member 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO CONTENT:    _______    ______ 
          Danette Brannin, General Manager 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:        ______ 
    Robert W. Johnson, Legal Counsel 
 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 167



Resolution No. 2017-44 Page 2 of 2 
 

 
ATTEST:        DATE:    ______ 
           Tracy Becht, Clerk of the Board 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 168



Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item:   Informational – Item 1 - Informational 
Subject:    Mason Transit Authority Regional Mobility Park and Ride 

Progress Update 
Prepared by:  Patrick Holm, SCJ Alliance 
Approved by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Date:    November 21, 2017 
 
Summary for Discussion Purposes:   
 
Project Management:  SCJ is continually managing the design team and subconsultant 
team. SCJ is tracking on-going project progress. An updated project schedule has been 
prepared. 
 
Permitting: Pickering Road and Cole Road permit plans have been submitted to Mason 
County, including SEPA checklists. Pear Orchard permit plans will be submitted this 
month. 
 
Design Development: Illumination, security, and utility plans are being coordinated with 
CenturyLink, Hood Canal Communications, and PUD 3.  
 
Belfair Park and Ride: Comments regarding the building layout were given to the 
Architect. Team met with A-RT (Architects) on conceptual layouts for exterior. Drainage 
and grading design is in progress. Access road design to the park and ride from 
SR3/Log Yard Road is in progress. Intersection Control Analysis work has begun and will 
be submitted to WSDOT in 1st Quarter. Public meetings regarding the traffic control at 
SR3/Log Yard Road will occur in late January. 
 
Other progress: Submitted a Public Records Request for the contract between WSDOT 
and Scarcella/Parsons on the fish passage project at Shelton-Matlock interchange. The 
language in the contract addresses the need for the design-build to ensure MTA has a 
comparable Park & Ride location. The project team is seeking options for the Park & 
Ride upgrades MTA plans for that location to happen in conjunction with other 
construction to save money. 
 
 

M
ason T

ransit A
uthority B

oard 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 169



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 170



Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item:   Informational Item 2 – Informational 
Subject:    Management Reports 
Prepared by:  Tracy Becht, Executive Assistant 
Approved by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Date:    December 20, 2017 
 
Summary for Discussion Purposes: 
 
The monthly MTA Management Reports are attached for your information. 
 
  

M
ason T

ransit A
uthority B

oard 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 171



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 172



  

 

MTA MANAGEMENT REPORTS 
 

Submitted to MTA Authority Board December 19, 2017 
 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 173



 
 1 

M
TA

 M
AN

AG
EM

EN
T 

RE
PO

RT
S 

| 
12

/1
9/

20
17

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK  

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 174



 

2 

M
TA

 M
AN

AG
EM

EN
T 

RE
PO

RT
S 

| 
12

/1
9/

20
17

  

 

MTA MANAGEMENT REPORTS 
Submitted to MTA Authority Board December 19, 2017 

GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 

Below is a l ist of major activit ies for the month: 
• Presentations to new driver class. 
• Attended EDC Monthly Leadership Breakfast. 
• Met with Kitsap Transit’s CEO and Jefferson Transit’s GM for quarterly meeting. Two main 

topics were discussed. The first was preparing a presentation on the State of Good Repair for 
each transit’s vehicle life to meet and discuss with Kilmer and Heck. The other was whether 
Kitsap would come down to the Bremerton Airport or MTA’s Park & Ride which at this time is 
not in their discussion of service. However, it was discussed partnering with Kitsap to present 
Olympic College with a transit pass that would be built into student tuition like other colleges 
do. This would benefit Mason County students who travel to the Bremerton campus. Kitsap 
Transit is willing to allow MTA to continue our route to the ferry then over to the college. This 
is something we will look at in our service review as well as work with Kitsap Transit to launch 
the program. 

• Finalized 2018 Organizational Chart with Roles and Responsibilities. 
• Participated in the Christmas Parade. 
• Reviewed and approved final budget. 
• Met with our consultant on the Park & Ride. Met with architect on building design. 
• Attended WSDOT’s Innovations and Partnerships in Transportation seminar. 
• Met with City regarding progress on T-CC parking lot. Working on application to the Volunteer 

Cleanup Program. Also discussed Alder Street project. 
• Sent Mike Oliver off. He has been hired at Clallam Transit as their Maintenance Manager. 

This is a great opportunity for him. 
• Attended WSTIP Executive Committee meeting and Annual Meeting. Have been elected again 

as the Member At-Large on the Executive Committee. 
• Finalized policies at the Policy Meeting to present to the Board on December 19. 
• Attended EDC Board Retreat. 
• Various meetings with staff re: roof issue at T-CC, window leakage at JP, staff responsibilities, 

bus ad program, and volunteer driver program to name a few. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 175



 
 3 

M
TA

 M
AN

AG
EM

EN
T 

RE
PO

RT
S 

| 
12

/1
9/

20
17

  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

  

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 176



 

4 

M
TA

 M
AN

AG
EM

EN
T 

RE
PO

RT
S 

| 
12

/1
9/

20
17

  

TEAM UPDATES 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES MANAGER – LeeAnn McNulty 
• HR Dashboard - 69 FTE’s, plus 7 Worker Drivers, not including compensated board 

members. Employee headcount is 6.8% less than one year ago, with total turnover 24.5% 
over the past 12 months.  Hired YTD - 13, Termed YTD – 21.  Two terminations this year have 
been due to poor performance, three the result of the organizational restructure, the balance 
have been voluntary:  made up of 4 retirements, 11 for personal reasons, and 1 for better 
pay.  Median employee drive time to work – 17 minutes. Tenure across the organization 
post-re-organization declined from 12.1 to 10.1 years. 

 
Tenure Post-Reorganization 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

• HR Support – Conducted orientation for a new driver class of 3.  Conducted one-hour 
courses for Anti-Harassment and Drug and Alcohol training for newly hired employees.  
Provided one-on-one onboarding meetings with our new Custodian/Detailer and Technical 
Support Analyst.  Working with Mike Ringgenberg, Lisa Davis and Marshall Krier to refine 
MTA’s Safety and Health Manual.  Produced necessary HR policy updates for Employee 
Recognition, Paid Sick Leave and Drug and Alcohol reflecting changes taking effect January 
2018.  These policies are part of the December board packet. Provide general HR support to 
staff with FMLA and other concerns as they come up. 

• Recruiting – Produced an internal job posting for the newly created position of T-CC Building 
Superintendent; resulting from Kathy Geist’s movement to Outreach/Transit Planner.  Steve 
Weisenbach, the existing T-CC Assistant/Custodian, was the only internal applicant.  We are 
pleased to offer the Building Superintendent position to Steve as he is well qualified for this 
promotion.  Steve’s current position will be back filled shortly with an internal/external 
recruitment for a new T-CC Assistant/Custodian currently in progress. 

• Forecasting –Wages and benefit estimations for 2018 are finalized.  The final draft of the 
2018 budget is included in the December board packet for approval. 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 177



 
 5 

M
TA

 M
AN

AG
EM

EN
T 

RE
PO

RT
S 

| 
12

/1
9/

20
17

  

• Building Knowledge – Attended the WSTIP 4th Quarter Annual Meeting.  These quarterly 
meetings provide insight for me to better understand the risks transit agencies face and how 
WSTIP helps in covering and mitigating them. 

• Finance – The Finance team alongside members of the Maintenance team have done an 
excellent job of establishing clear procedures for the handling of vehicle maintenance parts 
that provide the necessary internal financial controls.   

 
MAINTENANCE/FACILITIES – Marshall Krier 

• Fleet Availability – Our fleet availability for the month of November was 96.17%. This is a 
great achievement for the Maintenance team as our goal is 95%. We also had no late vehicle 
preventive maintenance inspections. 

• Bus Washer - The new Bitimec bus washer has been delivered and is working great. The bus 
exteriors are cleaner and the time spent washing is greatly reduced. 

• Inventory - The Maintenance team, specifically the mechanics, have been doing an amazing 
job of taking over parts ordering, receiving and inventory control.  

• WSTA Spring Maintenance Forum Planning - Marshall and the WSTA Maintenance Team 
recently met and started planning for the Spring Maintenance forum to be held March 26-28  
at Sea-Tac. This forum includes our Spring Maintenance Committee meetings to discuss 
what is new in Washington State transit. Also, a vendor show offering informational 
presentations about their products.  

 
OPERATIONS – Mike Ringgenberg 

• CDL Training – Completed 1 class and graduated Facilities Tech Steve Kellum on 
Dec 4.  Interviewed and hired  3 new drivers that started new drivers training on Nov 30.-
Please welcome Gene Lanman and Ray Peabody to the MTA team!! 

• Drivers Reviews – Operations supervisors have started the semi-annual review of all drivers. 
• Inclement Weather Plan – The 2017-2018 Inclement Weather Plan has been reviewed and 

published.  Meetings were held with the City of Shelton to develop a plan for snow removal at 
the T-CC. 

• Public Hearings – We have scheduled public hearings on January 3, 2018 at 5 pm at the 
North Mason Timberland Library in Belfair and one on January 4, 2018 at 5 pm at the T-CC to 
discuss proposed changes for the February 5, 2018 shake up. 

• RFP 2017-01 – Comprehensive Service Analysis Kick Off meeting was held to discuss 
expectations and timelines.  Passengers and drivers will see individuals on each route 
tracking passenger counts and conducting surveys.  The final report from Nelson/Nygaard is 
scheduled to be accomplished in December of 2018.   

• RFP 2017-02 – CAD/AVL System and Scheduling Software was released on Nov 16, 2017 
with proposals due by 2pm on December 29, 2017.  Operations is excited for this RFP as it is 
one step closer to getting technology on the buses. 

• Service Review – The Service Review Committee has completed the Feb 5, 2018 shake up 
draft of the routes and blocks of work. Drivers’ feedback and public hearings will be 
scheduled. 

• Shelton Christmas Parade – The Elves at MTA came together to decorate a bus for the 
parade with Santa Claus Dennis driving the sleigh and a few elves and reign- dogs helped 
deliver the holiday spirit!!  Thank You to everyone who volunteered their time on a cold and 
damp festive night!! 

• Travel Training – Two individuals trained on how to ride the bus. 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 178



 

6 

M
TA

 M
AN

AG
EM

EN
T 

RE
PO

RT
S 

| 
12

/1
9/

20
17

  

• Vacant Positions 
o Outreach & Transit Planner – Interviewed and hired Kathy Geist to be our new 

Outreach/Transit Planner, she started transitioning on Nov 27. 
o Technical Support Analyst - Interviewed/hired David Gjerstad for our new Technical 

Support Analyst position.   Please welcome Dave to the MTA team!! 
• - Vanpool – Usage rate is 56%, 9 of 16 vans are on the road, one vanpool disbanded. 

 
 
 

THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
  

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 179



 
 7 

M
TA

 M
AN

AG
EM

EN
T 

RE
PO

RT
S 

| 
12

/1
9/

20
17

  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
  

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 180



 

8 

M
TA

 M
AN

AG
EM

EN
T 

RE
PO

RT
S 

| 
12

/1
9/

20
17

  

2017 WORK ITEMS UPDATE 
 

 

 

 

 

SEE ATTACHED SPREADSHEETS 
 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 181



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 
 
 
 
 
 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 182



N
:\

Ad
m

in
\A

dm
in

 S
ha

re
d\

M
TA

 A
ut

ho
rit

y 
Bo

ar
d\

20
17

 A
ut

ho
rit

y 
Bo

ar
d\

W
or

kp
la

n 
U

pd
at

e

20
17

 W
or

k 
Ite

m
s

Co
m

pl
et

ed
 a

s 
of

 1
2/

15
/2

01
7

1s
t Q

ua
rt

er

Co
m

pl
et

e 
sh

el
te

r r
ep

la
ce

m
en

t a
nd

 u
pg

ra
de

 p
ro

je
ct



Re
vi

ew
 p

er
so

na
l p

ro
te

ct
io

n 
eq

ui
pm

en
t r

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

. P
ur

ch
as

e 
hi

gh
ly

 
vi

sib
le

 sa
fe

ty
 v

es
t w

ith
 M

TA
 lo

go


Co
m

pl
et

e 
LE

D 
he

ad
la

m
p 

re
pl

ac
em

en
t o

n 
bu

se
s



Re
se

ar
ch

 a
ut

om
at

ed
 fu

el
in

g


Re
se

ar
ch

 to
 d

et
er

m
in

e 
fe

as
ib

ili
ty

 o
f b

us
 w

as
h


Re

-t
ra

in
 a

ll 
dr

iv
er

s o
n 

a 
re

gu
la

r b
as

is 
in

 o
rd

er
 to

 p
ro

vi
de

 c
on

sis
te

nt
 

se
rv

ic
e 

an
d 

sa
fe

ty


N
eg

ot
ia

te
 re

m
ai

ni
ng

 u
ni

on
 c

on
tr

ac
ts



Co
m

m
un

ic
at

e 
ex

pe
ct

at
io

ns
 to

 st
af

f t
hr

ou
gh

 E
m

pl
oy

ee
 A

pp
ra

isa
ls 

an
d 

Co
ac

hi
ng

/C
ou

ns
el

in
g;

 e
st

ab
lis

h 
co

ns
ist

en
t p

ra
ct

ic
es

.


Re
vi

ew
 a

nd
 u

pd
at

e 
Em

pl
oy

ee
 H

an
db

oo
k 

ba
se

d 
on

 u
ni

on
 c

on
tr

ac
ts

Re
vi

ew
 b

en
ef

it 
pa

ck
ag

e 
an

d 
m

ed
ic

al
 in

su
ra

nc
e 

op
tio

ns
 in

 p
re

pa
ra

tio
n 

fo
r 2

01
8 

ch
an

ge
s d

ue
 to

 A
ffo

rd
ab

le
 C

ar
e 

Ac
t C

ad
ill

ac
 T

ax


Pr
ep

ar
e 

fo
r r

et
ire

m
en

t o
f H

R 
M

an
ag

er
. L

oo
k 

at
 o

th
er

 k
ey

 p
os

iti
on

s t
o 

be
gi

n 
es

ta
bl

ish
in

g 
su

cc
es

sio
n 

pl
an

ni
ng

 a
nd

 e
st

ab
lis

hi
ng

 a
n 

in
te

rn
al

 
pr

oc
es

s f
or

 p
ro

m
ot

in
g 

w
ith

in
 fi

rs
t



Im
pl

em
en

t a
 re

vi
ew

 p
la

n 
fo

r e
xe

m
pt

 a
nd

 n
on

-r
ep

re
se

nt
ed

 st
af

f 
sa

la
rie

s a
nd

 b
en

ef
its



Ex
pl

or
e 

te
ch

no
lo

gi
ca

l a
dv

an
ce

s t
ha

t c
an

 st
re

am
lin

e 
ou

r s
ch

ed
ul

in
g 

pr
oc

es
s



Sc
he

du
le

 M
CT

AB
 m

ee
tin

g


A 
te

am
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

es
ta

bl
ish

ed
 to

 w
or

k 
on

 a
 b

us
 a

nd
 sc

he
du

lin
g 

te
ch

no
lo

gy
. H

av
e 

ha
d 

th
re

e 
W

eb
ex

 p
re

se
nt

at
io

ns
 a

nd
 a

n 
on

-s
ite

 v
isi

t. 
G

oa
l i

s t
o 

pu
t t

og
et

he
r a

 te
ch

no
lo

gy
 p

la
n 

an
d 

th
en

 e
xp

lo
re

 g
ra

nt
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s.

 C
on

tin
ue

d 
to

 v
ie

w
 p

ro
du

ct
s.

 T
ea

m
 w

ill
 b

e 
m

ee
tin

g 
in

 
Ap

ril
 to

 re
vi

ew
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
an

d 
de

te
rm

in
e 

ne
xt

 st
ep

s.
 M

ee
tin

gs
 a

nd
 re

se
ar

ch
 c

on
tin

ue
s w

ith
 th

e 
go

al
 o

f h
av

in
g 

a 
lis

t o
f t

ec
hn

ol
og

y 
ne

ed
s a

nd
 d

es
ire

s,
 a

 c
os

t a
nd

 im
pl

et
at

io
n 

sc
he

du
le

. A
no

th
er

 si
te

 d
em

on
st

at
io

n 
is 

pl
an

ne
d 

fo
r M

ay
 1

9.
 W

e 
w

ill
 b

e 
us

in
g 

so
m

e 
of

 o
ur

 
Sa

le
s T

ax
 E

qu
al

iza
tio

n 
m

on
ey

 to
 im

pl
em

en
t t

ec
hn

ol
og

y 
on

 th
e 

bu
se

s.

Sh
el

te
r f

or
 B

ill
 H

un
te

r P
ar

k 
ha

s b
ee

n 
in

st
al

le
d;

 o
th

er
 sh

el
te

rs
 h

av
e 

ar
riv

ed
 a

nd
 st

af
f a

re
 w

or
ki

ng
 to

w
ar

ds
 in

st
al

lin
g 

th
e 

th
em

 a
t t

he
 

pl
an

ne
d 

lo
ca

tio
ns

. W
e 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
gr

an
te

d 
an

 a
m

en
dm

en
t t

o 
ou

r s
he

lte
r c

on
tr

ac
t w

ith
 W

SD
O

T 
so

 w
e 

ca
n 

pu
rc

ha
se

 e
xp

an
sio

n 
sh

el
te

rs
 

in
st

ea
d 

of
 ju

st
 re

pl
ac

em
en

t. 
Br

in
gi

ng
 a

m
en

dm
en

t a
nd

 re
qu

es
t t

o 
pu

rc
ha

se
 8

 sh
el

te
rs

 to
 th

e 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 B

oa
rd

 m
ee

tin
g.

 N
ew

 la
rg

er
 sh

el
te

r 
ha

s b
ee

n 
in

st
al

le
d 

at
 W

al
la

ce
-K

ne
el

an
d.

 N
ew

 sh
el

te
r h

as
 b

ee
n 

in
st

al
le

d 
on

 P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l W
ay

 (p
re

vi
ou

sly
 n

o 
sh

el
te

r a
t t

hi
s l

oc
at

io
n.

) E
ig

ht
 

m
or

e 
sh

el
te

rs
 h

av
e 

be
en

 o
rd

er
ed

. I
ns

ta
lle

d 
m

or
e 

re
pl

ac
em

en
t s

he
lte

rs
. S

he
lte

rs
 sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

sh
ip

pe
d 

so
on

 a
nd

 in
st

al
lm

en
ts

 o
cc

ur
rin

g 
th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 su
m

m
er

. S
he

lte
rs

 h
av

e 
be

en
 re

ce
iv

ed
 a

nd
 a

re
 b

ei
ng

 in
st

al
le

d.

Pr
og

re
ss

Re
se

ar
ch

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
do

ne
. W

or
ki

ng
 w

ith
 C

or
re

ct
io

na
l I

nd
us

tr
ie

s t
o 

de
sig

n 
sa

fe
ty

 v
es

ts
 to

 o
ur

 sp
ec

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 a
nd

 w
ill

 o
rd

er
 o

nc
e 

w
e 

ag
re

e 
on

 th
e 

st
yl

e 
an

d 
pr

ic
e.

 W
e 

ha
ve

 re
ce

iv
ed

 o
ur

 a
nn

ua
l $

2,
50

0 
sa

fe
ty

 g
ra

nt
 fr

om
 W

ST
IP

 w
hi

ch
 w

e 
w

ill
 u

se
 to

 p
ay

 fo
r t

he
 v

es
ts

. C
or

re
ct

io
na

l 
In

du
st

rie
s h

as
 d

on
e 

so
m

e 
re

de
sig

n 
fo

r u
s.

 A
w

ai
tin

g 
fin

al
 si

zin
g 

th
en

 w
ill

 b
e 

pl
ac

in
g 

th
e 

or
de

r. 
O

rd
er

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
pl

ac
ed

. V
es

t r
ec

ei
ve

d 
an

d 
di

st
rib

ut
ed

.

O
pe

ra
tio

ns
 c

om
pl

et
ed

 D
ef

en
siv

e 
Dr

iv
er

 a
nd

 P
as

se
ng

er
 S

af
et

y 
Tr

ai
ni

ng
; H

R 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 a
nt

i-h
ar

as
sm

en
t t

ra
in

in
g 

to
 a

ll 
st

af
f. 

Tr
ai

ni
ng

 fo
r 

th
is 

qu
ar

te
r h

as
 b

ee
n 

co
m

pl
et

ed
.

Fo
rm

s h
av

e 
be

en
 u

pd
at

ed
 a

nd
 a

re
 re

ad
y 

fo
r u

se
. M

an
ag

er
s a

re
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

to
 c

om
pl

et
e 

an
nu

al
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

 a
pp

ra
isa

ls 
by

 M
ar

ch
 3

1.
 R

ev
ie

w
s 

ar
e 

al
m

os
t d

on
e.

 O
pe

ra
tio

ns
 st

ill
 h

as
 so

m
e 

dr
iv

er
s t

o 
m

ee
t w

ith
 a

nd
 p

la
n 

to
 h

av
e 

al
l c

om
pl

et
ed

 b
y 

Ap
ril

 3
0.

 A
nn

ua
l r

ev
ie

w
s c

om
pl

et
ed

.

M
CT

AB
 m

ee
tin

gs
 c

on
tin

ue
.

O
ne

 m
ee

tin
g 

ha
s o

cc
ur

re
d 

w
ith

 a
n 

As
so

ci
at

io
n 

of
 W

as
hi

ng
to

n 
Ci

tie
s r

ep
re

se
nt

at
iv

e 
to

 lo
ok

 a
t p

la
n 

op
tio

ns
. I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

w
as

 p
re

se
nt

ed
 

to
 st

af
f f

or
 a

 fi
rs

t g
la

nc
e 

at
 th

e 
Al

l S
ta

ff 
m

ee
tin

g.
 L

ee
An

n 
ha

s a
tt

en
de

d 
a 

w
or

ks
ho

p 
w

ith
 A

W
C 

to
 d

et
er

m
in

e 
ne

xt
 st

ep
s f

or
 im

pl
em

en
tin

g 
ne

w
 p

la
ns

. W
e 

ha
ve

 sc
he

du
le

d 
AW

C 
to

 b
e 

on
 si

gh
t i

n 
N

ov
em

be
r t

o 
re

sp
on

d 
to

 st
af

f q
ue

st
io

ns
.  

Ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
w

or
ki

ng
 o

n 
m

er
gi

ng
 o

f H
R 

an
d 

Fi
na

nc
e 

M
an

ag
er

 p
os

iti
on

s.
 W

ill
 b

e 
re

vi
ew

in
g 

al
l m

an
ag

er
's 

ta
sk

s a
nd

 jo
b 

re
sp

on
sib

ili
tie

s a
s 

w
el

l a
s o

th
er

 k
ey

 p
os

iti
on

s.
 H

av
e 

in
co

rp
or

at
ed

 L
ea

d 
Dr

iv
er

s t
o 

he
lp

 w
ith

 th
e 

pr
oc

es
s o

f p
ro

m
ot

in
g 

w
ith

in
. W

ill
 b

e 
lo

ok
in

g 
at

 o
th

er
 

de
pa

rt
m

en
ts

 fo
r s

im
ila

r t
ra

in
in

g 
pl

an
s.

 S
uc

ce
ss

io
n 

fo
r H

R 
M

an
ag

er
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

co
m

pl
et

ed
. R

ik
ki

's 
la

st
 d

ay
 w

as
 A

pr
il 

14
. W

ill
 c

on
tin

ue
 in

 th
e 

2n
d 

qu
ar

te
r w

ith
 o

rg
an

iza
tio

na
l s

tr
uc

tu
re

 a
nd

 e
ffi

ci
en

y.

It 
ha

s b
ee

n 
de

te
rm

in
ed

 in
st

al
lin

g 
a 

bu
s w

as
h 

is 
co

st
 p

ro
hi

bi
te

d 
at

 th
is 

tim
e.

 M
ov

in
g 

fo
rw

ar
d 

w
ith

 p
ur

ch
as

in
g 

a 
bu

s w
as

he
r t

hi
s y

ea
r a

s 
fu

nd
s a

re
 a

va
ila

bl
e.

 F
or

 n
ow

, t
hi

s t
as

k 
is 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 c

om
pl

et
e.

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 h
as

 re
ac

he
d 

ou
t t

o 
G

as
bo

y 
an

d 
aw

ai
tin

g 
an

 e
st

im
at

e 
of

 th
e 

co
st

 to
 u

pd
at

e 
th

e 
sy

st
em

. R
es

ea
rc

h 
do

ne
 a

nd
 p

ric
e 

qu
ot

e 
re

ce
iv

ed
. A

nt
ic

ip
at

e 
in

st
al

lin
g 

in
 th

e 
ne

xt
 tw

o 
m

on
th

s d
ep

en
di

ng
 o

n 
ca

sh
 fl

ow
 to

 p
ur

ch
as

e.
 C

os
t i

s a
pp

x.
 $

25
k.

HR
 is

 w
or

ki
ng

 o
n 

up
da

tin
g 

em
pl

oy
ee

 h
an

db
oo

k 
w

ith
 a

 c
om

pl
et

io
n 

go
al

 d
at

e 
of

 A
pr

il 
30

. R
ik

ki
 w

or
ke

d 
on

 u
pd

at
es

 u
nt

il 
sh

e 
re

tir
ed

. 
Le

eA
nn

 w
ill

 c
om

pl
et

e.
 W

ai
tin

g 
fo

r t
he

 la
st

 c
on

tr
ac

t t
o 

be
 n

eg
ot

ia
te

d 
be

fo
re

 fi
na

liz
in

g 
th

e 
ha

nd
bo

ok
. F

in
an

ce
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

w
or

ki
ng

 o
n 

co
m

pa
rin

g 
Em

pl
oy

ee
 H

an
db

oo
k 

ag
ai

ns
t u

ni
on

 c
on

tr
ac

ts
. W

ill
 b

eg
in

 u
pd

at
e 

in
 N

ov
em

be
r w

ith
 c

om
pl

et
io

n 
by

 e
nd

 o
f 2

01
7.

In
iti

al
 m

ee
tin

g 
w

ith
 B

oa
rd

 M
em

be
rs

 P
og

re
ba

 a
nd

 P
et

er
se

n 
to

 d
isc

us
s c

om
pe

ns
at

io
n 

pl
an

 a
nd

 g
et

 d
ire

ct
io

n;
 fo

llo
w

-u
p 

m
ee

tin
g 

sc
he

du
le

d 
fo

r M
ar

ch
 2

0 
to

 re
vi

ew
 in

iti
al

 p
la

n.
 C

om
pe

ns
at

io
n 

Pl
an

 to
 th

e 
fu

ll 
bo

ar
d 

is 
te

na
tiv

el
y 

pl
an

ne
d 

fo
r A

pr
il.

 H
ad

 fi
na

l m
ee

tin
g 

on
 A

pr
il 

10
. 

Co
m

pe
ns

at
io

n 
Pl

an
 is

 in
 A

pr
il 

Bo
ar

d 
Pa

ck
et

 fo
r B

oa
rd

 a
pp

ro
va

l.

LE
D 

he
ad

la
m

ps
 h

av
e 

be
en

 o
rd

er
ed

 a
nd

 th
e 

in
st

al
le

d 
on

 a
ll 

co
ac

he
s.

 W
ill

 in
st

al
l o

n 
cu

ta
w

ay
s a

s n
ee

de
d.

 T
as

k 
is 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 c

om
pl

et
e.

U
ni

on
 n

eg
ot

ia
tio

ns
 fo

r t
he

 d
riv

er
s h

as
 b

eg
an

. T
he

re
 w

er
e 

six
 m

ee
tin

gs
 to

ta
l t

o 
re

ac
h 

a 
te

nt
at

iv
e 

ag
re

em
en

t. 
 D

riv
er

s r
at

ifi
ed

 M
ay

 7
. 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 b
ef

or
e 

Bo
ar

d 
on

 M
ay

 1
6.

 T
ha

t l
ea

ve
s o

ne
 c

on
tr

ac
t l

ef
t t

o 
ne

go
tia

te
 fo

r t
he

 C
om

m
 C

en
te

r. 
Ha

d 
fir

st
 m

ee
tin

g 
w

ith
 C

om
m

 C
en

te
r 

st
ew

ar
d 

an
d 

U
ni

on
 R

ep
. W

er
e 

ab
le

 to
 te

nt
at

iv
el

y 
ag

re
e 

to
 2

5 
of

 2
7 

ar
tic

le
s.

 N
ex

t m
ee

tin
g 

sc
he

du
le

d 
fo

r J
ul

y 
19

. T
he

 g
oa

l i
s t

o 
ha

ve
 

co
nt

ra
ct

 re
ad

y 
fo

r B
oa

rd
 re

vi
ew

 a
nd

 a
pp

ro
va

l i
n 

Au
gu

st
. C

on
tr

ac
t n

eg
ot

ia
tio

ns
 h

av
e 

be
en

 c
om

pl
et

ed
.

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 183



N
:\

Ad
m

in
\A

dm
in

 S
ha

re
d\

M
TA

 A
ut

ho
rit

y 
Bo

ar
d\

20
17

 A
ut

ho
rit

y 
Bo

ar
d\

W
or

kp
la

n 
U

pd
at

e

2n
d 

Q
ua

rt
er

Re
-t

ra
in

 a
ll 

dr
iv

er
s o

n 
a 

re
gu

la
r b

as
is 

in
 o

rd
er

 to
 p

ro
vi

de
 c

on
sis

te
nt

 
se

rv
ic

e 
an

d 
sa

fe
ty


Ev

al
ua

te
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

op
tio

ns
 a

nd
 p

ilo
t i

m
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 d
riv

er
 ta

bl
et

 
us

e


Es
ta

bl
ish

 D
riv

er
 A

w
ar

en
es

s a
nd

 T
ra

in
in

g 
Pr

og
ra

m
 to

 e
nc

ou
ra

ge
 

re
po

rt
in

g 
of

 n
ea

r m
iss

es
N

IM
S 

tr
ai

ni
ng

 a
nd

 p
re

pa
re

dn
es

s;
 c

re
at

e 
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

 a
nd

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 fo
r 

lo
ck

do
w

n 
sit

ua
tio

ns


Co
nt

in
ue

 to
 e

xp
lo

re
 n

ew
 o

pt
io

ns
 in

 h
iri

ng
 p

ra
ct

ic
es

, p
os

iti
on

s,
 

or
ga

ni
za

tio
na

l s
tr

uc
tu

re
 a

nd
 re

te
nt

io
n 

by
 lo

ok
in

g 
at

 o
th

er
 tr

an
sit

 
ag

en
ci

es
’ p

ra
ct

ic
es

 a
nd

 st
ru

ct
ur

e 
as

 w
el

l a
s w

or
ki

ng
 to

w
ar

ds
 e

ffi
ci

en
cy

 
th

ro
ug

h 
jo

b 
de

sc
rip

tio
n 

re
vi

ew



Pr
ep

ar
e 

fo
r t

he
 2

01
8 

al
te

rn
at

iv
e 

fu
el

 m
an

da
te



In
cr

ea
se

 fa
ce

-t
o-

fa
ce

 ti
m

e 
be

tw
ee

n 
st

af
f



Es
ta

bl
ish

 Jo
in

t L
ab

or
 M

an
ag

em
en

t C
om

m
itt

ee
s f

or
 e

ac
h 

ba
rg

ai
ni

ng
 

un
it;

 e
st

ab
lis

h 
a 

m
ee

tin
g 

sc
he

du
le


3r

d 
Q

ua
rt

er
Re

-t
ra

in
 a

ll 
dr

iv
er

s o
n 

a 
re

gu
la

r b
as

is 
in

 o
rd

er
 to

 p
ro

vi
de

 c
on

sis
te

nt
 

se
rv

ic
e 

an
d 

sa
fe

ty


Im
pr

ov
e 

cu
rr

en
t r

id
er

 m
at

er
ia

ls,
 sp

ec
ifi

ca
lly

 th
e 

sc
he

du
le

 b
oo

k;
 

tr
an

sla
te

 ri
de

r m
at

er
ia

ls 
in

to
 S

pa
ni

sh


Cr
ea

te
 e

-le
ar

ni
ng

 a
nd

 re
so

ur
ce

 li
br

ar
y

X
In

ve
st

 in
 te

ch
ni

ca
l t

ra
in

in
g 

fo
r s

ta
ff 

sp
ec

ifi
c 

to
 ro

ut
e 

pl
an

ni
ng

 a
nd

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t


Cr
ea

te
 F

in
an

ci
al

 M
an

ag
em

en
t M

an
ua

l
X

Ev
al

ua
te

 th
e 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s i
nf

ra
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

w
ith

 re
ga

rd
 to

 M
TA

’s
 a

bi
lit

y 
to

 
m

ai
nt

ai
n 

ob
lig

at
io

ns
 fo

r c
ur

re
nt

 a
nd

 p
la

nn
ed

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s


Re
sp

on
d 

to
 L

M
TA

AA
 R

FQ
 to

 se
cu

re
 fu

nd
in

g 
fo

r v
ol

un
te

er
 d

riv
er

 
pr

og
ra

m


4t
h 

Q
ua

rt
er

Re
-t

ra
in

 a
ll 

dr
iv

er
s o

n 
a 

re
gu

la
r b

as
is 

in
 o

rd
er

 to
 p

ro
vi

de
 c

on
sis

te
nt

 
se

rv
ic

e 
an

d 
sa

fe
ty

Be
gi

n 
to

 fo
rm

al
ize

 sh
ift

 fr
om

 fl
ag

-s
to

p 
to

 fi
xe

d-
st

op
 se

rv
ic

e 
in

 S
he

lto
n’

s 
ur

ba
n 

ar
ea

X
In

st
al

l b
us

 st
op

 si
gn

s t
hr

ou
gh

 M
as

on
 C

ou
nt

y
X

De
ve

lo
p 

a 
ro

ut
e 

de
vi

at
io

n 
po

lic
y

X
De

ve
lo

p 
a 

w
or

k 
pl

an
 fo

r p
ar

ki
ng

 lo
t u

pg
ra

de
s

De
ve

lo
p 

br
id

gi
ng

 a
ct

iv
iti

es
, s

uc
h 

as
 a

 jo
b 

sh
ad

ow
 p

ro
gr

am
 a

nd
 

in
te

rn
sh

ip
s,

 to
 c

re
at

e 
ca

re
er

 p
at

hw
ay

s b
et

w
ee

n 
yo

ut
h 

(h
ig

h 
sc

ho
ol

 &
 

co
lle

ge
) a

nd
 M

TA


M
ik

e 
Ri

ng
ge

nb
er

g 
 a

tt
en

de
d 

tr
ai

ni
ng

 in
 Ju

ly
 o

n 
tr

an
sit

 e
m

er
ge

nc
ie

s a
nd

 h
as

 im
pl

em
en

te
d 

pl
an

s f
or

 e
m

er
ge

nc
y 

pr
ep

ar
ed

ne
ss

.
Cu

rr
en

tly
 w

or
ki

ng
 o

n 
jo

b 
de

sc
rip

tio
n 

re
vi

ew
. H

av
e 

re
vi

ew
ed

 o
th

er
 tr

an
sit

s' 
or

ga
ni

za
tio

na
l s

tr
uc

tu
re

 to
 c

om
pa

re
 w

ith
 M

TA
's.

 A
nt

ic
ip

at
e 

th
e 

re
vi

ew
 o

f j
ob

 d
es

cr
ip

tio
ns

 w
ill

 b
e 

do
ne

 b
y 

en
d 

of
 M

ay
. C

on
tin

ui
ng

 to
 w

or
k 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
is 

pr
oc

es
s a

lo
ng

 w
ith

 p
ro

je
ct

io
ns

 to
 h

el
p 

su
pp

or
t t

he
 o

rg
an

iza
tio

na
l s

tr
uc

tu
re

. O
ve

ra
ll 

ta
sk

 is
 c

om
pl

et
e 

w
ith

 a
 fe

w
 o

ut
st

an
di

ng
 p

os
iti

on
 re

vi
ew

 to
 b

e 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 b
y 

en
d 

of
 Ju

ly
 b

ut
 

w
ill

 a
lso

 b
e 

on
-g

oi
ng

 a
s n

ee
ds

 o
f t

he
 a

ge
nc

y 
ch

an
ge

.

Th
is 

is 
pa

rt
 o

f t
he

 e
xp

lo
rin

g 
te

ch
no

lo
gi

ca
l a

dv
an

ce
s t

o 
st

re
am

lin
e 

ou
r s

ch
ed

ul
in

g 
an

d 
di

sp
at

ch
 p

ro
ce

ss
. P

la
n 

to
 is

su
e 

an
 R

FP
 in

 O
ct

ob
er

. 
Co

m
m

itt
ee

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
fo

rm
ed

 a
nd

 th
er

e 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

se
ve

ra
l m

ee
tin

gs
 to

 p
rio

rit
iz

e 
ne

ed
s.

 
Fi

rs
t m

ee
tin

g 
oc

cu
rr

ed
  O

ct
ob

er
 1

0.
 C

om
m

itt
ee

 w
as

 sc
he

du
le

d 
to

 m
ee

t N
ov

 1
4 

bu
t h

ad
 to

 c
an

ce
l. 

Th
e 

co
m

m
itt

ee
 is

 d
is

cu
ss

in
g 

va
rio

us
 

id
ea

s i
nc

lu
di

ng
 h

ow
 in

ci
de

nt
s a

re
 h

an
dl

ed
.

Th
is 

qu
ar

te
r t

he
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 fo

cu
s w

ill
 b

e 
th

e 
 n

ew
 b

us
es

 a
nd

 th
e 

pa
ss

iv
e 

re
st

ra
in

ts
 in

st
al

le
d 

on
 e

ac
h.

 C
PR

 re
fr

es
he

r t
ra

in
in

g 
w

ill
 b

e 
do

ne
 fo

r 
th

os
e 

ne
ed

in
g 

to
 re

ne
w

 th
e 

CP
R 

ca
rd

. C
on

du
ct

ed
 A

ct
iv

e 
Sh

oo
te

r T
ra

in
in

g.

N
ew

 b
us

es
 a

rr
iv

in
g 

ap
pr

x.
 A

pr
il 

th
at

 w
ill

 b
e 

re
ad

y 
fo

r a
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

fu
el

. P
re

pa
ra

tio
n 

fo
r c

ha
ng

e 
is 

on
 sc

he
du

le
. M

ar
sh

al
l a

nd
 R

ub
en

 v
isi

tin
g 

th
e 

G
ill

ig
 fa

ct
or

y 
M

ar
ch

 2
0-

24
 fo

r f
in

al
 p

ro
du

ct
io

n 
an

d 
in

sp
ec

tio
n 

of
 b

us
es

. N
ew

 b
us

es
 a

rr
iv

ed
 a

nd
 B

-5
 b

io
di

es
el

 w
ill

 b
e 

de
liv

er
ed

 in
 A

pr
il 

w
he

n 
ta

nk
 is

 fi
lle

d.
EM

C 
sp

on
so

re
d 

a 
ba

se
ba

ll 
O

pe
ni

ng
 D

ay
 e

ve
nt

 w
ith

 h
ot

 d
og

s,
 p

op
co

rn
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 fo
od

. N
at

io
na

l T
ra

ns
po

rt
at

io
n 

W
ee

k 
is 

M
ay

 1
3-

19
. 

M
an

ag
em

en
t w

ill
 b

e 
ha

nd
in

g 
ou

t l
un

ch
 b

ag
s a

nd
 sp

en
di

ng
 ti

m
e 

in
 th

e 
"f

ie
ld

" w
ith

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
s.

 C
on

tin
ue

 to
 lo

ok
 fo

r o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s .
 T

hi
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

on
-g

oi
ng

 b
ut

 th
er

e 
is 

m
uc

h 
m

or
e 

aw
ar

en
es

s t
o 

th
e 

ta
sk

.

M
ee

tin
gs

 h
av

e 
be

en
 c

on
du

ct
ed

.

Ri
de

r's
 G

ui
de

 a
nd

 S
ch

ed
ul

e 
Bo

ok
 is

 b
ei

ng
 d

es
ig

ne
d 

an
d 

re
vi

ew
ed

 n
ow

 fo
r O

ct
ob

er
 2

. I
t w

ill
 in

cl
ud

e 
Sp

an
ish

 tr
an

sla
tio

n.

M
ov

in
g 

th
is

 to
 2

01
8.

 N
ot

 a
 h

ig
h 

pr
io

rit
y 

an
d 

de
te

rm
in

ed
 th

at
 fo

cu
si

ng
 o

n 
el

ec
tr

on
ic

 re
co

rd
 m

an
ag

em
en

t i
s m

or
e 

im
po

rt
an

t.

Dr
iv

er
s t

ra
in

in
g 

sc
he

du
le

d 
fo

r S
ep

te
m

be
r 1

0.
 M

ee
tin

g 
w

as
 c

an
ce

lle
d 

du
e.

 

W
e 

ha
ve

 h
ire

d 
an

 in
te

rn
al

 c
an

di
da

te
 to

 fo
cu

s o
n 

ou
tr

ea
ch

 - 
Ka

th
y 

G
ei

st
 w

ill
 b

e 
tr

an
sf

er
rin

g 
in

to
 th

is
 p

os
iti

on
.

M
ov

in
g 

th
is

 to
 2

01
8 

du
e 

to
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 o

f n
ew

 st
af

f a
nd

 Je
ri'

s r
et

ire
m

en
t p

lu
s b

ud
ge

t p
ro

ce
ss

, e
tc

.

Th
is 

is 
cu

rr
en

tly
 b

ei
ng

 e
va

lu
at

ed
 th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
pr

oc
es

s o
f l

on
g-

ra
ng

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 p

la
nn

in
g 

as
 re

la
te

d 
to

 O
pe

ra
tin

g 
M

ar
gi

n 
as

 w
el

l a
s o

ve
ra

ll 
fin

an
ci

al
 h

ea
lth

.
Re

ce
iv

ed
 th

e 
RF

P 
an

d 
Fi

na
nc

e 
Te

am
 su

bm
itt

ed
 a

pp
lic

at
io

n 
by

 d
ea

dl
in

e 
of

 Ju
ly

 1
4,

 2
01

7.
 A

w
ai

tin
g 

to
 h

ea
r b

ac
k 

on
 a

cc
ep

ta
nc

e.
 M

TA
 h

as
 

be
en

 a
w

ar
de

d 
th

e 
fu

nd
in

g.
 C

on
tr

ac
t t

o 
fo

llo
w

.

M
ov

e 
to

 2
01

8 
as

 p
ar

t o
f t

he
 se

rv
ic

e 
an

al
ys

is
.

M
ov

e 
to

 2
01

8 
af

te
r s

er
vi

ce
 a

na
ly

si
s i

s c
om

pl
et

ed
.

M
ov

e 
to

 2
01

8 
af

te
r s

er
vi

ce
 a

na
ly

si
s i

s c
om

pl
et

ed
.

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 h
as

 b
eg

un
 to

 w
or

k 
on

 th
is

 a
nd

 sh
ou

ld
 h

av
e 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 b

y 
en

d 
of

 y
ea

r.

St
af

f h
as

 p
ar

tic
ip

at
ed

 in
 se

ve
ra

l a
ct

iv
iti

es
 in

 th
is

 a
re

a 
an

d 
ar

e 
es

ta
bl

is
he

d 
w

ith
 d

iff
er

en
t p

ro
gr

am
s a

t t
he

 H
S 

an
d 

Co
lle

ge
.

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 184



Operations Report November 2017 

Submitted   12-18-17 by Mike Ringgenberg 

Service Statistics 
The following table shows the ridership, hours and mileage statistics for each mode of 

service. It compares November 2016 to November 2017 data. 
MTA provided 24 days of service. 

 
 
 

Totals Nov-17 Nov-16 2017 YTD 2016 YTD YTD    % (+ -) 

Fixed Route Ridership 31,519 32,020 355,304 317,628 12% 
Total Hours 2,554 2,697 30,706 28,408 8% 
Mileage 52,183 55,711 637,053 569,253 12% 

       
Worker/Driver Ridership 3,938 3,979 45,270 42,965 5% 

Total Hours 189 198 2,288 2,148 6% 
Mileage 4,621 4,830 55,716 51,369 8% 

       
Dial-A-Ride Ridership 3,674 3,604 40,563 39,086 4% 

Total Hours 2,067 2,203 24,417 23,906 2% 
Mileage 25,699 27,736 297,916 272,366 9% 

       
Vanpool Ridership 1,879 2,449 24,208 25,252 -4% 

Mileage 10,425 17,192 143,225 157,980 -9% 
       
Special Events Ridership 0 0 1,500 1,398 7% 

Total Hours 0 0 18 44 -59% 
Mileage 0 0 108 217 -50% 

       
Volunteer Ridership 144 113 1,453 1,172 24% 

Total Hours 277 217 2,647 1,923 38% 
Mileage 6,263 4,669 60,591 45,569 33% 

       
All Modes Total Ridership 41,154 42,165 468,298 427,501 9.54% 

 
 

December 19, 2017 MTA Reg Board Mtg 185


	ADP565E.tmp
	Mason Transit Authority
	Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting
	November 21, 2017
	NEW BUSINESS
	UPCOMING MEETINGS

	ADPA9C0.tmp
	Sheet1

	ADP5983.tmp
	Sheet1

	ADPD683.tmp
	1.0 POLICY STATEMENT
	1.3 Applicability
	1.4 Prohibited Substances
	1.5 Prohibited Conduct
	1.6 Compliance with Testing

	2.0 TESTING FOR PROHIBITED SUBSTANCES
	2.2 Methodology
	2.3 TYPES OF TESTING
	C. UPost-Accident Testing (49 CFR 655.44)
	D. URandom Testing (49 CFR Part 655.45)
	E. UReturn to Duty Testing (49 CFR Part 655.46)

	2.5 Medical Review Officer (MRO)
	2.6 Substance Abuse Professional (SAP)

	4.0       EMPL0YEE ASSISTANCE PROGRAM (EAP)
	5.0 DISCIPLINE – CONSEQUENCES OF POLICY VIOLATIONS
	6.0 EDUCATION AND TRAINING

	ADP69A3.tmp
	1.0 POLICY STATEMENT
	1.3 Applicability
	1.4 Prohibited Substances
	1.5 Prohibited Conduct
	1.6 Compliance with Testing

	2.0 TESTING FOR PROHIBITED SUBSTANCES
	2.2 Methodology
	2.3 TYPES OF TESTING
	C. UPost-Accident Testing (49 CFR 655.44)
	D. URandom Testing (49 CFR Part 655.45)
	E. UReturn to Duty Testing (49 CFR Part 655.46)

	2.5 Medical Review Officer (MRO)
	2.6 Substance Abuse Professional (SAP)

	4.0 EMPL0YEE ASSISTANCE PROGRAM (EAP)
	5.0 DISCIPLINE – CONSEQUENCES OF POLICY VIOLATIONS
	6.0 EDUCATION AND TRAINING

	ADPADD9.tmp
	GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT
	Below is a list of major activities for the month:

	TEAM UPDATES
	2017 WORK ITEMS UPDATE

	Workplan Update.pdf
	2017

	ADP55D.tmp
	Service Statistics




